Offering Memorandum: Part II of Offering Document (Exhibit A to Form
C)

YouSolar, Inc.
292 Brokaw Road
Santa Clara, CA 95050
www.yousolar.com

Up to $4,999,997.22 in Class B Common Stock at $0.74
Minimum Target Amount: $9,999.62

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this
offering unless you can afford to lose your entire investment.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of
the issuer and the terms of the offering, including the merits and risks involved. These
securities have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state securities
commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authorities have not passed
upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document.

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of any
securities offered or the terms of the offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or
completeness of any offering document or literature.

These securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.5.
Securities and Exchange Commission has not made an independent determination
that these securities are exempt from registration.



Company:

Company: YouSolar, Inc.

Address: 292 Brokaw Road, Santa Clara, CA 95050
State of Incorporation: DE

Date Incorporated: May 11, 2010

Terms:

Equity

Offering Minimum: $9,999.62 | 13,513 shares of Class B Common Stock
Offering Maximum: $4,999,997.22 | 6,756,753 shares of Class B Common Stock
Type of Security Offered: Class B Common Stock

Purchase Price of Security Offered: $0.74

Minimum Investment Amount (per investor): $349.28

Voting Rights of Securities Sold in this Offering

Voting Proxy. Each Subscriber shall appoint the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company (the “CEO™), or his or her successor, as the Subscriber’s true and lawful
proxy and attorney, with the power to act alone and with full power of substitution, to,
consistent with this instrument and on behalf of the Subscriber, (i) vote all Securities,
(ii) give and receive notices and communications, (iii) execute any instrument or
document that the CEO determines is necessary or appropriate in the exercise of its
authority under this instrument, and (iv) take all actions necessary or appropriate in
the judgment of the CEO for the accomplishment of the foregoing. The proxy and
power granted by the Subscriber pursuant to this Section are coupled with an interest.
Such proxy and power will be irrevocable. The proxy and power, so long as the
Subscriber is an individual, will survive the death, incompetency and disability of the
Subscriber and, so long as the Subscriber is an entity, will survive the merger or
reorganization of the Subscriber or any other entity holding the Securities. However,
the Proxy will terminate upon the closing of a firm-commitment underwritten public
offering pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of
1933 covering the offer and sale of Common Stock or the effectiveness of a
registration statement under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 covering the
Common Stock.

*Maximum Number of Shares Offered subject to adjustment for bonus shares. See
Bonus info below.

Investment Incentives & Bonuses™

All Investor Owners Club

20% or 10% discount on a PowerBloc® system (excluding solar panels and installation
charges), if purchased in by 1 December 2022 or 1 December 2023, respectively, for
U.S. delivery or Free-on-Board, Santa Clara, California, for all international



destinations. Discount applies only to the first U.S. $100,000.00 of order(s) by the
investor.

Early Bird

Any investment made before 1:08 pm PST Sunday January 23rd will receive 20% bonus
shares.

Next 7 days new investments between 1:08 pm PST Sunday January 23rd and Sunday
January 30th 1:08 pm PST receive 5% bonus shares.

Perks by Investment Amount

$700+ YouSolar-branded Organic T-shirt. Some colors are not available in organic
cotton.

$1,500+ YouSolar T-Shirt and Visor or Trucker Hat
$3,500+ YouSolar T-shirt or Hoodie and Visor or Trucker Hat and Coffee Mug
$7,500+ YouSolar-branded titanium sports bottle + 5% bonus shares.

$27,500+ Wonderfully crafted, stackable model of the PowerBloc® for your desk.
(Works as a "stress toy” or paperweight.) + 10% bonus shares.

*All perks occur after the offering is completed.

The 10% Bonus for StartEngine Shareholders

YouSolar, Inc. will offer 10% bonus shares for all investments that are committed by
investors that are eligible for the StartEngine Crowdfunding Inc. OWNer's bonus.

This means eligible StartEngine shareholders will receive a 10% bonus for any shares
they purchase in this offering. For example, if vou buy 100 shares of Class B Common
Stock at $0.74 / share, you will receive 110 Class B Common Stock, meaning you'll own
110 shares for $74. Fractional shares will not be distributed and share bonuses will be
determined by rounding down to the nearest whole share.

This 10% Bonus is only valid during the investors eligibility period. Investors eligible
for this bonus will also have priority if they are on a waitlist to invest and the company
surpasses its maximum funding goal. They will have the first opportunity to invest
should room in the offering become available if prior investments are cancelled or fail.

Investors will only receive a single bonus, which will be the highest bonus rate they
are eligible for.

Note on Bonus Shares and Perks

Investors will only receive a single bonus, which will be the highest bonus rate they
are eligible for.



Insider Investment Notice

Officers, directors, executives, and existing owners with a controlling stake in the
company (or their immediate family members) may make investments in this offering.
Any such investments will be included in the raised amount reflected on the campaign

page.
The Company and its Business

Company Overview

YouSolar Inc. was formed on May 11, 2010 in Delaware under the entity Fireball Solar

Technologies, LLC. On January 16" of 2013, the company converted from Fireball
Solar Technologies, LLC to Fireball Technologies, Inc. On April 22, 2015, Fireball
Technologies, Inc. amended the company name to YouSolar, Inc. ("YouSolar™). All
intellectual property has been assigned to and is owned by the company.

YouSolar sells the PowerBloc®, an independent solar+battery nano-grid that delivers
clean and resilient power for the home or business. The PowerBloc is not a backup
system but a primary power system to the home or business. Solar energy is the
primary energy source, but PowerBloc can seamlessly blend solar, utility, and
generator power on its efficient direct current architecture. YouSolar is installing
PowerBloc systems at homes in Northern California threatened by wildfires and a
clinic in Key West, Florida, in the path of tropical storms. The PowerBloc’s patented
stackable modules, coming in 2022, will allow for easier shipment and plug-and-play
installation.

Competitors and Industry

The industry landscape includes many companies in different areas of the solar and
battery market. These competitors include large, well-funded public companies, such
as Enphase, Tesla, LG Energy Solutions, or Panasonic. However, in our opinion, the
systems currently offered by these competitors include much heavier battery units
than those of the PowerBloc and are more complicated to install. Our competitors’
systems also do not allow for easy integration of multiple power sources, especially
generators.

Through the features and performance of the PowerBloc®, we aim to open the entire
world to solar energy by dramatically improving the usefulness of solar+battery
systems and access to this technology. We believe the introduction of stackable
modules will be a game-changer for the industry.

We deliver a fully integrated solar+battery nano-grid system that powers an entire
home or business, but that is also safe and fast to assemble even by third-party
electricians that are not familiar with the system. We believe the PowerBloc system is
poised to succeed through our revolutionary technology and the direct-to-consumer
business model which the modular, plug-and-play technology enables.



Current Stage and Roadmap
Current Development Stage

YouSolar has installed demonstration PowerBloc® solar+battery systems at off-grid
homes in Big Sur and the Sierra Nevada mountains, California. The Big Sur
demonstration has been running continuously for over two years. These systems
tested many power electronics, controls, and software but did not operate only on the
high potential bus as the current, production PowerBloc system. In 2021 we
completed the design of all PowerBloc modules, except for our new single-phase
inverter. That inverter is expected to be completed in Q4 of 2022. These modules
integrate one or multiple solar arrays, bring in utility and generator power, step the
potential of the batteries up and down, or connect multiple cabinets. All power is
delivered to the high potential bus in parallel. All modules are controlled by a program
on a central Linux single-board computer (SBC). These modules fit into 19-inch racks.
For an overview of all modules and specifications, please refer to the technology page
of our website, www.yousolar.com.

The PowerBloc is fully automated. It is controlled by an intelligent energy
management system (EMS) running on the Linux SBC. The EMS receives solar
irradiance data from our in-house real-time satellite solar irradiance forecast. The
system is viewed and controlled via a user interface on an Android tablet. We are
currently installing six residential PowerBloc systems in Northern California, which
will temporarily use a 3rd party inverter. We are also installing a PowerBloc at a clinic
in Florida that will use a 3rd-party 3-phase inverter. (The company has no plans to
develop a 3-phase inverter.) These systems will all operate on a high potential bus.
The company has also designed and engineered the prototype of the stackable module
system. A functional prototype of the stackable enclosures has been built and is
currently undergoing mechanical, thermal, and electrical testing and development.

Future Roadmap

The company will improve its product in all areas: power electronics, controls,
software, and packaging. All of those improvements are important to the system's
performance and competitiveness. Among these improvements are a (1) redesign of
the micro-converter's power stage, communications protocol, and enclosure; (2) a
move to a higher-potential battery and a higher potential at the lower stage of the bi-
directional converter; (3) the design of a lower-cost rectifier, (4) the introduction of a
high-power single-phase inverter: (5) and the testing and market introduction of the
stackable module system. Of these five significant technology developments, the
single-phase inverter and the stackable modules are the most important to the
company's market strategy. There currently are no high-power grid-forming single-
phase inverters in the market. YouSolar's inverter is a critical piece of the PowerBloc
and makes it complete. There will be a 15kW and a 25kW version of the inverter, with
significant surge capacity. These inverters allow the company to offer full utility
power replacements for homes with 100 and 200 Ampere single-phase service, the
most common utility service in the United States. The stackable module represents a



realization of the company’s vision of a high-power solar-battery system that can ship
with standard shippers, is customizable and scalable to fit our customers’' needs, and
can be assembled and connected to the house by any electrician without training. This
modular and stackable system is made possible by the patented power architecture of
the PowerBloc. We believe that no such system exists in the market. The company
believes the stackable and modular system will see adoption in the residential and
commercial power market and by the military and disaster relief organizations.

The Team

Officers and Directors

Name: Arnold Leitner
Arnold Leitner's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

¢ Position: Founder, CEO and President
Dates of Service: May 11, 2010 - Present
Responsibilities: Product design, management, and fundraising. This is Arnold's
full-time role. Arnold has an annual salary of U.S. 275k. As the founder, Arnold
holds founder's shares, Common A. He was also issued options in 2018. He may
receive additional stock option grants in the future.

e Position: Board Member
Dates of Service: January 16, 2013 - Present
Responsibilities: Member of the board of directors. Arnold is not compensated
for his role as board member.

Other business experience in the past three years:

o Emplover: Arnold Leitner & Partners LLC (ALNP)
Title: Managing Member
Dates of Service: May 01, 2005 - Present
Responsibilities: Identify and invest in business opportunities in the renewable
energy and environmental technology sector.

Name: Michael W. Allman

Michael W. Allman's current primary role is with H2scan. Michael W. Allman currently
services 2 hours per week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Board Member
Dates of Service: June 21, 2017 - Present



Responsibilities: Member of the Board of Directors

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: H2scan
Title: Chairman
Dates of Service: January 01, 2017 - Present
Responsibilities: Executive management.

Name: Bob Rutter

Bob Rutter's current primary role is with EIQ Energy Inc. Bob Rutter currently services
20-40 hours hours per week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Board of Director
Dates of Service: July 09, 2022 - Present
Responsibilities: Advising the board on technology.

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Employer: EIQ Energy Inc
Title: Systems and Firmware Engineer
Dates of Service: January 01, 2016 - Present
Responsibilities: designed and developing systems

Name: Galen |. Torneby
Galen J. Torneby's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Vice President, Operations and Chief Operating Officer
Dates of Service: July 01, 2020 - Present
Responsibilities: Operations, Sales, and system deployment. Galen is paid USD
150k per year. The board also approved 400,000 options of Common B stock for
Galen

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Fairweather & Associates
Title: COO
Dates of Service: February 01, 2020 - July 30, 2020
Responsibilities: Gallen collaborated closely with the CEO in setting and driving



organizational vision, operational strategy, and hiring needs.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Solar Phillippines
Title: COO Power Systems
Dates of Service: July 01, 2020 - September 30, 2020
Responsibilities: Part-time. Responsible for all PV module manufacturing and all
utility and commercial-scale PV power project delivery.

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Employer: SolarCraft
Title: CEO
Dates of Service: August 01, 2019 - January 30, 2020
Responsibilities: Responsible for strategy, personnel management, and
execution with regards to managing all functions at SolarCraft.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: SolarCraft
Title: COO
Dates of Service: May 29, 2019 - July 31, 2019
Responsibilities: Overseeing all aspects of technical operations at Solar Craft,
including safety, project design, and engineering, estimating, project
management, construction and services

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Emplover: DNV GL
Title: Head of Department, Solar
Dates of Service: October 01, 2018 - April 23, 2019
Responsibilities: Management responsibility for staff performing technical
advisory work in the solar PV and CSP sectors.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Tumult Wines
Title: Co-Owner, Farmhand
Dates of Service: July 01, 2021 - Present
Responsibilities: Our Vineyard and winemaking business, we grow Malbec
grapes at our home/farm in rural Somona Country near Calisoga; we sell most of
the them. We also make Rosé of Malbec and Malbec red wine.



Name: Rupert Mayer

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

Position: Chief Financial Officer and Head of Strategy

Dates of Service: 12 08, 2022 - present

Responsibilities: Financial planning and reporting; Liquidity management; Determining
capital needs and raising capital; Setting goals for performance and growth across the
company’s functions; Driving the team toward achieving those goals and measuring
progress against them; Formalizing the company’s product, funding, and go-to-market
strategies; Developing our operational infrastructure of processes and tools; Promoting
company culture, vision, and values, both internally and externally; Representing the
company with investors, customers, and prospects; and Managing relationships with
business partners, such as suppliers and resellers

Other business experience in the past three years:

Employer: IPfolio Corporation

Title: Founder & Chief of Product

Dates of Service: 04 08, 2019 - 10 08, 2022

Responsibilities: Stepped down from the CEO role to focus on leading Product &
Engineering after selling thecompany that | started in 2012 to a strategic partner.
Employer: Clarivate PC

Title: Executive Product Evangelist

Dates of Service: 11 08, 2020 - 05 08, 2022

Responsibilities: Primary liaison to internal and external stakeholders of the Product
team of Clarivate's IPGroup ($1bn revenue, new ultimate parent of the company that
acquired IPfolio) and primary strategic advisor to the SVP of Product



Risk Factors

The SEC requires the company to identify risks that are specific to its business and its
financial condition. The company is still subject to all the same risks that all
companies in its business, and all companies in the economy, are exposed to. These
include risks relating to economic downturns, political and economic events and
technological developments (such as hacking and the ability to prevent hacking).
Additionally, early-stage companies are inherently more risky than more developed
companies. You should consider general risks as well as specific risks when deciding
whether to invest.

These are the risks that relate to the Company:

Uncertain Risk

An investment in the Company (also referred to as “we”, “us”, “our”, or “Company”)
involves a high degree of risk and should only be considered by those who can afford
the loss of their entire investment. Furthermore, the purchase of any of the Class B
Common Stock should only be undertaken by persons whose financial resources are
sufficient to enable them to indefinitely retain an illiquid investment. Each investor in
the Company should consider all of the information provided to such potential
investor regarding the Company as well as the following risk factors, in addition to the
other information listed in the Company’s Form C. The following risk factors are not
intended, and shall not be deemed to be, a complete description of the commercial
and other risks inherent in the investment in the Company.

Our business projections are only projections

There can be no assurance that the Company will meet our projections. There can be
no assurance that the Company will be able to find sufficient demand for our product,
that people think it’s a better option than a competing product, or that we will able to
provide the service at a level that allows the Company to make a profit and still attract
business.

Any valuation at this stage is difficult to assess

The valuation for the offering was established by the Company. Unlike listed
companies that are valued publicly through market-driven stock prices, the valuation
of private companies, especially startups, is difficult to assess and you may risk
overpaving for your investment.

The transferability of the Securities you are buying is limited

Any Class B Common Stock purchased through this crowdfunding campaign is subject
to SEC limitations of transfer. This means that the stock/note that you purchase
cannot be resold for a period of one vear. The exception to this rule is if you are
transferring the stock back to the Company, to an “accredited investor,” as part of an
offering registered with the Commission, to a member of yvour family, trust created for
the benefit of your family, or in connection with your death or divorce.

Your investment could be illiquid for a long time
You should be prepared to hold this investment for several years or longer. For the 12



months following your investment there will be restrictions on how you can resell the
securities you receive. More importantly, there is no established market for these
securities and there may never be one. As a result, if yvou decide to sell these securities
in the future, you may not be able to find a buyer. The Company may be acquired by
an existing player in the energy sector. However, that may never happen or it may
happen at a price that results in vou losing money on this investment.

If the Company cannot raise sufficient funds it will not succeed

The Company, is offering Class B Common Stock in the amount of up to five-million
United States Dollars (USD 5,000,000) in this offering, and may close on any
investments that are made. Even if the maximum amount is raised, the Company is
likely to need additional funds in the future in order to grow, and if it cannot raise
those funds for whatever reason, including reasons relating to the Company itself or
the broader economy, it may not survive. If the Company manages to raise only the
minimum amount of funds, sought, it will have to find other sources of funding for
some of the plans outlined in “Use of Proceeds.”

We may not have enough capital as needed and may be required to raise more capital.
We anticipate needing access to credit in order to support our working capital
requirements as we grow. Although interest rates are low, it is still a difficult
environment for obtaining credit on favorable terms. If we cannot obtain credit when
we need it, we could be forced to raise additional equity capital, modify our growth
plans, or take some other action. Issuing more equity may require bringing on
additional investors. Securing these additional investors could require pricing our
equity below its current price. If so, your investment could lose value as a result of this
additional dilution. In addition, even if the equity is not priced lower, your ownership
percentage would be decreased with the addition of more investors. If we are unable
to find additional investors willing to provide capital, then it is possible that we will
choose to cease our product developments and sales activity. In that case, the only
asset remaining to generate a return on your investment could be our intellectual
property. Even if we are not forced to cease our product developments and sales
activity, the unavailability of credit could result in the Company performing below
expectations, which could adversely impact the value of your investment.

Terms of subsequent financings may adversely impact your investment

We will likely need to engage in common equity, debt, or preferred stock financings in
the future, which may reduce the value of your investment in the Class B Common
Stock. Interest on debt securities could increase costs and negatively impact operating
results. Preferred stock could be issued in series from time to time with such
designation, rights, preferences, and limitations as needed to raise capital. The terms
of preferred stock could be more advantageous to those investors than to the holders
of Class B Common Stock. In addition, if we need to raise more equity capital from the
sale of Class B Common Stock, institutional or other investors may negotiate terms
that are could be more favorable than the terms of your investment, and possibly a
lower purchase price per share.

Management Discretion as to Use of Proceeds



Our success will be substantially dependent upon the discretion and judgment of our
management team with respect to the application and allocation of the proceeds of
this Offering. The use of proceeds described below is an estimate based on our current
business plan. We, however, may find it necessary or advisable to re-allocate portions
of the net proceeds reserved for one category to another, and we will have broad
discretion in doing so.

Projections: Forward Looking Information

Any projections or forward looking statements regarding our anticipated financial or
operational performance are hypothetical and are based on management's best
estimate of the probable results of our operations and will not have been reviewed by
our independent accountants. These projections will be based on assumptions which
management believes are reasonable. Some assumptions invariably will not
materialize due to unanticipated events and circumstances beyond management's
control. Therefore, actual results of operations will vary from such projections, and
such variances may be material. Any projected results cannot be guaranteed.

We are reliant on one main type of service

All of our current product and services are variants on one type of product,
independent solar and battery power systems. Our revenues are therefore dependent
upon the market for solar-battery systems.

Some of our products are still in prototype phase and might never be operational
products

It is possible that for certain features of our product there may never be an operational
product or that the product may never be used to engage in transactions. It is possible
that the failure to release the product is the result of a change in business model upon
the Company’s making a determination that the business model, or some other factor,
will not be in the best interest of the Company and its stockholders.

Developing new products and technologies entails significant risks and uncertainties
We are currently in the research and development stage of some of the features of our
product and have only manufactured a few first systems of the PowerBloc® solar-
battery nano-grid. Delays or cost overruns in the development of additional features
of the PowerBloc® and failure of the product to meet our performance estimates
during validation with customers may be caused by, among other things,
unanticipated technological hurdles, difficulties in manufacturing, changes to design
and regulatory hurdles. Any of these events could materially and adversely affect our
operating performance and results of operations.

Minority Holder; Securities with Voting Rights

The Class B Common Stock that an investor is buying has voting rights attached to
them. However, you will be part of the minority shareholders of the Company and
have agreed to appoint the Chief Executive Officer of the Company (the “CEQ”), or his
or her successor, as your voting proxy. You are trusting in management discretion in
making good business decisions that will grow your investments. Furthermore, in the
event of a liquidation of our company, you will only be paid out if there is any cash



remaining after all of the creditors of our company have been paid out.

You are trusting that management will make the best decision for the company
You are trusting in management discretion. You are buying securities as a minority
holder, and therefore must trust the management of the Company to make good
business decisions that grow vour investment.

Insufficient Funds

The company might not sell enough securities in this offering to meet its operating
needs and fulfill its plans, in which case it may cease operating and you could get
nothing. Even if we sell all the common stock we are offering now, the Company will
(possibly) need to raise more funds in the future, and if it can’t get them, we will likely
fail. Even if we do make a successful offering in the future, the terms of that offering
might result in your investment in the company being worth less, because later
investors might get better terms.

This offering involves “rolling closings, ” which may mean that earlier investors may
not have the benefit of information that later investors have.

Once we meet our target amount for this offering, we may request that StartEngine
instruct the escrow agent to disburse offering funds to us. At that point, investors
whose subscription agreements have been accepted will become our investors. All
early-stage companies are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, and it is not
uncommeon for material changes to be made to the offering terms, or to companies’
businesses, plans or prospects, sometimes on short notice. When such changes
happen during the course of an offering, we must file an amendment to our Form C
with the SEC, and investors whose subscriptions have not yet been accepted will have
the right to withdraw their subscriptions and get their money back. Investors whose
subscriptions have already been accepted, however, will already be our investors and
will have no such right.

Our new product could fail to achieve the sales projections we expected

Our growth projections are based on an assumption that with an increased advertising
and marketing budget our products will be able to gain traction in the marketplace. It
is possible that our product will fail to gain market acceptance for any number of
reasons. If the new product fails to achieve significant sales and acceptance in the
marketplace, this could materially and adversely impact the value of your investment.

We face significant market competition

We will compete with larger, established companies who currently have products on
the market and/or various respective product development programs. They may have
much better financial means and marketing/sales and human resources than us. They
may succeed in developing and marketing competing equivalent products earlier than
us, or superior products than those developed by us. There can be no assurance that
competitors will not render our technology or products obsolete or that the products
developed by us will be preferred to any existing or newly developed technologies. It
should further be assumed that competition will intensify.

We are an early stage company and have not yet generated any profits



YouSolar, Inc. was formed on May 11, 2010. Accordingly, the Company has a limited
history upon which an evaluation of its performance and future prospects can be
made. Our current and proposed operations are subject to all business risks associated
with new enterprises. These include likely fluctuations in operating results as the
Company reacts to developments in its market, managing its growth and the entry of
competitors into the market. We will only be able to pay dividends on any shares once
our directors determine that we are financially able to do so. YouSolar has incurred a
net loss and has had limited revenues generated since inception. There is no assurance
that we will be profitable in the next 3 years or generate sufficient revenues to pay
dividends to the holders of the shares.

We are an early stage company and have limited revenue and operating history

The Company has a short history, few customers, and has generated little revenue. If
you are investing in this company, it’s because you think that the PowerBloc® is a
good idea, that the team will be able to successfully market, and sell the product or
service, that we can price them right and sell them to enough people so that the
Company will succeed. Further, we have never turned a profit and there is no
assurance that we will ever be profitable.

We have existing patents that we might not be able to protect properly

One of the Company's most valuable assets is its intellectual property. The Company
owns a number of patents, trademarks, copyrights, Internet domain names, and trade
secrets. We believe one of the most valuable components of the Company is our
intellectual property portfolio. Due to the value, competitors may misappropriate or
violate the rights owned by the Company. The Company intends to continue to
protect its intellectual property portfolio from such violations. It is important to note
that unforeseeable costs associated with such practices may invade the capital of the
Company.

We have pending patent approval’s that might be vulnerable

One of the Company's most valuable assets is its intellectual property. The Company's
intellectual property such as patents, trademarks, copyrights, Internet domain names,
and trade secrets may not be registered with the proper authorities. We believe one of
the most valuable components of the Company is our intellectual property portfolio.
Due to the value, competitors may misappropriate or violate the rights owned by the
Company. The Company intends to continue to protect its intellectual property
portfolio from such violations. It is important to note that unforeseeable costs
associated with such practices may invade the capital of the Company due to its
unregistered intellectual property.

Our trademarks, copyrights and other intellectual property could be unenforceable or
ineffective

Intellectual property is a complex field of law in which few things are certain. It is
possible that competitors will be able to design around our intellectual property, find
prior art to invalidate it, or render the patents unenforceable through some other
mechanism. If competitors are able to bypass our trademark and copyright protection
without obtaining a sublicense, it is likely that the Company’s value will be materially



and adversely impacted. This could also impair the Company’s ability to compete in
the marketplace. Moreover, if our trademarks and copyrights are deemed
unenforceable, the Company will almost certainly lose any potential revenue it might
be able to raise by entering into sublicenses. This would cut off a significant potential
revenue stream for the Company.

The cost of enforcing our trademarks and copyrights could prevent us from enforcing
them

Trademark and copyright litigation has become extremely expensive. Even if we
believe that a competitor is infringing on one or more of our trademarks or copyrights,
we might choose not to file suit because we lack the cash to successfully prosecute a
multi-year litigation with an uncertain outcome; or because we believe that the cost of
enforcing our trademark(s) or copyright(s) outweighs the value of winning the suit in
light of the risks and consequences of losing it; or for some other reason. Choosing not
to enforce our trademark(s) or copyright(s) could have adverse consequences for the
Company, including undermining the credibility of our intellectual property, reducing
our ability to enter into sublicenses, and weakening our attempts to prevent
competitors from entering the market. As a result, if we are unable to enforce our
trademark(s) or copyright(s) because of the cost of enforcement, your investment in
the Company could be significantly and adversely affected.

The loss of one or more of our key personnel, or our failure to attract and retain other
highly qualified personnel in the future, could harm our business

To be successful, the Company requires capable people to run its day-to-day
operations. As the Company grows, it will need to attract and hire additional
employees in sales, marketing, design, development, operations, finance, legal,
human resources and other areas. Depending on the economic environment and the
Company’s performance, we may not be able to locate or attract qualified individuals
for such positions when we need them. We mayv also make hiring mistakes, which can
be costly in terms of resources spent in recruiting, hiring and investing in the
incorrect individual and in the time delay in locating the right employee fit. If we are
unable to attract, hire and retain the right talent or make too many hiring mistakes, it
is likely our business will suffer from not having the right employees in the right
positions at the right time. This would likely adversely impact the value of your
investment.

We rely on third parties to provide services essential to the success of our business
We rely on third parties to provide a variety of essential business functions for us,
including manufacturing, shipping, accounting, legal work, public relations,
advertising, retailing, and distribution. It is possible that some of these third parties
will fail to perform their services or will perform them in an unacceptable manner. It is
possible that we will experience delays, defects, errors, or other problems with their
work that will materially impact our operations and we may have little or no recourse
to recover damages for these losses. A disruption in these key or other suppliers’
operations could materially and adversely affect our business. As a result, your
investment could be adversely impacted by our reliance on third parties and their
performance.



The Company is vulnerable to hackers and cyber-attacks

As any business, we are vulnerable to hackers who may access our cloud-based
customer and product database or any of our internet-connected computers. Further,
we rely on a third-party technology provider to provide some of our back-up
technology. Any disruptions of services or cyber-attacks either on our technology
provider or on YouSolar could harm our reputation and materially negatively impact
our financial condition and business.

We are a new company with risks related to small early stage businesses.

We are a small business, and are, therefore, subject to the risks and expenses that
most small businesses face. Although to date, we have received approximately
$340,895 in customer deposits with respect to customer contracts having a value of
approximately $996,044, we have only generated $36,681 in revenues. We expect to
experience net losses in the foreseeable future. In order to be successful, we must,
among other things, successfully execute our business and marketing strategy,
contract with distributors, successfully market our products and operate our business
in compliance with applicable law, respond to competitive developments, and attract
and retain qualified personnel. There can be no assurance that we will be successful in
accomplishing the foregoing, and our failure to do so could have a material adverse
effect on our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

Our business strategy depends on the widespread adoption of solar-battery
technology.

The market for solar and battery products is emerging and rapidly evolving, and its
future success is uncertain. If demand for solar and battery products fails to develop
sufficiently, we may be unable to generate enough revenues to achieve and sustain
profitability. The factors influencing the widespread adoption of solar and battery
technology include, (a) cost-effectiveness, performance and reliability of solar and
battery technologies as compared with conventional and other alternative energy
technologies, (b) success of alternative distributed generation technologies such as
fuel cells, wind power and micro turbines with or without batteries, (c) fluctuations in
economic and market conditions which impact the viability of conventional and non-
solar-battery alternative energy sources, such as increases or decreases in the prices of
oil and other fossil fuels, (d) continued deregulation of the electric power industry and
broader energy industry, and (e) availability of government subsidies and incentives
for both solar and other energy sources or tariffs or other duties imposed on
components used in our system.

The success of our business is highly correlated to general economic conditions.
Demand for our products is highly correlated with general economic conditions, as a
substantial portion of our revenue is derived from discretionary spending, which
typically declines during times of economic instability. Declines in economic
conditions in the United States or in other countries in which we operate and may
operate in the future may adversely impact our financial results. Because such declines
in demand are difficult to predict, we or our industry may have increased excess
capacity as a result. An increase in excess capacity may result in declines in prices for
our products. Our ability to grow or maintain our business may be adversely affected



by sustained economic weakness and uncertainty, including the effect of wavering
consumer confidence, high unemployment, and other factors. The inability to grow or
maintain our business would adversely affect our business, financial conditions, and
results of operations, and thereby an investment in our common stock.

Natural disasters and other events beyond our control could materially adversely
affect us.

Natural disasters or other catastrophic events may cause damage or disruption to our
operations, international commerce and the global economy, and thus could have a
strong negative effect on us. Our business operations are subject to interruption by
natural disasters, fire, power shortages, pandemics and other events beyond our
control. Although we maintain crisis management and disaster response plans, such
events could make it difficult or impossible for us to deliver our services to our
customers and could decrease demand for our services. In December 2019, a novel
strain of coronavirus, COVID-19, was reported in Wuhan, China. The World Health
Organization subsequently declared the outbreak to constitute a pandemic. The
extent of the impact of COVID-19 on our operational and financial performance into
the future will depend on certain developments, including the duration and spread of
the outbreak, impact on our customers and our sales cycles, impact on our customer,
employee or industry events, and effect on our vendors, all of which are uncertain and
cannot be predicted. At this point, the extent to which COVID-19 may impact our
financial condition or results of operations is uncertain. If the COVID-19 outbreak
continues to spread, we may need to limit operations or implement limitations,
including work from home policies. There is a risk that other countries or regions may
be less effective at containing COVID-19, or it may be more difficult to contain if the
outbreak reaches a larger population or broader geography, in which case the risks
described herein could be elevated significantly.

The growth of our business depends on our ability to finance new products and
Services.

We operate in a rapidly changing industry. Technological advances, the introduction
of new products and new design and manufacturing techniques could adversely affect
our business unless we are able to adapt to the changing conditions. To remain
competitive, we must continue to incur significant costs in product development,
equipment, facilities and invest in working capital. These costs may increase, resulting
in greater fixed costs and operating expenses.

Products we manufacture may contain design or manufacturing defects, which could
result in customer claims.

Any defects in the products we manufacture, whether caused by a design,
manufacturing or component failure or error, may result in returns, claims, delayed
shipments to customers or reduced or cancelled customer orders. If these defects
occur, we will incur additional costs and if in large quantity or too frequent, we may
sustain loss of business, loss of reputation and may incur liability.

The reduction or elimination of government and economic incentives could cause our
revenue to decline.



The cost to produce solar energy in many parts is below the cost of electricity in the
U.S. from traditional sources. However, there is significant cost of integrating variable
solar energy sources into the electric power system or of customer-owned batteries to
store variable energy locally. As a result, to encourage the adoption of solar and
battery technologies, the U.S. government and numerous state governments continue
to provide subsidies in the form of cost reductions, tax write-offs and other incentives
to end users, distributors, systems integrators and manufacturers of solar energy
products. Reduction, elimination and/or periodic interruption of these government
subsidies and economic incentives because of policy changes, fiscal tightening or
other reasons may result in the diminished competitiveness of solar energy, and
materially and adversely affect the growth of these markets and our revenues. Even
though by default our system does not net-meter and, in our best understanding, does
not require utility approval, electric utility companies that have significant political
lobbying powers may push for a change in the relevant legislation in our markets, in
particular to related to the aforementioned economic subsidies. The reduction or
elimination of government subsidies could cause our revenues to decline and
materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

We face intense competition, and many of our competitors have substantially greater
resources than we do.

We compete with major international and domestic companies. Some of our current
and potential competitors have greater market recognition and customer bases, longer
operating histories and substantially greater financial, technical, marketing,
distribution, purchasing, manufacturing, personnel and other resources than we do. In
addition, many of our competitors are developing and are currently producing
products based on new solar energy or battery technologies that may ultimately have
costs similar to, or lower than, our projected costs. As a result, they may be able to
respond more quickly to changing customer demands or to devote greater resources to
the development, promotion and sales of solar and solar-related products than we can.
Our business relies on sales of our solar and battery products and our competitors
with more diversified product offerings may be better positioned to withstand a
decline in the demand for solar products. It is possible that new competitors or
alliances among existing competitors could emerge and rapidly acquire significant
market share, which would harm our business. If we fail to compete successfully, our
business would suffer and we may lose or be unable to gain market share.

Because our industry is highly competitive, we may lose market share to larger
companies that are better equipped to weather a deterioration in market conditions
due to increased competition.

Our industry is highly competitive and fragmented and is subject to rapid change. We
may in the future compete for potential customers with solar and HVAC systems
installers and servicers, electricians, utilities and other providers of solar energy
equipment or electric power. Some of these competitors may have significantly
greater financial, technical and marketing resources and greater name recognition
than we have. Competition in the solar and battery energy industry may increase in
the future, partly due to low barriers to entry, as well as from other alternative energy



resources now in existence or developed in the future. Increased competition could
result in price reductions, reduced margins or loss of market share and greater
competition for qualified technical personnel. There can be no assurance that we will
be able to compete successfully against current and future competitors. If we are
unable to compete effectively, or if competition results in a deterioration of market
conditions, our business and results of operations would be adversely affected.

If we do not retain key personnel, our business will suffer.

The success of our business is heavily dependent on the leadership of our key
management personnel, including, Arnold Leitner, our chief executive officer and
director. If any of them were to leave us, it would be difficult to replace them, and our
business would be harmed. We will also need to retain additional highly-skilled
individuals if we are to effectively grow. Our future success depends on our continuing
ability to identify, hire, develop, motivate and retain highly skilled personnel for all
areas of our organization.

Our failure to protect our intellectual property rights could diminish the value of our
products, weaken our competitive position and reduce our revenue, and infringement
claims asserted against us or by us, could have a material adverse effect.

We regard the protection of our intellectual property, which includes patents, trade
secrets, copyrights, trademarks, domain names and intellectual property licenses, as
critical to our success. We strive to protect our intellectual property rights by relying
on federal, state and common law rights, as well as contractual restrictions. We license
one patent and design for a micro-converter used in our product. The license is
irrevocable and fully paid up. In addition the patents issued or licensed to us and any
future patents for which we may apply, or which we may license, may not protect
commercially important aspects of our technology. Furthermore, the validity and
enforceability of such patents may be challenged by third parties, which may result in
them being invalidated or modified by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office ("PTO™),
various legal actions against us, the need to develop or obtain alternative technology,
and/or obtain appropriate licenses under third party patents, which may not be
available on acceptable terms or at all. We have registered domain names and
trademarks in the United States and abroad and may also pursue additional
registrations both in and outside the United States. Effective trade secret, copyright,
trademark, domain name and patent protection is expensive to develop and maintain,
both in terms of initial and ongoing registration requirements and the costs of
defending our rights. We may be required to protect our intellectual property in an
increasing number of jurisdictions, a process that is expensive and may not be
successtul or which we may not pursue in every location. Monitoring unauthorized
use of our intellectual property is difficult and costly. Our efforts to protect our
proprietary rights may not be adequate to prevent misappropriation of our intellectual
property. Further, we may not be able to detect unauthorized use of, or take
appropriate steps to enforce, our intellectual property rights. In addition, our
competitors may independently develop similar technology. The laws in the United
States and elsewhere change rapidly, and any future changes could adversely affect us
and our intellectual property. Our failure to meaningfully protect our intellectual
property could result in competitors offering services that incorporate our most



technologically advanced features, which could seriously reduce demand for our
products. In addition, we may in the future need to initiate infringement claims or
litigation. Litigation, whether we are a plaintiff or a defendant, can be expensive,
time-consuming and may divert the efforts of our technical staff and managerial
personnel, which could harm our business, whether or not such litigation results in a
determination that is unfavorable to us. In addition, litigation is inherently uncertain,
and thus we may not be able to stop its competitors from infringing upon our
intellectual property rights.

We license certain technology from a third party.

We license a patent and related know-how from elQ Energy, Inc. (“elQ™), pursuant to
a non-exclusive license agreement, which license expires in March 2032. However,
this license is irrevocable and fully paid up which means that we do not have to make
any future payments either to maintain the license or for the number of units made
under the license. We currently also purchase a bi-directional converter from elQ,
which we intend to use until our own designs are developed. If we default under any
of our obligations under the License Agreement, we may be unable to use continue to
manufacture, market and sell our products, as currently designed, which could have a
material adverse effect. In addition, because the license is non-exclusive, elQ Energy,
Inc., could use or license the patent and know-how to others for use in competing
products, which could have a material adverse effect on us.

We are exposed to risks associated with product liability claims in the event that the
use or installation of our products results in injury or damage.

Since our products are electricity-producing devices, it is possible that users, installers
or services providers, could be injured or killed by our products, whether by product
malfunctions, defects, improper installation or other causes. As a manufacturer of
products that are used by consumers, we face an inherent risk of exposure to product
liability claims or class action suits in the event that the use of the products we sell or
install results in injury or damage. Moreover, to the extent that a claim is brought
against us we may not have adequate resources in the event of a successful claim
against us. The successful assertion of product liability claims against us could result
in potentially significant monetary damages and, if our insurance protection is
inadequate, could require us to make significant payments.

We depend upon a limited number of third-party suppliers for key materials, and any
disruption from such suppliers could prevent us from manufacturing and selling cost-
effective products and reduce our revenues.

Our products use materials and components procured from a limited number of third-
party suppliers. We currently purchase these components from a small number of
suppliers. If we fail to maintain our relationships with these suppliers, or fail to secure
additional supply sources from other suppliers, we may only be able to deliver our
products at a higher cost or after a long delay. Any of these factors could prevent us
from delivering our products to our customers within required timeframes, resulting
in potential order cancellations and lost revenue.

Control by Our Founder.



Pursuant to our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, each share of
Class A Common Stock holds ten (10) votes, compared to one (1) vote held by each
outstanding holder of Class B Common Stock and for each share of Class B Common
Stock into which the Preferred Stock is convertible. As of the date hereof, there are
approximately 47,423,083 shares of capital stock outstanding, including, 8,855,781
shares of Class A Common Stock, all of which are held by Arnold Leitner & Partners
LLC, an entity controlled by Arnold Leitner, our founder, current Chief Executive
Officer, and director. Therefore, Mr. Leitner controls over 69% of the stockholder
voting power, and is able control our management and affairs and most matters
requiring stockholder approval, including, but not limited to, the election of directors
and approval of significant corporate transactions. This concentration of ownership
and voting power may have the effect of delaying or preventing a change in control,
which may not be in the best interest of our other stockholders.

The holders of Preferred Stock have preferential rights to dividends and distributions
upon a liguidation, dissolution and certain acquisitions.

Upon a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of us, our sale of all or substantially all
of our assets and certain acquisitions (a “Liquidation Event”), the holders of our Series
A Preferred Stock are entitled to receive a preference equal to 1 times, and the holders
of our Series Seed Preferred Stock are entitled to receive a preference equal to 1.5
times, the respective original issuance prices for the applicable series of Preferred
Stock (subject to adjustments as described in our Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation), before any funds are distributed to the holders of Common Stock. The
original issuance prices for our Preferred Stock, range from $0.05 per share to $0.3325
per share. If a liquidation event occurred as of the date hereof, the holders of our
outstanding Preferred Stock would be entitled to receive the first approximately $6.4
million in distributions, with the remaining amounts being split pro rata amongst the
holders of Common Stock. In addition, if dividends are declared by our board of
directors (payable in other than Class A Common Stock, Class B Common Stock or
certain other securities), non-cumulative dividends in an amount equal to six percent
(6%) of the original issuance price of each share of Preferred Stock, shall be paid to the
holders of Preferred Stock, prior to the payment of any dividends to the holders of
Common Stock. Therefore, if our board of directors declares any dividends or approves
a liguidation event, there may not be any amounts remaining to be paid to the holders
of Common Stock after distribution are made to the holders of Preferred Stock.

The holders of Preferred Stock hold Anti-Dilution Rights.

Each series of Preferred Stock has weighted average anti-dilution protection with
respect to certain additional issuances of our securities for issue prices that are below
the original issuance price for such series of Preferred Stock (as may be adjusted
pursuant to our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation). The application
of the weighted anti-dilution calculation would result in a reduction of the conversion
price of the applicable series of Preferred Stock, thereby resulting in an increase in the
number of shares of Class B Common Stock into which such series of Preferred Stock
is convertible. If in the future, we issue securities at below the conversion price of any
series of Preferred Stock that currently exist or may be authorized and issued, the
holders of such Preferred Stock will be entitled to the issuance of additional shares of



Class B Common Stock upon conversion of such Preferred Stock, through a reduction
in the effective conversion price then in effect for such Preferred Stock, which would
result in dilution to the holders of Common Stock, through a decrease in their relative
percentage ownership of us.

Terms of subsequent financings may adversely impact your investment.

We will likely need to engage in common equity, debt, or preferred stock financing in
the future, which may reduce the value of your investment in the Common Stock.
Interest on debt securities could increase costs and negatively impact operating
results. Preferred stock could be issued in series from time to time with such
designation, rights, preferences, and limitations as needed to raise capital. The terms
of preferred stock could be more advantageous to those investors than to the holders
of Common Stock. In addition, if we need to raise more equity capital from the sale of
Common Stock, institutional or other investors may negotiate terms at least as, and
possibly more, favorable than the terms of your investment.

Risks of Borrowing.

As of December 1, 2021, we had $85,342 in outstanding loans, of which $75,342 are
held by Officers and/or Directors of the Company, co-founders or family members of
Officers. In addition, we may have to seek loans from financial institutions or the
government.. Typical loan agreements might contain restrictive covenants which may
impair our operating flexibility. A default under any loan agreement could result in a
charging order that would have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations or financial condition.

Management Discretion as to Use of Proceeds.

Qur success will be substantially dependent upon the discretion and judgment of our
management team with respect to the application and allocation of the proceeds of
this Offering. The use of proceeds described below is an estimate based on our current
business plan. We, however, may find it necessary or advisable to re-allocate portions
of the net proceeds reserved for one category to another, and we will have broad
discretion in doing so.

Limited Transferability and Liguidity.

Each investor agrees that it will acquire our Class B Common Stock for investment
purposes only and not with a view towards distribution. Certain conditions imposed by
the Securities Act must be satisfied prior to any sale, transfer, conversion or other
disposition of our Common Stock. No public market exists for our Common Stock and
no market is expected to develop.

Dilution

You should understand the potential for dilution. Each investor's stake in us, could be
diluted due to our issuing additional shares. In other words, if we issue more shares,
the percentage of the Company that you own will decrease, even though our value
may increase. You will own a smaller piece of a larger company. This increase in the
number of shares outstanding could result from a stock offering (such as an initial
public offering, another crowdfunding round, a venture capital round or angel



investment), employees exercising stock options, or by conversion of certain
instruments (e.g., convertible notes, preferred shares or warrants) into stock. If we
decide to issue more shares, you could experience value dilution, with each share
being worth less than before, and control dilution, with the total percentage an
investor owns being less than before. There may also be earnings dilution, with a
reduction in the amount earned per share (although this typically occurs only if we
offer dividends, and most early stage companies are unlikely to offer dividends,
preferring to invest any earnings into the Company). The type of dilution that hurts
early-stage investors mostly occurs when the company sells more shares in a "down
round,” meaning at a lower valuation than in earlier offerings. Each series of Preferred
Stock has weighted average anti-dilution protection with respect to certain additional
issuances of our securities for issue prices that are below the original issuance price for
such series of Preferred Stock (as may be adjusted pursuant to our Amended and
Restated Certificate of Incorporation). The application of the weighted anti-dilution
calculation would result in a reduction of the conversion price of the applicable series
of Preferred Stock, thereby resulting in an increase in the number of shares of Class B
Common Stock into which such series of Preferred Stock is convertible. If in the
future, we issue securities at below the conversion price of any series of Preferred
Stock that currently exist or may be authorized and issued in the future, the holders of
such Preferred Stock will be entitled to the issuance of additional shares of Class B
Commeon Stock upon conversion of such Preferred Stock, through a reduction in the
effective conversion price then in effect for such Preferred Stock, which would result
in dilution to the holders of Common Stock, through a decrease in the holder’s relative
percentage ownership of us. If you are making an investment expecting to own a
certain percentage of the Company or expecting each share to hold a certain amount
of value, it is important to realize how the value of those shares can decrease by
actions taken by the Company. Dilution can make drastic changes to the value of each
share, ownership percentage, voting control, and earnings per share.

Capitalization

The Company intends to amend and restate its current certificate of incorporation to
issue shares of Class B Common Stock to the investors in this Offering. The Company
is currently authorized to issue 168,441,310 shares of stock, of which 132,000,000
shares are designated as Common Stock and 36,441,510 shares are designated
Preferred Stock. Of the 132,000,000 shares of Common Stock, 67,000,000 shares are
designated Class A Common Stock and 65,000,000 shares are designated Class B
Common Stock. Of the 36,441,510 shares of Preferred Stock, 6,552,714 shares are
designated as Series Seed-1 Preferred Stock, 2,611,616 shares are designated as Series
Seed-2 Preferred Stock, 2,018,566 shares are designated as Series Seed-3 Preferred
Stock, 2,309,579 shares are designated as Series Seed-4 Preferred Stock, 1,814,742
shares are designated as Series Seed-5 Preferred Stock, 4,559,507 shares are
designated as Series Seed-6 Preferred Stock (the Series Seed-1 Preferred Stock, Series
Seed-2 Preferred Stock, Series Seed-3 Preferred Stock, Series Seed-4 Preferred Stock,
Series Seed-5 Preferred Stock and Series Seed-6 Preferred Stock, collectively, are
referred to herein as the "Series Seed Preferred Stock"), and 16,575,586 shares are
designated as Series A Preferred Stock, After the Company amends and restates its



current certificate of incorporation, the Company will be authorized to issue
approximately 110,181,974 shares of stock, of which approximately 80,452,279 shares
shall be designated as Common Stock and approximately 29,729,695 shares shall be
designated as Preferred Stock. Of the approximate 80,452,279 shares to be designated
as Common Stock, 8,855,781 shares shall be designated Class A Common Stock and
approximately 71,596,498 shares shall be designated Class B Common Stock. Of the
approximate 29,729,695 shares to be designated as Preferred Stock, the same number
of shares shall be designated each series of Series Seed Preferred Stock as the current
restated certificate, but approximately 9,862,971 shares shall instead be designated
Series A Preferred Stock. We also have outstanding or promised options to purchase
14,189,047 shares of Class B Common Stock, having an exercise price per share
between $0.0001 and $0.17 per share. We have outstanding warrants to purchase
5,590,350 shares of Class B Common Stock having exercise prices ranging from $0.01
to $0.25 per share. We also have two outstanding SAFE Notes in the aggregate
principal amount of $3,000,000. One of the SAFE Notes has an outstanding principal
balance of $2,000,000, and is convertible into preferred stock upon a bona fide equity
financing of preferred stock, at a price per share equal to the lesser of (a) a 20%
discount to the price per share of the preferred stock offered in such equity financing,
and (b) a price per share based on a $20,000,000 pre-money valuation. The other SAFE
Note has an aggregate principal balance of $1,000,000, is convertible into preferred
stock upon a bona fide equity financing of preferred stock, at a price per share equal to
the lesser of (x) a 20% discount to the price of the preferred stock offered in such
equity financing, and (y) a price per share based on a $30,000,000 pre-money
valuation. We also have two convertible promissory notes with an aggregate principal
amount of $500,000, which each has a simple annual interest rate of 10%, is
convertible into any capital stock upon a bona fide equity financing of at least
$1,000,000, in which the interest is required to be converted into capital stock, but the
principal is convertible at the option of the holder. The following summarizes the
rights of our capital stock as provided in our Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation. Dividend Rights. The holders of Preferred Stock are entitled to receive
non-cumulative dividends, out of any funds legally available therefore, prior and in
preference to any declaration or payment of any dividend (payable other than in Class
A Common Stock, Class B Common Stock or other securities and rights convertible
into Common Stock) on the Class A Common Stock or Class B Common Stock, at the
applicable Dividend Rate (as defined below), payable when and if declared by the
Board of Directors. "Dividend Rate™ means, with respect to any share of Preferred
Stock, an amount per annum equal to six percent (6%) of the Original Issue Price (as
defined below) applicable to such share of Preferred Stock {(each as adjusted for any
stock splits, stock dividends, combinations, subdivisions, recapitalizations or the like).
After payment of such dividends, any additional dividends or distributions shall be
distributed among all holders of Class A Common Stock, Class B Common Stock and
Preferred Stock in proportion to the number of shares of Class A Common Stock and
Class B Common Stock that would be held by each such holder if all shares of
Preferred Stock were converted to Class B Common Stock at the then effective
conversion rate. "Original Issue Price” means $0.3325 per share for each share of the
Series Seed-1 Preferred Stock, $0.2000 per share for each share of the Series Seed-2



Preferred Stock, $0.1750 per share for each share of the Series Seed-5 Preferred Stock,
$0.1500 per share for each share of the Series Seed-4 Preferred Stock, $0.0613 per
share for each share of the Series Seed-5 Preferred Stock, $0.0500 per share for each
share of the Series Seed-6 Preferred Stock and $0.0905 per share for each share of the
Series A Preferred Stock ( each as adjusted for any stock splits, stock dividends,
combinations, subdivisions, recapitalizations or the like with respect to such series of
Preferred Stock). Liquidation Rights. Upon any Liquidation Event (as defined below),
the holders of each series of Preferred Stock shall receive out of the proceeds or assets
legally available for distribution (the "Proceeds"), prior and in preference to any
distribution of the Proceeds to the holders of Common Stock, an amount per share
equal to the sum of (i) with respect to the Series Seed Preferred Stock, 1.5 times the
Original Issue Price, and (ii) with respect to the Series A Preferred Stock, 1 times the
applicable Original Issue Price, plus declared but unpaid dividends on such share. If,
upon the occurrence of such event, the Proceeds are insufficient to permit the
payment of the full preferential amounts, then the entire Proceeds shall be distributed
ratably among the holders of the Preferred Stock in proportion to the full preferential
amount that each such holder is otherwise entitled to receive under this paragraph.
Upon completion of the distribution required by the foregoing paragraph, all of the
remaining Proceeds, shall be distributed among the holders of Class A Common Stock
and Class B Common Stock pro rata based on the number of shares of Class A
Common Stock and Class B Common Stock held by each. Notwithstanding the above,
for purposes of determining the amount each holder of shares of Preferred Stock is
entitled to receive upon a Liguidation Event, each such holder shall be deemed to
have converted (regardless of whether such holder actually converted) its shares of
Preferred Stock, into shares of Class B Common Stock immediately prior to the
Liquidation Event if, as a result of an actual conversion, such holder would receive, in
the aggregate, an amount greater than the amount that would be distributed to such
holder if such holder did not convert such series of Preferred Stock into shares of Class
B Common Stock. If any such holder shall be deemed to have converted shares of
Preferred Stock into Class B Common Stock, then such holder shall not be entitled to
receive any distribution that would otherwise be made to holders of Preferred Stock
that have not converted into shares of Class B Common Stock. A “Liquidation Event”
includes, (A) the closing of the sale, lease, transfer, exclusive license or other
disposition of all or substantially all of our assets, (B) the consummation of our
merger or consolidation with or into another entity (except a merger or consolidation
in which the holders of our capital stock immediately prior to such merger or
consolidation continue to hold at least fifty percent (50%) of the voting power of our
capital stock or the surviving or acquiring entity immediately following such merger or
consolidation in substantially the same proportions, and with substantially the same
terms, as held immediately prior to such merger or consolidation), (C) the closing of
the transfer, in one transaction or a series of related transactions, to a person or group
of affiliated persons (other than an underwriter of our securities), of our securities if,
after such closing, such person or group would hold fifty percent (50%) or more of our
then outstanding voting stock or the outstanding voting stock of the surviving or
acquiring entity, or (D) our liguidation, dissolution or winding up; provided, however,
that a transaction shall not constitute a Liquidation Event if its sole purpose is to



change our state of incorporation or to create a holding company that will be owned
in substantially the same proportions by persons who held our securities immediately
prior to such transaction. The treatment of any particular transaction or series of
related transactions as a Liquidation Event may be waived by the vote or written
consent of the holders of a majority of the outstanding Preferred Stock (voting
together as a single class and not as separate series, and on an as-converted basis).
Conversion of Preferred Stock Each share of Preferred Stock is convertible, at any
time, at the option of the holder thereof, into such number of fully paid and non-
assessable shares of Class B Common Stock as is determined by dividing the Original
Issue Price for such series by the applicable Conversion Price for such series. The
initial "Conversion Price" per share for each series of Preferred Stock shall be the
Original Issue Price of such series, subject to adjustment as set forth below. Each
share of Preferred Stock shall automatically be converted into shares of Class B
Common Stock at the then effective Conversion Price immediately upon the earlier of
(a) the closing of the sale of Class B Common Stock in a firm commitment
underwritten public offering pursuant to a registration statement on Form S-1 under
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, which results in at least $30,000,000 of gross
proceeds to us (a "Qualified Public Offering”) or (ii) the date, or the occurrence of an
event, specified by vote or written consent or agreement of the holders of a majority of
the then outstanding shares of Preferred Stock (voting together as a single class and
not as separate series, and on an as-converted basis). Conversion Price Adjustments
for Certain Dilutive Issuances. The Conversion Prices of the Preferred Stock are
subject to adjustment in the case of subdivisions or combinations of common stock,
stock dividends and certain other distributions, and in connection with certain
reorganizations, reclassifications and similar events. The Conversion Price for each
series of Preferred Stock, is also subject to adjustment in the case of certain issuances
of securities at less than the then applicable Conversion Price for such series of
Preferred Stock, based on a weighted average anti-dilution formula. Voting Rights.
General Matters. The holders of Class A Common Stock are entitled to ten (10) votes
for each share held of record on all matters submitted to a vote of the stockholders.
The holders of Class B Common are entitled to one (1) vote for each share held of
record on all matters as may be provided for by law. Each holder of Preferred Stock is
entitled to a number of votes equal to the number of shares of Class B Common Stock
into which the shares of Preferred Stock held of record, are convertible, and shall be
entitled to vote (except with respect to the election of directors by the separate class
vote of the holders of Common Stock), on all matters submitted to a vote of the
holders of Common Stock. Director Election Rights. As long as at least 9,110,328
shares of Preferred Stock (as adjusted for any stock splits, stock dividends,
combinations, subdivisions, recapitalizations or the like) remain outstanding, the
holders of Preferred Stock shall be entitled to elect one (1) director (the "Preferred
Director”), and the holders of outstanding Common Stock, voting together as a single
class, shall be entitled to elect two (2) directors. To the extent the board has more
than three (3) directors, the holders of Preferred Stock and Common Stock (voting
together as a single class and not as separate series, and on an as-converted basis)
shall be entitled to elect any remaining directors. Any vacancy, including newly
created directorships resulting from any increase in the authorized number of



directors or amendment of our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation,
and vacancies created by removal or resignation of a director, may be filled by a
majority of the directors then in office, although less than a quorum, or by a sole
remaining director; provided, however, that where such vacancy occurs among the
directors elected by the holders of a class or series of stock, the holders of shares of
such class or series may override the Board's action to fill such vacancy by written
consent or through a vote at a stockholder meeting. Any director may be removed,
either with or without cause, by, and only by, the affirmative vote of the holders of the
shares of the class or series of stock entitled to elect such director or directors. Special
Voting Rights of Preferred Stock. As long as 9,110,328 shares of Preferred Stock (as
adjusted for any stock splits, stock dividends, combinations, subdivisions,
recapitalizations or the like) remain outstanding, we may not take any of the actions
set forth below without the approval of the holders of a majority of the then
outstanding shares of Preferred Stock (voting together as a single class and not as
separate series, and on an as-converted basis): (a) consummate a Liquidation Event;
(b) amend, alter or repeal any provision of our Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation or Bylaws so as to adversely alter or change the rights, preferences,
privileges and restrictions of the shares of Preferred Stock; (c) increase or decrease
(other than by redemption or conversion) the total number of authorized shares of
Common Stock or Preferred Stock or designated shares of any series of Preferred
Stock; (d) authorize, create or issue any equity security, or instrument convertible
into any security, having a preference over, or on a parity with, any series of Preferred
Stock with respect to dividends, liquidation or redemption, other than the issuance of
any authorized but unissued shares of Series A Preferred Stock; (e) (i) reclassify, alter
or amend any existing security that is pari passu with the Preferred Stock with respect
to dividends, liquidation or redemption, if such reclassification, alteration or
amendment would render such other security senior to the Preferred Stock in respect
of any such right, preference or privilege or (ii) reclassify, alter or amend any existing
security of this corporation that is junior to the Preferred Stock with respect to
dividends, liquidation or redemption, if such reclassification, alteration or amendment
would render such other security senior to or pari passu with the Preferred Stock in
respect of any such right, preference or privilege; (f) redeem, purchase or otherwise
acquire (or pay into or set aside for a sinking fund for such purpose) any Preferred
Stock or Common Stock; except for the repurchase of certain shares of Common Stock
from employees, officers, directors, consultants and service providers, under certain
circumstances; (g) change the authorized number of, or method of electing directors;
or (h) pay or declare any dividend other than dividends payable on Common Stock
solely in the form of additional shares of Common Stock. Registration Rights Pursuant
to an Investors’ Rights Agreement entered into between us and the holders of each
class of our Preferred Stock, we agreed that if we engage in a firm commitment
underwritten public offering of our Common Stock or other equity securities, then
upon a written request of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of
Common Stock issued or issuable upon conversion of the Preferred Stock (collectively,
“Registrable Securities”), made any time after six months from the effective date of
such underwritten public offering, and subject to certain exceptions, we shall use
commercially reasonable efforts to effect as soon and practical, a registration of such



Registrable Securities; provided that the anticipated aggregate offering price of such
Registrable Securities is at least $15,000,000. In addition, subject to certain
underwriting requirements, we agreed that if we propose to register any of our
securities held by our stockholders (other than the holders of Registrable Securities) in
connection with a public offering of securities solely for cash, we shall, upon the
written request of any holder of Registrable Securities, use our commercially
reasonably efforts to cause all of such Registrable Securities, to be registered under
the Act. We further agreed that subject to certain exceptions, upon receipt of a request
from the holders of at least 30% of our Registrable Securities, we shall use
commercially reasonable efforts to effect as soon as practical, a registration of such
Registrable Securities pursuant to Form §-3.

We may never have an operational product or service.

It is possible that there may never be an operational a plug-and-play, high-power, or
stackable PowerBloc or which may fail to miss other design requirements; or that the
product may never be used to engage in transactions. It is possible that the failure to
release the product is the result of a change in business model upon Company’s
making a determination that the business model, or some other factor, will not be in
the best interest of Company and its stockholders/members/creditors.

The amount raised in this offering may include investments from company insiders or

immediate family members.

Officers, directors, executives, and existing owners with a controlling stake in the
company (or their immediate family members) may make investments in this offering.
Any such investments will be included in the raised amount reflected on the campaign

page.



Ownership and Capital Structure; Rights of the Securities

Ownership

The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of the
company’s holders of 20% or more of any class of voting securities as of the date of
this Offering Statement filing.

Nm:fher Type of
Stockholder Name ... | Security [Percentage
|Securities Owned
Owned
Arnold Leitner & Partners LLC (ALNP) - (ALNP is
managed by Arnold Leitner, CEO and President, who
owns 45% of ALNP. Arnold has the power and Class A
authority to make all decisions for ALNP. Pradyna 8,855,781 |Common|70.01%
Leitner, Arnold's wife, owns 45% of ALNP. Lisa Eidt Stock
and Christian Ruebesam, co-founders, each own 5% of
ALNP).

The Company's Securities

The Company has authorized Class A Common Stock, Class B Common Stock, Series
Seed Preferred Stock (Series 1- 6), Series A Preferred Stock, SAFE Note - Series 1, SAFE
Notes - Series 2, and 2022 Bridge SAFE. As part of the Regulation Crowdfunding raise,
the Company will be offering up to 6,756,753 of Class B Common Stock.

Class A Common Stock
The amount of security authorized is 67,000,000 with a total of 8,855,781 outstanding.
Voting Rights

The holders of Class A Common Stock are entitled to ten (10) votes for each share held
of record on all matters submitted to a vote of the stockholders.

Material Rights
There are no material rights associated with Class A Common Stock.
Class B Common Stock

The amount of security authorized is 65,000,000 with a total of 29,431,197
outstanding.

Voting Rights

The holders of Class B Common are entitled to one (1) vote for each share held of
record on all matters as may be provided for by law.



Material Rights

Voting Rights of Securities Sold in this Offering

Voting Proxy. Each Subscriber shall appoint the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company (the “CEQ”), or his or her successor, as the Subscriber’s true and lawful
proxy and attorney, with the power to act alone and with full power of substitution, to,
consistent with this instrument and on behalf of the Subscriber, (i) vote all Securities,
(ii) give and receive notices and communications, (iii) execute any instrument or
document that the CEO determines is necessary or appropriate in the exercise of its
authority under this instrument, and (iv) take all actions necessary or appropriate in
the judgment of the CEO for the accomplishment of the foregoing. The proxy and
power granted by the Subscriber pursuant to this Section are coupled with an interest.
Such proxy and power will be irrevocable. The proxy and power, so long as the
Subscriber is an individual, will survive the death, incompetency and disability of the
Subscriber and, so long as the Subscriber is an entity, will survive the merger or
reorganization of the Subscriber or any other entity holding the Securities. However,
the Proxy will terminate upon the closing of a firm-commitment underwritten public
offering pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of
1933 covering the offer and sale of Common Stock or the effectiveness of a
registration statement under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 covering the
Common Stock.

Options

The total amount outstanding includes stock options issued to purchase 12,183,165
shares of Class B Common Stock, having an exercise price ranging from $0.0001 to
$0.11 per share.

The total amount outstanding includes stock options reserved but unissued to

purchase 2,815,075 shares of Class B Common Stock, having an exercise price ranging
from $0.0001 to $0.11 per share.

Warrants

The total amount outstanding includes warrants to purchase 5,590,350 shares of Class
B Common Stock having exercise prices ranging from $0.01 to $0.25 per share.

Series Seed Preferred Stock (Series 1- 6)

The amount of security authorized is 19,866,724 with a total of 19,866,724
outstanding.

Voting Rights

Each holder of Preferred Stock is entitled to a number of votes equal to the number of
shares of Class B Common Stock into which the shares of Preferred Stock held of
record, are convertible, and shall be entitled to vote (except with respect to the
election of directors by the separate class vote of the holders of Common Stock), on all



matters submitted to a vote of the holders of Common Stock. (See additional
information below)

Material Rights

Series Seed 1-6 Preferred Stock have been authorized in the following amounts for
each class:

Series Seed 1: 6,552,714 shares authorized, and outstanding.
Series Seed 2: 2,611,616 shares authorized, and outstanding.
Series Seed 3: 2,018,566 shares authorized, and outstanding.
Series Seed 4: 2,309,579 shares authorized, and outstanding.
Series Seed 5: 1,814,742 shares authorized, and outstanding.
Series Seed 6: 4,559,507 shares authorized, and outstanding.

We have outstanding warrants to purchase 5,590,350 shares of Class B Common Stock
having exercise prices ranging from $0.01 to $0.25 per share.

Dividend Rights.

The holders of Preferred Stock are entitled to receive non-cumulative dividends, out
of any funds legally available therefore, prior and in preference to any declaration or
payvment of any dividend (payable other than in Class A Common Stock, Class B
Common Stock or other securities and rights convertible into Common Stock) on the
Class A Common Stock or Class B Common Stock, at the applicable Dividend Rate (as
defined below), payable when and if declared by the Board of Directors.

"Dividend Rate" means, with respect to any share of Preferred Stock, an amount per
annum equal to six percent (6%) of the Original Issue Price (as defined below)
applicable to such share of Preferred Stock (each as adjusted for any stock splits, stock
dividends, combinations, subdivisions, recapitalizations or the like). After payment of
such dividends, any additional dividends or distributions shall be distributed among
all holders of Class A Commeon Stock, Class B Common Stock and Preferred Stock in
proportion to the number of shares of Class A Common Stock and Class B Common
Stock that would be held by each such holder if all shares of Preferred Stock were
converted to Class B Common Stock at the then effective conversion rate.

"Original Issue Price” means $0.3325 per share for each share of the Series Seed-1
Preferred Stock, $0.2000 per share for each share of the Series Seed-2 Preferred Stock,
$0.1750 per share for each share of the Series Seed-3 Preferred Stock, $0.1500 per
share for each share of the Series Seed-4 Preferred Stock, $0.0613 per share for each
share of the Series Seed-5 Preferred Stock, $0.0500 per share for each share of the
Series Seed-6 Preferred Stock and $0.0905 per share for each share of the Series A
Preferred Stock ( each as adjusted for any stock splits, stock dividends, combinations,
subdivisions, recapitalizations or the like with respect to such series of Preferred



Stock).
Ligquidation Rights.

Upon any Liguidation Event (as defined below), the holders of each series of Preferred
Stock shall receive out of the proceeds or assets legally available for distribution (the
"Proceeds”), prior and in preference to any distribution of the Proceeds to the holders
of Common Stock, an amount per share equal to the sum of (i) with respect to the
Series Seed Preferred Stock, 1.5 times the Original Issue Price, and (ii) with respect to
the Series A Preferred Stock, 1 times the applicable Original Issue Price, plus declared
but unpaid dividends on such share. If, upon the occurrence of such event, the
Proceeds are insufficient to permit the payment of the full preferential amounts, then
the entire Proceeds shall be distributed ratably among the holders of the Preferred
Stock in proportion to the full preferential amount that each such holder is otherwise
entitled to receive under this paragraph.

Upon completion of the distribution required by the foregoing paragraph, all of the
remaining Proceeds, shall be distributed among the holders of Class A Common Stock
and Class B Common Stock pro rata based on the number of shares of Class A
Common Stock and Class B Common Stock held by each.

Notwithstanding the above, for purposes of determining the amount each holder of
shares of Preferred Stock is entitled to receive upon a Liquidation Event, each such
holder shall be deemed to have converted (regardless of whether such holder actually
converted) its shares of Preferred Stock, into shares of Class B Common Stock
immediately prior to the Liquidation Event if, as a result of an actual conversion, such
holder would receive, in the aggregate, an amount greater than the amount that would
be distributed to such holder if such holder did not convert such series of Preferred
Stock into shares of Class B Common Stock. If any such holder shall be deemed to
have converted shares of Preferred Stock into Class B Common Stock, then such
holder shall not be entitled to receive any distribution that would otherwise be made
to holders of Preferred Stock that have not converted into shares of Class B Common
Stock.

A “Liquidation Event” includes, (A) the closing of the sale, lease, transfer, exclusive
license or other disposition of all or substantially all of our assets, (B) the
consummation of our merger or consolidation with or into another entity (except a
merger or consolidation in which the holders of our capital stock immediately prior to
such merger or consolidation continue to hold at least fifty percent (50%) of the
voting power of our capital stock or the surviving or acquiring entity immediately
following such merger or consolidation in substantially the same proportions, and
with substantially the same terms, as held immediately prior to such merger or
consolidation), (C) the closing of the transfer, in one transaction or a series of related
transactions, to a person or group of affiliated persons (other than an underwriter of
our securities), of our securities if, after such closing, such person or group would hold
fifty percent (50%) or more of our then outstanding voting stock or the outstanding
voting stock of the surviving or acquiring entity, or (D) our liquidation, dissolution or



winding up; provided, however, that a transaction shall not constitute a Ligquidation
Event if its sole purpose is to change our state of incorporation or to create a holding
company that will be owned in substantially the same proportions by persons who
held our securities immediately prior to such transaction. The treatment of any
particular transaction or series of related transactions as a Liquidation Event may be
waived by the vote or written consent of the holders of a majority of the outstanding
Preferred Stock (voting together as a single class and not as separate series, and on an
as-converted basis).

Conversion of Preferred Stock

Each share of Preferred Stock is convertible, at anv time, at the option of the holder
thereof, into such number of fully paid and non-assessable shares of Class B Common
Stock as is determined by dividing the Original Issue Price for such series by the
applicable Conversion Price for such series. The initial "Conversion Price" per share
for each series of Preferred Stock shall be the Original Issue Price of such series,
subject to adjustment as set forth below.

Each share of Preferred Stock shall automatically be converted into shares of Class B
Common Stock at the then effective Conversion Price immediately upon the earlier of
(a) the closing of the sale of Class B Common Stock in a firm commitment
underwritten public offering pursuant to a registration statement on Form S-1 under
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, which results in at least $30,000,000 of gross
proceeds to us (a "Qualified Public Offering ") or (ii) the date, or the occurrence of an
event, specified by vote or written consent or agreement of the holders of a majority of
the then outstanding shares of Preferred Stock (voting together as a single class and
not as separate series, and on an as-converted basis).

Conversion Price Adjustments for Certain Dilutive Issuances.

The Conversion Prices of the Preferred Stock are subject to adjustment in the case of
subdivisions or combinations of common stock, stock dividends and certain other
distributions, and in connection with certain reorganizations, reclassifications and
similar events. The Conversion Price for each series of Preferred Stock, is also subject
to adjustment in the case of certain issuances of securities at less than the then
applicable Conversion Price for such series of Preferred Stock, based on a weighted
average anti-dilution formula.

Voting Rights.

General Matters. The holders of Class A Common Stock are entitled to ten (10) votes
for each share held of record on all matters submitted to a vote of the stockholders.
The holders of Class B Common are entitled to one (1) vote for each share held of
record on all matters as may be provided for by law. Each holder of Preferred Stock is
entitled to a number of votes equal to the number of shares of Class B Common Stock
into which the shares of Preferred Stock held of record, are convertible, and shall be
entitled to vote (except with respect to the election of directors by the separate class
vote of the holders of Common Stock), on all matters submitted to a vote of the




holders of Common Stock,

Director Election Rights. As long as at least 9,110,328 shares of Preferred Stock (as
adjusted for any stock splits, stock dividends, combinations, subdivisions,
recapitalizations or the like) remain outstanding, the holders of Preferred Stock shall
be entitled to elect one (1) director (the "Preferred Director”), and the holders of
outstanding Common Stock, voting together as a single class, shall be entitled to elect
two (2) directors. To the extent the board has more than three (3) directors, the
holders of Preferred Stock and Common Stock (voting together as a single class and
not as separate series, and on an as-converted basis) shall be entitled to elect any
remaining directors.

Any vacancy, including newly created directorships resulting from any increase in the
authorized number of directors or amendment of our Amended and Restated
Certificate of Incorporation, and vacancies created by removal or resignation of a
director, may be filled by a majority of the directors then in office, although less than
a quorum, or by a sole remaining director; provided, however, that where such
vacancy occurs among the directors elected by the holders of a class or series of stock,
the holders of shares of such class or series may override the Board's action to fill such
vacancy by written consent or through a vote at a stockholder meeting. Any director
may be removed, either with or without cause, by, and only by, the affirmative vote of
the holders of the shares of the class or series of stock entitled to elect such director or
directors.

Special Voting Rights of Preferred Stock.

As long as 9,110,328 shares of Preferred Stock (as adjusted for any stock splits, stock
dividends, combinations, subdivisions, recapitalizations or the like) remain
outstanding, we may not take any of the actions set forth below without the approval
of the holders of a majority of the then outstanding shares of Preferred Stock (voting
together as a single class and not as separate series, and on an as-converted basis):

(a) consummate a Liquidation Event;

(b) amend, alter or repeal any provision of our Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation or Bylaws so as to adversely alter or change the rights, preferences,
privileges and restrictions of the shares of Preferred Stock;

(c) increase or decrease (other than by redemption or conversion) the total number of
authorized shares of Common Stock or Preferred Stock or designated shares of any
series of Preferred Stock;

(d) authorize, create or issue any equity security, or instrument convertible into any
security, having a preference over, or on a parity with, any series of Preferred Stock
with respect to dividends, liguidation or redemption, other than the issuance of any
authorized but unissued shares of Series A Preferred Stock;

(e) (1) reclassify, alter or amend any existing security that is pari passu with the



Preferred Stock with respect to dividends, liquidation or redemption, if such
reclassification, alteration or amendment would render such other security senior to
the Preferred Stock in respect of any such right, preference or privilege or (ii)
reclassify, alter or amend any existing security of this corporation that is junior to the
Preferred Stock with respect to dividends, liquidation or redemption, if such
reclassification, alteration or amendment would render such other security senior to
or pari passu with the Preferred Stock in respect of any such right, preference or
privilege;

(f) redeem, purchase or otherwise acquire (or pay into or set aside for a sinking fund
for such purpose) any Preferred Stock or Common Stock; except for the repurchase of
certain shares of Common Stock from employees, officers, directors, consultants and
service providers, under certain circumstances;

(g) change the authorized number of, or method of electing directors; or

(h) pay or declare any dividend other than dividends payable on Common Stock solely
in the form of additional shares of Common Stock.

Registration Rights

Pursuant to an Investors’ Rights Agreement entered into between us and the holders
of each class of our Preferred Stock, we agreed that if we engage in a firm commitment
underwritten public offering of our Common Stock or other equity securities, then
upon a written request of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of
Common Stock issued or issuable upon conversion of the Preferred Stock (collectively,
“Registrable Securities”), made any time after six months from the effective date of
such underwritten public offering, and subject to certain exceptions, we shall use
commercially reasonable efforts to effect as soon and practical, a registration of such
Registrable Securities; provided that the anticipated aggregate offering price of such
Registrable Securities is at least $15,000,000. In addition, subject to certain
underwriting requirements, we agreed that if we propose to register any of our
securities held by our stockholders (other than the holders of Registrable Securities) in
connection with a public offering of securities solely for cash, we shall, upon the
written request of any holder of Registrable Securities, use our commercially
reasonably efforts to cause all of such Registrable Securities, to be registered under
the Act. We further agreed that subject to certain exceptions, upon receipt of a request
from the holders of at least 30% of our Registrable Securities, we shall use
commercially reasonable efforts to effect as soon as practical, a registration of such
Registrable Securities pursuant to Form S-3.

Series A Preferred Stock
The amount of security authorized is 16,574,586 with a total of 9,862,971 outstanding.
Voting Rights

Each holder of Preferred Stock is entitled to a number of votes equal to the number of



shares of Class B Common Stock into which the shares of Preferred Stock held of
record, are convertible, and shall be entitled to vote (except with respect to the
election of directors by the separate class vote of the holders of Common Stock), on all
matters submitted to a vote of the holders of Common Stock. (See additional
information in Series Seed Preferred Stock - Other Material Rights above)

Material Rights

See "Series Seed Preferred Stock - Other Material Rights" above for a summary of
rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions of the Company's classes of preferred
stock.

SAFE Note - Series 1

The security will convert into Preferred stock and the terms of the SAFE Note - Series 1
are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $2,000,000.00

Interest Rate: %

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $20,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: A bona fide equity financing of preferred stock

Material Rights

One of the SAFE Notes having an outstanding principal balance of $2,000,000, is
convertible into preferred stock upon a bona fide equity financing of preferred stock,
at a price per share equal to the lesser of (i) an 20% discount to the price per share of
the preferred stock offered in such equity financing, and (b) a price per share based on
a $20,000,000 pre-money valuation. The classes of preferred stock of the Company are
summarized in the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation attached as
Exhibit F to this Offering Document.

SAFE Notes - Series 2

The security will convert into Preferred stock and the terms of the SAFE Notes - Series
2 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $1,000,000.00

Interest Rate: %

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $30,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: A bona fide equity financing of preferred stock

Material Rights

The remaining SAFE Notes having an aggregate principal balance of $1,000,000, are
convertible into preferred stock upon a bona fide equity financing of preferred stock,
at a price per share equal to the lesser of (I) a 20% discount to the price of the



preferred stock offered in such equity financing, and (II) a price per share based on a

$30,000,000 pre-money valuation. The classes of preferred stock of the Company are
summarized in the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation attached as
Exhibit F to this Offering Document.

2022 Bridge SAFE

The security will convert into Equity shares (common or preferred) and the terms of
the 2022 Bridge SAFE are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $0.00

Interest Rate: %

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $35,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Bona fide equity financing with an aggregate amount of USD 3
million, but not including the current Reg CF raise.

Material Rights

All SAFE investors will receive most favored nation terms with respect to any
subsequent convertible securities issued.

What it means to be a minority holder

As a holder of Class B Common Stock in this offering, your voting rights will be
granted by Proxy to the CEO of the company. Further, even as a minority holder of
Class B Common Stock, you would have limited rights in regards to the corporate
actions of the company, including additional issuances of securities, company
repurchases of securities, a sale of the company or its significant assets, or company
transactions with related parties. Further, investors in this offering may have rights
less than those of other investors, and will have limited influence on the corporate
actions of the company.

Dilution

Investors should understand the potential for dilution. The investor’s stake in a
company could be diluted due to the company issuing additional shares. In other
words, when the company issues more shares, the percentage of the company that you
own will go down, even though the value of the company may go up. You will own a
smaller piece of a larger company. This increase in number of shares outstanding
could result from a stock offering (such as an initial public offering, another
crowdfunding round, a venture capital round, angel investment), employees
exercising stock options, or by conversion of certain instruments (e.g. convertible
bonds, preferred shares or warrants) into stock.

If the company decides to issue more shares, an investor could experience value
dilution, with each share being worth less than before, and control dilution, with the
total percentage an investor owns being less than before. There may also be earnings



dilution, with a reduction in the amount earned per share (though this typically occurs
only if the company offers dividends, and most early stage companies are unlikely to
offer dividends, preferring to invest any earnings into the company).

Transferability of securities

For a year, the securities can only be resold:
e |nan IPO;
¢ To the company;

e To an accredited investor; and

e To a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust
controlled by the purchaser, to a trust created for the benefit of a member of the
family of the purchaser or the equivalent, or in connection with the death or
divorce of the purchaser or other similar circumstance.

Recent Offerings of Securities

We have made the following issuances of securities within the last three years:

¢ Name: Class B Common Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $174,199.64
Number of Securities Sold: 1,170,098
Use of proceeds: Research and development, product development, company
operations.
Date: August 12, 2020
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

¢ Name: Series A Preferred Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $288,500.00
Number of Securities Sold: 3,187,838
Use of proceeds: Research and development, product development, market
research, installation of demonstration project, and customer acquisition.
Date: December 11, 2018
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

o Name: Series A Preferred Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $604,100.00
Number of Securities Sold: 6,675,133
Use of proceeds: Research and development, product development, company
operations.
Date: October 10, 2019



Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

Type of security sold: SAFE

Final amount sold: $78,000.00

Use of proceeds: Product development, software development at demonstration
project, inventory, marketing.

Date: February 11, 2020

Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

Type of security sold: SAFE

Final amount sold: $10,000.00

Use of proceeds: Product development, software development at demonstration,
project, inventory, marketing.

Date: November 06, 2019

Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

Name: Series Seed 1-6

Type of security sold: Equity

Final amount sold: $0.00

Number of Securities Sold: 19,866,714

Use of proceeds: This issuance was related to a conversion of convertible loans
and resulted in no funds to the company, therefore, there was no use of
proceeds.

Date: December 11, 2018

Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

Type of security sold: Debt

Final amount sold: $85,567.00

Use of proceeds: For working capital and general corporate purposes.
Date: December 28, 2021

Offering exemption relied upon: 4(a)(2)

Type of security sold: SAFE

Final amount sold: $1,000,000.00

Use of proceeds: Product development, software development at demonstration,
project, inventory, marketing.

Date: July 07, 2021

Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

Type of security sold: SAFE

Final amount sold: $2,000,000.00

Use of proceeds: Product development, software development at demonstration,
project, inventory, marketing.

Date: January 06, 2021

Offering exemption relied upon: 506(h)



e Name: Class B Common Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $1,080,647.57
Number of Securities Sold: 6,564,455
Use of proceeds: Research and development, product development, company
operations.
Date: August 14, 2020
Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation CF

Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Financial Condition

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and
results of our operations together with our financial statements and related notes
appearing at the end of this Offering Memorandum. This discussion contains forward-
looking statements reflecting our current expectations that involve risks and
uncertainties. Actual results and the timing of events may differ materially from those
contained in these forward-looking statements due to a number of factors, including
those discussed in the section entitled “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Offering
Memorandum.

Results of Operations

Circumstances which led to the performance of financial statements:

YouSolar has been developing the PowerBloc®, a solar+battery system based on a
patented parallel direct current architecture for nearly all of its operating history. This
effort included the development of power electronics, controls, firmware and software,
a solar production forecast, a user interface, enclosures, and a cloud-based data and
product database. The company is currently not yet generating substantial revenue.

The company's operating expenses increased from $713,991 in 2019 to $1,165,803 in
2020 due to our expansion and development.

The great majority of our budget has been spent on this broad and complex research
and development. In 2019 and 2020, the company had a few revenues associated with
services and system expansions of the PowerBloc demonstration, which YouSolar
installed in Big Sur, CA, in mid-2019. 5till, the company needed to raise more funds in
2020 to develop a commercial product before selling other PowerBloc systems. In
2020, the company was able to close sales agreements of PowerBlocs with 6 additional
customers with increased the total value of future sales to $538,473.14 and the
company took deposits in the amount of $119,383 for equipment purchase and
installation agreements. However, with most installation dates in 2021, in 2020 only
$11,464 of the payments received from our customers can be recognized as net Sales
under the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAPP) of the United States.



Historical results and cash flows:

By the end of 2021, YouSolar will have a commercial PowerBloc solar+battery system.
The system is based on modules that fit cabinets and racks with a 19" width, an
industry standard. However, the company's high-power single-phase inverter is still
under development. Our limited financial personnel, financial, and management
resources required us to focus all of our research and development effort on the
patented direct current power electronics and controls. In the meantime, we were able
to install PowerBloc systems using 3rd party three-phase inverters. We adapted or
used these inverters for single-phase power supply. The company will continue to
invest a large amount of its budget into developing its single-phase inverter and
detailed engineering, electrical, mechanical, and environmental testing and
certification of its stackable modules. We will resume sales of PowerBloc systems,
which we stopped in mid-2021. At that time, we had to focus our limited resources on
the successful installation of our existing sales. We now have a commercial product
we can sell and install within a few weeks or months of entering into an equipment
sales and installation agreement with a customer. Therefore, we expect our financials
to show an increase in sales and thus to look different from our historical financials.
In addition, the company will introduce its stackable PowerBloc, which will include
our new single-phase inverter. We plan to pre-sell the system in an extensive
marketing campaign. Thus we may show significant deposits associated with these
sales. We will deliver stackable PowerBloc systems no earlier than the 4th quarter of
2022. We project that sales will dominate our 2023 financials while R&D will play an
essential but much smaller role.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

What capital resources are currently available to the Company? (Cash on hand,
existing lines of credit, shareholder loans, etc...)

Historically, the company has relied on accredited investors for capital resources but
in 2020 completed an oversubscribed Regulation CF crowdfunding campaign where it
raise the maximum amount of USD 1,070,000 allowed under the regulation.
Subsequently, in 2020, the company raised an additional USD 174,299.91 from
accredited investors. The in 2021 the company was funded with USD 3 MM through
Simple Agreements for Future Equity from one privately-held energy investment firm.
The company has use most of this funding. It will have to borrow money from its
existing and new investors while it waits to receive the first disbursement of this
Regulation CF crowdfunding campaign. The company has no lines of credits but has
been able to receive net-30 terms from some of its suppliers.

Cash on Hand as of 4/15,/22: $15,099.44

How do the funds of this campaign factor into your financial resources? (Are these
funds critical to your company operations? Or do you have other funds or capital
resources available?)



The company relies on the success of this campaign as the primary financial resource
of the company. The success of this campaign is critical to our operations. Assuming
and expecting that this campaign will raise the maximum amount of USD 5 million, we
will begin to explore our next capital raise, including accessing financing other than
through crowdfunding.

Are the funds from this campaign necessary to the viability of the company? (Of the
total funds that your company has, how much of that will be made up of funds raised
from the crowdfunding campaign?)

The funds raised by this campaign are necessary for the viability of the company.
However, we note that after our 2020 Regulation CF campaign, which raised USD 1.07
million, the company raised another USD 3.174 million from other investors. We
expect that a successful crowdfunding campaign will again raise the interest of other

investors and thus expect to have more financial resources than those arising from
this campaign.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your minimum? What
expenses is this estimate based on?

If we only raise the minimum, then all of that amount goes to paying StartEngine fees.
A minimum raise would not extend the company’s time to operate unless, similar to
our first Reg CF campaign in 2020, this campaign raises the interest of other investors
that could fund the company.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your maximum funding
goal?

If we raise the maximum, then based on our budgeted expenses, we expect to be able
to operate for up to 12 months.

Are there any additional future sources of capital available to your company?

(Required capital contributions, lines of credit, contemplated future capital raises,
etc...)

Soon after the completion of this campaign, the company will actively seek new
sources of capital that will allow it to operate longer than if it raises the maximum of
this campaign. The company may also use these new sources of capital to accelerate
its product development and grow sales beyond the current projections by increasing
the marketing budget and adding sales resources.

The company intends to close a USD 5-20 million equity raise in 9-12 months.



Indebtedness

e Creditor: The company owes debts to the founders and a family member of the
CEO and president and one of its directors.
Amount Owed: $75,567.00
Interest Rate: 10.0%
Maturity Date: January 01, 2030

Related Party Transactions

¢ Name of Entity: Annemarie Lisa Eidt
Relationship to Company: Founder
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: Lisa provides graphic and user
interface design for the company. She is paid cash for services.
Material Terms: Lisa charges the company USD 50/hour for design and research
and USD 35/hour for meetings and communication. Lisa senior designer who
during her career designed the logo, font, and style guide for the logos of all
offices of the German executive branch and its agencies. Example,
https://www.mooncatchermeme.com/wp-
content/uploads/sites/11,/2018/06/1ogo_breg en.jpg

Valuation

Pre-Money Valuation: $50,532,538.02
Valuation Details:

The company determined its pre-money valuation based on an analysis of multiple
factors. YouSolar has developed the PowerBloc®, a fully-integrated modular
solar+battery nano-grid for residential, commercial, military, and disaster relief use.
In arriving at the Company’s valuation, the Company has considered its success in the
market, sales projections, technology, product features, intellectual property, market
outlook, and the valuation of “pure players” among the market leaders: Enphase,
SolarEdge, and Generac.

The performance of components and controls of the current, commercial PowerBloc
has been validated for over two years at a demonstration at an off-grid house in Big
Sur. This project also includes the integration of a generator with automatic start and
stop. The Company’s product is now or in a few weeks installed with seven residential
customers and two commercial customers, including a clinic. These installations
constitute commercial sales, but their primary purpose is still to validate the
performance and features of the PowerBloc. The total value of these sales contracts is
U.5.% 1,032,725,

The Company halted marketing after securing these contracts so that it could focus on



executing these projects successfully. The Company is not yet at a stage where current
revenues or projection of sales in 2022, or even 2023, are very useful in determining
the Company's valuation. For example, in 2022, the Company will still improve and
finalize the PowerBloc and introduce its stackable module system to the market.
Complete sales activities will not begin until 2023.

Beginning 2022, the Company will resume sales and expects that it will reach one
hundred sales of its current rack-mounted systems over the next 18 months, which
would equate to about U.5.%5 million in revenues. I addition, the Company plans to
market its new stackable PowerBloc and, in 2022, expects to receive deposits from
250-500 customers for a total value of sale agreements of U.5.% 5-10 million. The first
stackable systems will not be delivered until late 2022 or even 2023.

The Company's nano-grid is built on a patented power architecture; our proprietary
power electronics, controls, and firm- and software; our solar forecast service; our
user interface, our stackable module system; and the system’s exceptional
functionality. The company believes the PowerBloc is equal and superior in
technology, performance, and completeness to products by the market leaders,
Enphase (Market Capitalization U.S.$ 32.30 billion, SolarEdge, (U.S.$ 18.44 B) Tesla
(U.S. $1.01 T, L.G. Energy (L.G. Chem U.5.% 48.21B), Panasonic (U.5.% 29.27 B), and
Generac (27.75B) as of 9 November 2020.

The PowerBloc has features found across all of the products of the market leaders and
has many additional features that we believe make the PowerBloc more useful to
customers. Here are some examples:

The PowerBloc can seamlessly integrate any generator, including 50 Hz or 3-phase
generators. For a clinic like one of our customers, energy from a generator can be
critical during prolonged grid outages with little sunshine. Tesla and Enphase cannot
integrate a generator, and Generac can only incorporate a specific generator.

The PowerBloc’s DC-DC STEP™ micro-converter also provides panel-level solar
energy production. Still, unlike Enphase’'s DC-AC micro-Inverter, STEP operates at the
direct current native to batteries. Unlike Enphase’s micro-inverter, which produces
alternating current, STEP avoids unnecessary back-and-forth conversions between
alternating and direct currents. STEP also operates at a higher electric potential which
results in lower losses in the cables. A micro-converter is also more durable, more
efficient, and has a lower cost structure than a micro-inverter.

The PowerBloc is the only system in the market with genuinely parallel power
architecture and operates at 400 Volt direct current. Every solar panel-level micro-
converter, every battery, and every AC-DC energy input of the PowerBloc work
independently. As a result, a PowerBloc can scale from a residential system with 5kW
of solar and 15kWh of energy storage to a commercial system with 50kW of solar and
hundreds of kilowatt-hours of electricity storage by simply adding more modules.

Because the PowerBloc is built on a stable 400 V DC bus allows the system to directly
power 400 V DC devices such as electric vehicle chargers or LED Lighting with no



converters. Also, one or multiple DC-AC inverters can be connected to the 400 V DC
bus to power a home or business. It is even possible to connect a single-phase or a
three-phase inverter to the same PowerBloc. None of the market leaders can do so.

Like some other products in the market, the PowerBloc receives a weather forecast and
severe weather alerts, but it also has a solar production forecast. The Company’s in-
house solar radiation forecast uses data from atmospheric satellites and creates a real-
time forecast for the entire world with no coverage limit. Our testing shows that this
forecast is more sophisticated and accurate than data available from the National
Renewable Energy Laboratory of the U.S. Department of Energy. The Company
combines this forecast with terrain shading based on a 30-meter grid from radar
satellites, allowing it to predict the solar array's shading by mountains and large
structures during the day. This forecast runs on Amazon Web Services and is sent to
each customer project every two hours.

Last but not least the PowerBloc’s truly parallel and patented power architecture
allows the Company to deliver a stackable module that is entirely plug-and-play. The
mobility and simplicity of these modules open the military and disaster relief market
to the Company, for which none of the market leaders currently have offerings.
YouSolar believes the plug-and-play modular chassis with an internal air chimney that
forms as the modules are stacked is revolutionary. A U.S. patent protects the air
chimney. A pending U.S. patent protects the design of the stackable modules. An
issued patent covers certain aspects of the "look” of the stackable cabinet.

All of the features above are available in the PowerBloc today and included in
PowerBloc systems installed with our first customers. Prototypes of the stackable
PowerBloc module have been built and are in electro-mechanical and environmental
testing.

YouSolar’'s product has a low-cost structure. Except for a rectifier, all technology has
been developed or co-developed by YouSolar. The intellectual property is either
owned by the Company, licensed with a fully paid-up license, or purchased from its
engineering partner at preferential prices. As a result, intellectual property is a very
low fraction of the cost of goods sold (“COGS”). The Company’s current COGS is high
because of the very low volume of its first customers, but it is already coming down
rapidly.

YouSolar owns a license on micro-converter technology and a related patent, which it
purchased for a one-time payment. Over U.S. $25 million went into the development
and commercialization of the micro-converter technology. The patent protects the
parallel direct current bus architecture. It is the Company’s understanding that it is
currently the sole licensee. The technology (and patent) allows YouSolar to create a
solar array with a constant potential for direct battery integration at 400 V.

In the fall of 2018 the MIT Angels of Northern California led a Series A round with a
pre-money valuation of U.5.$ 4.5 million. In August 2020, YouSolar closed an
oversubscribed Reg CF financing on StartEngine, during which the Company sold
Common B stock and grossed U.S.$ 1.07 million in investments at U.S.$ 10 million



pre-money valuation. Subsequently, the Company sold U.5.%5 174k in Common stock
and issued two Simple Agreements for Future Equity ("SAFE]|) for a total investment of
U.S.$ 3 million. Thus the Company had a post-money valuation of U.S.3$ 14.2 million
after its Reg CF financing.

YouSolar has a solution for a rapidly growing market that is driven by low-cost energy
storage, energy insecurity from climate change, excess cash among potential buyers
due to high savings rate during the pandemic, and most recently, the passage of the
U.5.% 1 T infrastructure bill by the U.S. Congress. The increasing need for the
PowerBloc and capital to purchase our solution has significantly increased our sales
outlook for 2023 and bevyond. In addition, the successful development of the stackable
module has increased our addressable market.

While we had early market success with U.S. $ 1,032,725 in sales after our Big Sur
demonstration and project the value of sales contracts over the next 12-18 months to
be U.S.% 10-15 million, we base our valuation primarily on our product performance
and features in comparing them to current leaders in the solar-battery market, their
products, and their valuation and the anticipated future directions of a market that
will benefit the Company’s technology and product. The Company set its pre-money
at U.S.$ 50 million, which is a 3.5 x increase from our post-money valuation U.5.% 14.2
million. The Company arrived at this valuation through product and market analysis
and discussions with its investors, directors, and other market experts.

Disclaimers

The Company set its valuation internally, without a formal-third party independent
evaluation. The pre-money valuation has been calculated on a fully diluted basis. In
making this calculation, we have assumed: (i) all preferred stock is converted to
common stock; (ii) all outstanding options, warrants, and other securities with a right
to acquire shares are exercised; and (ii1) any shares reserved for issuance under a stock
plan are issued.

The pre-money valuation does not take into account any convertible securities
currently outstanding. The Company currently has $3,088,000 in SAFEs outstanding.
Please refer to the Company Securities section of the Offering Memorandum for
further details regarding current outstanding convertible securities which may affect
your ownership in the future.

Use of Proceeds

If we raise the Target Offering Amount of $9,999.62 we plan to use these proceeds as
follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
5.5%

e StartEngine Fees
96.5%



If we only raise USD 9.999.62 then USD 9,649.63 amount pays for the
StartEngine services fees.

If we raise the over allotment amount of $4,999,997.22, we plan to use these proceeds
as follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
3.5%

o Marketing
14.0%
Online and direct marketing and sales to customers in the United States and
pilot sales in the Caribbean. Digital marketing costs for paid advertisement,
credit card, and related fees associated with fundraising. Digital marketing costs
may vary due to the click-through rate of the ads.

e Research & Development
43.0%
Improvements to the chassis and controls of the PowerBloc modules.
Development of a high-power single-phase inverter and other power electronics.
Continued development and environmental testing of the stackable PowerBloc

system. Development of the cloud-based monitoring and customer architecture.

o [nventory
15.0%
Critical parts inventory such as SicFETs, micro-processors, and magnetics. Long-
lead inventory such as battery packs.

® Operations
24.5%
This amount includes salaries not related to R&D, legal fees, rent, facilities,
communications, rent and facilities, membership or conference fees.

The Company may change the intended use of proceeds if our officers believe it is in
the best interests of the company.

Regulatory Information

Disqualification

No disqualifying event has been recorded in respect to the company or its officers or
directors.

Compliance Failure

The company has not previously failed to comply with the requirements of Regulation
Crowdfunding.



Ongoing Reporting

The Company will file a report electronically with the SEC annually and post the
report on its website no later than April 30 (120 days after Fiscal Year End). Once
posted, the annual report may be found on the Company’s website at
www.yousolar.com (https://yousolar.com/corporate).

The Company must continue to comply with the ongoing reporting requirements
until:

(1) 1t is required to file reports under Section 15(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange
Act;

(2) it has filed at least one (1) annual report pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding and
has fewer than three hundred (300) holders of record and has total assets that do not

exceed $10,000,000;
(3) it has filed at least three (3) annual reports pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding;

(4) it or another party repurchases all of the securities issued in reliance on Section
4(a)(6) of the Securities Act, including any payment in full of debt securities or any
complete redemption of redeemable securities; or

(5) it liquidates or dissolves its business in accordance with state law.

Updates

Updates on the status of this Offering may be found at:
www.startengine.com/yousolar

Investing Process

See Exhibit E to the Offering Statement of which this Offering Memorandum forms a
part.
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artesian
CPA, LLC

To the Board of Directors of
Yousolar, Inc.
Emeryville, California
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of YouSolar, Inc. (the “Company™) which
comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the related statements of operations,
changes in stockholder’s deficit, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
tinancial statements,

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the yvears then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS). Our responsibiliies under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis tor our audit opinion,

Substantial Doubt About the Company’s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a
going concern. As described in Note 3 to the financial statements, the Company generated negative cash
flows from operations and incurred net losses of $3,122 384 and $1,150,018 for the years ended December
31, 2021 and 2020, respectvely, and has not generated significant revenues to date. As of December 31,
2021, the Company had a working capital deficit of 5453,768 and an accumulated deticit of 39,512,865,
The Company has limited liquid assets to satisty its obligations with 350,735 ot cash relative to $1,709,947
of current liabilities as of December 31, 2021, and is in default on various loan obligations. These factors,
among others, raise substantal doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Management’s plans regarding these matters are also described in Note 3. The financial statements do not
include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. Our opinion is not
modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible tfor the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Artesian CPA, LL.C
1624 Market Street, Suite 202 | Denver, CO 50202
p: 877.968.3530 t: 720.634.0905

intfof@ArtesianCPA.com | www. ArtestanCPA.com



In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt abourt the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern within one vear after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 1s a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements, including omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on
the financial statements,

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
e [Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion 1s
expressed.

¢ Fvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Aecua (B LLC

Artesian CPA, LL.C
Denver, Colorado
April 21, 2022

Artesian CPA, LLC
1624 Market Street, Suite 202 | Denver, CO 50202
p: 877.968.3330 £ 720.634.0905
infol@ ArtestanCPA.com | waw. ArtesianCPA.com



YOUSOLAR, INC.
Balance Sheets
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash 3 50,735 i 122128
Accounts receivable - 1,655
Escrow receivable 114,560 49,078
Notes receivable 32421 29817
Motes receivable - related party 37469 26971
Prepaid expenses 91,310 4,750
Inventory 929 654 112953
Total Current Assets 1,256,179 347 352
Non-Current Assets:
Deposits 14,791 9,865
Property and equipment, net 64,370 2,573
Intangib]e assets, net 346,011 380328
Total Non-Current Assets 425172 392766
TOTAL ASSETS 3 1,681,351 8 740,118

See Independent Auditor’s Report and accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these
financial statements.

i .



YOUSOLAR, INC.

Balance Sheets
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020

LIABILITIES AND STOCKEHOLDERS' DEFICIT
Current Liabilities:
Accounts pavable and accrued expenses
Customer deposirs
Deeferred rent
Dhue to related party
Paycheck Protection Program loan
Mores pavable
Notes payable - related party
Convertible notes payable
Interest payable
Toral Corrent Liabilivies

Mon-Current Liabilities;
SAFE lability

Toral Mon-Cuoreent Liakalines
Tuostal Liahilities

Srockholders” Deficirn:

Series Seed-1 Preferred seock, S00000001 par, 6,552,714 shares authorized, 6,207 78T
shares issued and outstanding as of both December 31, 2021 and 20200 Liquidation
preference of 33,096,134 as of both December 31, 2021 and 2020,

Series Seed-2 Preferred seock, S00000001 par, 2,611,616 shares authorized, 2,557 431
shares issued and outstanding as of both December 31, 2021 and 20200 Liquidation
preference of $767,229 as of both December 31, 2021 and 20240,

Series Seed-3 Preferred stock, 30000001 par, 208,566 shares authorized, 2,018,566
shares i1ssued and outstanding as of borh December 31, 2021 and 2020, Liquidation
preference of $529.874 as of both December 31, 2021 and 2030,

Series Seed-4 Preferred stock, 30000001 par, 2,309,579 shares authorized, 2,300,579
shares issued and outstanding as of both Decernber 31, 2021 and 2020, Liquidation
preference of $519,635 as of both December 31, 2021 and 2030,

Series Seed-3 Preferred seock, $00000001 par, 1,814,742 shares authorized, 1,614,742
shares issned and uut:»:t:mdiﬂg as of both December 31, 2021 and 2020, Liquidiltiun
preference of 3160,806 as of both December 31, 2021 and 20210,

Senes Seed-0 Preferred seock, S00000001 par, 4,559,507 shares authorized, 4,517 668
shares issued and outstanding as of both December 31, 2021 and 20200 Liquidation
preference of $338,825 as of both December 31, 2021 and 2020,

meries A Proforred stock, SO000001 pae, 16,574,580 sharcs authorized, 3752474
shares issued and outstanding as of borh December 31, 2021 and 20200 Liquidation
preference of $882,5%9 as of both December 31, 2021 and 2020,

Class A comimon stock, SOOO0D00T par, 67 (D00 shares authorized, BR55,781
shares issued and owtstanding as of both December 31, 2021 and 2020

Class B common seock, 00000001 par, 65,000,000 shares authonzed, 17,238 948
and 7,608,441 shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively,

Addinonal paid-im capiral

Accumulated deficat
Toral Stockholders' Deficit

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT

2021 2020
627405 8 166,418
33,675 119,363

755 :

- 7381

. 53,110

TG D EIERLLN
66,737 66,737
451,900 131,900
113477 04,501
1,700,047 942 430
£4.000) SO0
88,000 HE 0
1,797,947 1,030,430
& 6

3 3

2 2

2 2

2 2

5 5

10 100

9 0

17 7

0 306,213 6,100,123
(9,512,865) (6,390,481
(116,596 (290312
1681351 § 740,118

See Independent Auditor’s Report and accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these

financial statements.
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YOUSOLAR, INC.

Statements of Operations

For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

SErVICE TeVenues

Sales, net
Cost of goods sold
Gross profit/ (loss) on sales

Operating Expenses:
General and administrative
Research and development
Sales and marketing
Total Operating Expenses

Loss from operations

Other Income (Expenses):
(rain on accounts payable torgiveness
(Gain on loan forgiveness
Interest income
Interest expense
Oithers
Total Other Income (Expenses)

Provision for income taxes

Met Loss

2021 2020
149§ 546
16,586 11,464
(23,645) (9,494)
(7.059) 1,970
1,405,043 743839
| 481,666 386,956
250,559 35,008
3,137,268 1,165,803
(3,144,178) (1,163,287)
7,430 62,795
53,110 :
33 9
(43,975) (49,535)
5,196 .
21,794 13,269
(3,122384)  §  (1,150,018)

See Independent Auditor’s Report and accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these

financial statements.



YOUSOLAR, INC.
Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Deficit
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
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See Independent Auditor’s Report and accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these financial statements,



YOUSOLAR, INC.

Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used
N operating actviries:
Crain on accounts payable forgiveness
Crain on loan ’r?lrf_;iﬂ'.nr..ti:{
Inventory write-off
Depreciation
AmortiEation
Impairment
Stock-based compensation
Fair value of warrants
Changes in operating assets and habilides:
(Increase) /decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase)/decrease in notes receivable
(Increase)/decrease in prepaid expenses
(Increase)/decrease in inventory

(Increase)/ decrease in deposits

Increase/ (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses

Increase/ (decrease) in customer deposits
Increase/ (decrease) in deferred rent
Increase/ (decrease) in interest payable

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases ot property and equipment
Purchases of intangibles

Cash Used in Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Due from related party
Repayment of due to related party
FFIZIII'.'\‘:HI'.'I.']H FI.": WTE MHEs F"’.rl.fn'ﬁ]'.llﬂ
Repayments of notes pavable
Proceeds from Paycheck Protection Program loan
Proceeds from issuance of convertible notes payable
Proceeds from SAFE liability
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Proceeds from issuance of common stock - Regulation CF
Offering costs
Met Cash Provided by Financing Activities

Met Cha nge In {Cash

_ash at H-::g'inning of Year
Cash at End of Year

2021 2020
g (3,122384) § (1,150,018)
(7,430 (62,795)
(33,1100 -
- 3,902
11,245 T2
34.317 33,150
4,300
116,767 163,285
- 3,450
1,655 (1,655)
(2,604) (4 000
{86,500 (2,250)
(816,731 (105,839
(4,926 (4,776)
468,415 (22,510)
194,202 61,883
755 -
18,976 21,329
(3,243023) (1,066,142
(77,342) -

- {200, 0000)
{77,342 {200 0001)
(10,498) (7,530

(7,381) -
- 157,500
(197,000 (58,3066

- 53,110

350,000 -
3,000,000 68,000

- 174,300
153,503 969077
41,652 (202,374)

32480972 1,183,717
(71,393) 97,575

122 128 24,553

3 50,735 % 122,128

See Independent Auditor’s Report and accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these

financial statements.
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YOUSOLAR, INC.

Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid for interest 5 25,000 8 24.756
Cash paid for income taxes 3 5
$up]:t|::rnr:ntal Disclosure of Mon-Cash Financing Activity:
Conversion of SAFE hability to Class B common stock 3 3,000,000 5
lssuance of Class B common stock for broker compensation 5 24077 = -
Conversion of notes payable to Series A preferred stock 13 - ) 110,000
Conversion of accrued interest to Class B common stock 3 3 20,784

See Independent Auditor’s Report and accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these

financial statements.
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YOUSOLAR, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020 and for the years then ended

NOTE 1: NATURE OF OPERATIONS

YouSolar, Inc. (“the Company™) is a corporation organized on May 11, 2010 under the laws of
Delaware, originally organized as Fireball Solar Technology LLC, a Delaware limited liability company,
which was converted to a corporation on January 16, 2013 as Fireball Solar Technology, Inc. On
April 22, 2013, the Company changed its name to YouSolar, Inc. The Company provides solar
technology and hardware to customers. The Company began commercial operations in 2012,

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform to generally accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”) in the United States of America (“U.S.”") as promulgated by the Financial
Accounting Standard Board (“"FASB”) Accounting Standard Codification (“ASC"). The Company

adopted the calendar vear as its basis of reporting,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the balance sheet and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The management considers all cash on hand and in banks and highly liquid securities with an original
maturity of less than three months to be cash and cash equivalents. The Company’s cash and cash
equivalents in bank deposit accounts, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. The Company has
not experienced any losses in such accounts and periodically evaluates the credit worthiness of the
financial institutions and has determined the credit exposure to be negligible,

Accounts Recervable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable are carried at their estimated collectible amounts and are periodically evaluated
tor collectability based on past credit history with customers and other factors. Provisions for losses
on accounts receivable are determined based on loss experience, known and inherent risk in the
account balance and current economic conditions. No allowances were necessary at December 31,

2021 and 2020,

loventory

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or market and accounted for using the weighted average cost
method. Inventory as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 includes raw materials and work in progress,
which amounted to $929 684 and $112,953, respectively,

The management regularly evaluates inventory for possible impairment and obsolescence, and
estimate inventory market value based on several subjective assumptions including estimated future

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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YOUSOLAR, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020 and for the years then ended

demand and market conditions, as well as other observable factors such as current sell-through of the
Company's products, recent changes in product demand, global and regional economic conditions,
historical experience selling through liquidation and price discounted channels, and the amount of
inventory on hand. When the estimated inventory market value is less than its carrving value, the
carrving value is adjusted to market value and the resulting impairment charge is recorded in cost of
goods sold in the statements of operations. For the vears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the
Company wrote off inventory amounting to $0 and $3,902, respectively, to costs of goods sold in the
statements of operations.

Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses include amounts paid in advance for goods or services to be delivered or rendered
to the Company. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, this account includes advance payments for
rent, materials, and research and development.

Property and Eguipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is recorded for property and equipment
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of assets, which is currently 5 years for
its capitalized assets, The management reviews the recoverability of all long-lived assets, including the
related useful lives, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrving amount of
a long-lived asset might not be recoverable. Property and equipment as of December 31, 2021 and
2020 and depreciation expense for the vears then ended are as follows:

Computer Machincry & Liaschold R&D

Equipmcnt Equipmcm Improvemenis Equipment Vehicles Total
Cosn
Balance ar Decembser 31, 20200 5 350 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 3,500
Additions - 83250 2730 21,386 45 (0l T2
Innpaived - (45001, - - - {430
Balance ar December 31, 202] 35 3,530 273 21 3E6 45 (0K} Th,55]
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at December 31, 20000 “IE0G - - - - LG
Deprecianon T 344 1356 2,513 7, 11,245
Balance at December 31, 2021 1634 344 130 2513 7, 12,18]
Met Book YValue 3 1871 5 3542 5 2,584 5 18,873 5 37500 5 i, 3700

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets include patent, product certification and licensing cost, website and trademark. Costs
to acquire these intangible assets are capitalized and amortized over their expected economic useful
lives, which is currently 16 vears for patent, 10 vears for product certification and licensing cost and
15 vears for website. Management has determined that the acquired trademark 1s an indefinite-live

intangible assets and therefore records no amortization expense but assesses It for impairment
annually, Where the future benefits of the rights are unknown, these costs are L"!-:[th'lﬁ:..r:l as incurred.

For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company recorded no impairment.

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
~10 -



YOUSOLAR, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020 and for the years then ended

Intangible assets as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 and amortization expense for the years then
ended are as follows:

Product
certification
Patent and licensing Website Trademark Total

Cost

Balance at December 31, 2020 5 SO0 3 20,0010 & R 5 T45 5 520745
Addinions - - - - -
Balance ar December 31, 2021 SO0 20,00H) 900 T45 520745
Accumulated Amortization

Balance ar December 31, 2020 144,334 LEE 4,250 - 149417
Amortizaton 3,71V 1,167 1,433 - 34,317
Balance at December 31, 2021 176,051 2100 5683 183,734
Met Book Value ¥ 323,949 3 L8, EH) ] 3,517 3 TS 3 3464001

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The management continually monitors events and changes in circumstances that could indicate
carrving amounts of long-lived assets may not be recoverable. When such events or changes in
circumstances arc present, the management assesses the recoverability of long-lived assets by
determining whether the carrving value of such assets will be recovered through undiscounted
expected future cash flows. If the total of the future cash flows is less than the carrying amount of
those assets, the management recognizes an impairment loss based on the excess of the carrying
amount over the fair value of the Company’s long-lived assets. Assets to be disposed of are reported
at the lower of the carrying amount or the fair value less costs to sell. For the years ended December
31, 2021 and 2020, the Company recognized impairment loss on long-lived assets amounting to §4,300
and 30, respectively.

Convertible Instrumen

LS. GAAP requires companies to bifurcate conversion options from their host instruments and
account for them as free standing derivative financial instruments according to certain criteria. The
criteria Include circumstances in which (a) the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded
derivative instrument are not clearly and closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of
the host contract, (b) the hybrid instrument that embodies both the embedded derivative instrument
and the host contract is not re-measured at fair value under otherwise applicable generally accepted
accounting principles with changes in fair value reported in earnings as they occur and (c) a separate
instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative instrument would be considered a
derivative instrument., An exception to this rule is when the host instrument is deemed to be
conventional as that term is described under applicable U.S, GAAP.

When the Company has determined that the embedded conversion options should not be biturcated
trom their host instruments, the Company records, when necessary, discounts to convertible notes
tor the intrinsic value of conversion options embedded in debt instruments based upon the differences
between the fair value of the underlying common stock at the commitment date of the note transaction
and the effective conversion price embedded in the note. Debt discounts under these arrangements
are amortized over the term of the related debt to their stated date of redemption. The Company also

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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YOUSOLAR, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020 and for the years then ended

records, when necessary, deemed dividends for the intrinsic value of conversion options embedded
in preferred shares based upon the differences between the fair value of the underlving common stock
at the commitment date of the transaction and the effective conversion price embedded in the
preferred shares.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments consist primarily of cash, accounts receivable, notes receivable,
accounts payable and accrued expenses, notes payable, interest pavable.

FASB guidance specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those
valuation techniques are observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained
from independent sources, while unobservable inputs reflect market assumptions. The hierarchy gives
the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level
1 measurement) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurement). The three
levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date. Level 1 primarily consists of
financial instruments whose value is based on quoted market prices such as exchange-traded
instruments and listed equities,

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly (e.g., quoted prices of similar assets or liabilities in active
markets, or quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active).

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Financial instruments are considered Level
3 when their fair values are determined using pricing models, discounted cash flows or similar

techniques and at least one significant model assumption or input is unobservable,

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the carrving amounts of the Company’s financial assets and
liabilities reported in the balance sheets approximate their fair value.

Revenue Recognition

ASC Topic 606, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” establishes principles for reporting
information about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from
the entity’s contracts to provide goods or services to customers. Revenues are recognized when
control of the promised goods or services are transferred to a customer, in an amount that reflects the
consideration that the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods or services. The
Company applies the following five steps in order to determine the appropriate amount of revenue to
be recognized as it fulfills its obligations under each of its agreements: 1) identify the contract with a
customer; 2) identify the performance obligations in the contract; 3) determine the transaction price;
4} allocate the transaction price to performance obligations in the contract; and 5) recognize revenue
as the performance obligation is satisfied.

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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YOUSOLAR, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020 and for the years then ended

The Company generally recognizes revenues upon rendering of services, delivery, or installation of
the promised goods. Revenue recognized for the yvears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 from the

design, sale, and installation of solar technology to customers was $16,580 and $11,464, respectvely.

Cash received from customer orders but not yet delivered or installed are recorded as customer
deposits.  Customer deposits as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 was 5313,675 and $119,383,

respectively.

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold includes product costs and associated freight, direct labor, other ancillary costs,
and overhead costs. Cost of goods sold tor the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was 523,645
and $9,494, respectively.

Sales and Marketing
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred, Total expense related to sales and marketing was $250,559
and $35,008 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Research and Development

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred, which includes salaries, supplies and
contractors’” fees. Total expense related to research and development was $1,481,666 and $356,956
tor the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation in accordance with ASC 718, Compensation -
SNtack Compensation. Under the fair value recognition provisions of ASC 718, stock-based compensation
cost 1s measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized as expense
ratably over the requisite service period, which is generally the option vesting period. The Company
uses the Black-5choles option pricing model to determine the fair value of stock options.

The Company recognized a gain of $7,430 and $62,795 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and
2020, respectively, related to forgiveness of various previously accrued legal costs,

Income Taxes

The Company uses the liability method ot accounting for income taxes as set forth in ASC 740, Tneome
Taxer, Under the liability method, deferred taxes are determined based on the temporary differences
between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities using tax rates expected to be in
effect during the years in which the basis differences reverse. A valuation allowance is recorded when
it 1s unlikely that the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

The Company assesses its income tax positions and records tax benefits for all years subject to
examination based upon its evaluation of the facts, circumstances and information available at the
reporting date. In accordance with ASC 740-10, for those tax positions where there is a greater than

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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YOUSOLAR, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020 and for the years then ended

50% likelihood that a tax benefit will be sustained, our policy is to record the largest amount of tax
benefit that is more likely than not to be realized upon ultimate settlement with a taxing authority that
has full knowledge of all relevant information. For those income tax positions where there is less than
50% likelihood that a tax benefit will be sustained, no tax benefit will be recognized in the consolidated
financial statements. The Company has determined that there are no material uncertain tax positions,

The Company accounts for income taxes with the recognition of estimated income taxes payable or
refundable on income tax returns for the current period and for the estmated future tax effect
attributable to temporary differences and carrvtorwards, Measurement of deferred income items 1s
based on enacted tax laws including tax rates, with the measurement of deferred income tax assets
being reduced by available tax benefits not expected to be realized in the immediate future. The
Company pays Federal and California income taxes at rates of approximately 21% and 8.8%,
respectively, and has used an effective blended rate of 28% to derive net tax assets of $2,442,339 and
$1,588,625 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, resulting from its net operating loss
carrviorwards and other temporary book to tax differences. Due to uncertainty as to the Company’s
ability to generate sufficient taxable income in the future to utilize the net operating loss (NOL)
carryforwards before they begin to expire in 2033, the Company has recorded a full valuation
allowance to reduce the net deferred tax asset to zero and results in a 0% effective tax rate for 2021
and 2020,

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company has available net NOL carryforwards for federal tax
of approximately $7.95 million and $5.08 million. Federal NOL incurred prior to tax year 2018
amounting to $3.25 million will be carried forward for 20 years and will begin to expire in 2033, Post-
2018 NOL amounting to $4.70 million and 31.83 million as of December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively, will be carried forward indefinitely but limited to 80% of future taxable income. The
Company had research and development tax credits of $93,239 as of December 31, 2021,

The Company has evaluated its income tax positions and has determined that it does not have any
uncertain tax positions. The Company will recognize interest and penalties related to any uncertain
tax positions through its income tax expense,

The Company files ULS. federal and state income tax returns. The Company’s tax returns for 2018 to
2021 remain open to examination by the taxing jurisdiction to which the Company is subject.

NOTE 3: GOING CONCERN

The accompanying financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis and do not include any
adjustments that might result from uncertainty about our ability to continue as a going concern. The
Company generated negative cash flows from operations and incurred net losses of $3,122,384 and
$1,150,018 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and has not generated
significant revenues to date. As of December 31, 2021, the Company had a working capital deficit of
3453708 and an accumulated deficit of $9,512,865. The Company has limited liquid assets to satisty
its obligations with $50,735 of cash relative to $1,709.947 of current liabilities as of December 31,
2021, and is in default on various loan obligations. These factors, among others, raise substantial
doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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YOUSOLAR, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020 and for the years then ended

The Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in the next twelve months following the date
the financial statements were available to be issued is dependent upon its ability to produce revenues
and/or obtain financing sufficient to meet current and future obligations and deploy such to produce
profitable operating results. Management has evaluated these conditions and plans to generate
revenues and raise capital as needed to satisfy its capital needs. No assurance can be given that the
Company will be successtul in these efforts. The financial statements do not include any adjustments
relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts or the amounts and
classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a
going concern.

NOTE 4: NOTES RECEIVABLE

The Company has employee loan agreements amounting to $32,421 and $29 817 as of December 31,
2021 and 2020, respectvely. Also, the Company has an employee loan agreement with its chief
executive officer (CEQ) amounting to $37,469 and $26,971 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively. These loans bear interest at a rate of 1% per annum and are payable on June 30, 2030 or
as soon as the employee resigns.

NOTE 5: DEBT FINANCING AGREEMENTS

SBA Pavcheck Protection Program Loan

On May 7, 2020, the Company obtained a Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loan from a bank
amounting to $53,110. ‘This loan bears interest at 1% per annum and will mature 2 years from the
date of first disbursement of the loan. The loan was outstanding as of December 31, 2020. In May
2021, the loan was forgiven, and the amount was recognized as other income in the statement of
operations.

MNotes Pavable

The Company has various short-term loan agreements from 2014 to 2020 with principal balances
totaling $636,569. Interest rates on these loans are 10% and 15% per annum with maturity periods of
less than a vear, All these loans are unsecured and past due and in defaule, In 2019, a $10,000 principal
loan was converted to 110,497 shares of Series A preferred stock and 388,466 principal loan was
repaid. In 2020, $110,000 of these loans’ principal was converted to 1,215,466 shares of Series A
preferred stock and $20,784 of related interest pavable were converted to 103,699 shares of Class B
common stock, Repayment of principal balances amounted to $197,000 and $58,366 for the years
ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Principal balances outstanding on these loans as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020 amounted to 3172737 and 5369737, respectively.

Most of the holders of these loans are the Company’s stockholders and include notes payable to
Company’s CEO and his family amounting to 366,737 as of both December 31, 2021 and 2020,

Interest expense incurred on these loans for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 amounted
tor $32,033 and $38,200, respectively. Interest payable as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 amounted
to 372,804 and 365,771, respectively. In 2021, the Company repaid $25,000 of accrued interest. The

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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YOUSOLAR, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020 and for the years then ended

Company also determined that 524,509 of the outstanding accrued interest will be paid in stock but
this was not vet formalized and therefore remained as outstanding liability as of December 31, 2021.

On March 5, 2020, the Company issued warrants to one of its lenders (see Note 6), valued at $3,450,
which was recorded as a discount on the loan and amortized over its term. Amortization of discount
to interest expense amounted to 33,450 for the year ended December 31, 2020,

Convertible Notes
200 8-2020 ssuances

In 2012 to 2018, the Company issued various convertible notes for total principal of $3,627,723.
These notes bear interest ranging from 2.04% to 15% per annum. In 2018, §3,495,823 of these
convertible notes, including its total accrued interest of $323,624, were converted into Series Seed
preferred stock, Series A preferred stock, and Class B common stock, leaving unpaid unconverted
principal of $131,900 as of both December 31, 2021 and 2020, The Company incurred interest
expense of $7,532 and $6,905 for the vears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, related
to these unconverted notes and accrued interest payable of $36,262 and 528,730 as of December 31,
2021 and 2020, respectively. In 2021, the Company and the note holders agreed to conversion but
such was not vet formalized and therefore remained as outstanding liability as of December 31, 2021,

The convertible notes are subject to automatic conversion upon the next qualified equity financing (as
defined in the note agreements) of not less than 32,500,000, or optonal conversion upon a non-
qualified financing at the majority holders” election, The conversion price on this conversion feature
is either 33% premium or 20% to 80% discount (depends on class of equity to be converted), to
pricing in the triggering equity financing or the share price implied by a valuation cap of 54,500,000
on the Company’s fully diluted capital. The notes are also optionally convertble at marturity, where
the conversion price under this conversion feature is at the share price implied by a valuation cap of
$4,500,000 on the Company’s fully diluted capital. If there is a corporate transaction (as defined in
the agreement), the holders of the convertible notes may elect to convert to Class A common stock
at the price per share implied by a valuation cap of $4,500,000 on the Company’s fully diluted capital
or take payment of 100% of the then outstanding principal plus accrued interest. The Company
reviewed these notes for beneficial conversion features and determined the notes did not require
discount for beneficial conversion features at the issuance dates,

20271 ssuances

In 2021, the Company issued convertible notes for total principal of 350,000, These notes bear
interest of 10% per annum and shall be due and payable upon request of the majority stockholders
on or after May 9, 2022, or upon a change in control event. The Company incurred interest expense
of 34,411 for the vear ended December 31, 2021 and accrued interest payable of 34,411 as of
December 31, 2021 related to these notes.

Any unpaid accrued interest on convertible notes is subject to automatic conversion upon the next
qualified equity financing (as defined in the note agreements) of not less than $1,000,000, or optional
conversion upon a non-qualified financing. The conversion price is equal to the cash price paid per
share for the equity securities by the investors in the qualified financing, The issuance of equity

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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YOUSOLAR, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020 and for the years then ended

securities pursuant to the conversion of these notes shall be upon and subject to the same terms and
conditions applicable to equity securities sold in the qualified financing. The Company reviewed these
notes for beneficial conversion features and determined the notes did not require discount for
beneficial conversion features at the issuance dates,

SAFE Agreements
2071 9-2020) Lsswances

In 2019 to 2020, the Company issued simple agreements for future equity (SAFE agreements) in
exchange for cash investments for total amount of 388,000 (the “Purchase Amount™). The terms
provide tor automatic conversion of the SAFE agreements” purchase amounts into the Company’s
preferred stock if and upon an equity financing event, which is generally defined as a transaction or
series of transactions involving the issuance of the Company’s preferred stock at a fixed pre-money
valuation. The number of shares of preferred stock the SAFE agreements convert into is the Purchase
Amount divided by the conversion rate determined either (a) valuation cap price (as defined in the
agreement as a share price determined by a $10,000,000 post-money valuation on the Company’s fully
diluted capitalization); or (b} a 20% discount (15% on one SAFE agreement) to the share pricing in
the triggering round, whichever results in a greater number of shares of preferred stock.

In the case of a liquidity event (as defined in the SAFE agreement) betore the termination ot the
SAFE, the investor has the option to either a) receive a cash payment equal to the Purchase Amount
or b) the amount payable on the number of common stock shares equal to the Purchase Amount
divided by the liquidity price (as defined in the agreement as a share price determined by a $10,000,000
post-money valuation on the Company’s fully diluted capitalization).

The SAFE agreements provide holders with various addinonal protections, including preferences over
stockholders in a dissolution event for payment of the Purchase Amount and anti-dilution protections.

In 2021, some of the SAFE holders agreed to conversion but was not yet formalized and therefore
remained as outstanding liability as of December 31, 2021,

2021 [sswances

In 2021, the Company issued SAFE agreements in exchange for cash investments for total amount of
$3,000,000 (the “Purchase Amount™). The terms provide for automatic conversion of the SAFE
agreements’ purchase amounts into the Company’s common stock or preferred stock (“Capital
Stock™) if and upon an equity financing event, which is generally defined as a transaction or series of
transactions involving the issuance of the Company™s Capital Stock at a fixed pre-money valuation,
The number of shares of Capital Stock the SAFE agreements convert into is the Purchase Amount
divided by the conversion rate determined either (a) valuation cap price (as defined in the agreement
as a share price determined by a 320,000,000 tor $2,000,000 of the SAFE agreements and $30,000,000
tor 1,000,000 of the SAFE agreements valuation on the Company’s fully diluted capitalization); or
(b) a 20% discount to the share pricing in the triggering round, whichever results in a greater number
of shares of Capital Stock.

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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In the case of a liquidity event (as defined in the SAFE agreement) before the termination of the
SAFE, the investor has the option to either a) receive a cash pavment equal to the Purchase Amount
or b} the amount payable on the number of common stock shares equal to the Purchase Amount
divided by the liquidity price (as defined in the agreement as a share price determined by a $20,000,000
for $2,000,000 of the SAFE agreements and 530,000,000 for $1,000,000 of the SAFE agreements

valuation on the Company’s fully diluted capitalization).

The SAFE agreements provide holders with various additional protections, including preferences over
stockholders in a dissolution event for payment of the Purchase Amount and anti-dilution protections,

As discussed in Note 6, the Regulation Crowdfunding conducted in December 2021 triggered the
conversion of these SAFE agreements issued in 2021 totaling $3,000,000 to 8,728 221 shares of Class
B common stock at conversion prices of 30.31-50.46 per share.

MNOTE 6: STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT

The Company authorized 36,441,310 shares of preferred stock at $0.000001 par value and 132,000,000
shares of common stock at $0.000001 par value. The Company designated its preferred stock as
6,552,714 shares of Series Seed-1 preferred stock, 2,611,616 shares of Series Seed-2 preferred stock,
2,018,566 shares of Series Seed-3 preferred stock, 2,309,579 shares of Series Seed-4 preferred stock,
1,814,742 shares of Series Seed-5 preferred stock, and 4,559,507 shares of Series Seed-6 preferred
stock (the Series Seed-1 preferred stock, Series Seed-2 preterred stock, Series Seed-3 preferred stock,
Series Seed-4 preferred stock, Series Seed-3 preferred stock and Series Seed-6 preferred stock,
collectively, are referred to as the “Series Seed preferred stock™) and 16,574,586 shares of Series A
preferred stock. The Company designated its common stock as 67,000,000 shares of Class A common

stock and 65,000,000 shares of Class B common stock.

The original issuance price for each class of preferred stock is as follows:
e Scries Sced-1 preferred stock: $0.3325
® Series Seed-2 preferred stock: $0.20
®  Series Seed-3 preferred stock: $0.175
e Series Seed-4 preferred stock: 30015
e Series Seed-5 preferred stock: $0.0613
e Series Seed-0 preferred stock: $0.05
e Series A preferred stock: $0.0905

All preferred stockholders have wvarious other rights and preferences over common stockholders,
including voting rights on an as-converted basis, and other protective provisions. The preferred
stockholders have certain dividend preferences over common stockholders at a per share rate of 6%
of each series of preferred stock’s original issuance price (as defined above) per annum, and then
ratable distribution of any additional dividends on an as-converted basis with common stock. The
preferred stock is subject to an optional conversion right, where preferred stock is convertible into
fully paid and non-assessable shares of Class B common stock at a 1:1 rate, with certain dilution
protections. All shares of preferred stock are subject to automatic conversion into Class B common

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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stock upon the earlier of an initial public offering with at least $30,000,000 gross proceeds or by vote
or written consent of the requisite holders.

Preferred stockholders have liquidation preferences of (i) with respect to the Series Seed preferred
stock, the product of 1.5 and applicable dilution protected original issue price per share (as defined
above) and (i) with respect to the Series A preferred stock, the applicable oniginal issue price (as
defined above), plus declared but unpaid dividends on such share. As of both December 31, 2021
and 2020, the total liquidation preference was $6,301,182. All remaining assets of the Company after
satisfaction of the preferred stock liquidation preferences are distributed to common stockholders,
but preferred stockholders are entitled to instead receive proceeds on an as-converted basis should
such proceeds be greater than the liquidation preference.

Class A common stock have voting rights of 10 votes per share and Class B common stock have
voting rights of 1 vote per share. Preferred stock is entitled to vote with holders of Class B common
stock on an as-converted basis. The Class A common stock is subject to an optional conversion,
where Class A common stock is convertible into fully paid and no-assessable shares of Class B
commaon stock at a 1:1 rate.

Preterred Stock

In 2020, the Company issued 1,215,460 shares of Series A preferred stock in conversion of notes
payable with principal amount of $§110,000 at a conversion price of $0.0905,

As of both December 31, 2021 and 2020, 6,207,787 shares of Series Seed-1 preferred stock were issued
and outstanding, 2,557 431 shares of Series Seed-2 preferred stock were issued and outstanding,
2,018,566 shares of Series Seed-3 preferred stock were issued and outstanding, 2,309,579 shares of
Series Seed-4 preferred stock were issued and outstanding, 1,814,742 shares of Series Seed-5 preferred
stock were 1ssued and outstanding, 4,517,668 shares of Series Seed-6 preferred stock were 1ssued and
outstanding, and 9,752,474 shares of Series A preferred stock were issued and outstanding,

Common |5
Reg CF §0.17

In 2020, the Company conducted an offering of its Class B common stock under Regulation
Crowdfunding (Reg CF) through StartEngine Secure, LLC at $0.17 per share. For the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company issued 575,306 and 5,989,149 shares of Class B
common stock for total gross proceeds of 397,802 and 31,018,155, all respectively. Total offering
cost incurred related to this offering was $54,642 and $202,374 for the years ended December 31,
2021 and 2020, respectively. Included in the 2021 offering cost was $21,613 of non-cash issuance
of 127,135 shares of Class B commeon stock to StartEngine Secure, LLC as commission on the Reg
CEF campaign. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, 30 and $49,078 of the invested funds is held
under escrow, respectively, and recognized as escrow receivable in the balance sheet.

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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Reg CF §0.74

In 2021, the Company conducted another offering of its Class B common stock under Regulation
Crowdfunding (Reg CF) through StartEngine Secure, LLC at 50.74 per share. For the vear ended
December 31, 2021, the Company issued 195,926 shares of Class B common stock for total gross
proceeds of $123,183. Total offering cost incurred related to this oftering was $11,087 for the
vear ended December 31, 2021, Included in the 2021 offering cost was $2,464 of non-cash
issuance of 3,919 shares of Class B common stock to StartEngine Secure, LLC as commission on the
Reg CF campaign. As of December 31, 2021, $114,560 of the invested funds is held under escrow
and recognized as escrow receivable in the balance sheet,

This Reg CF offering triggered the conversion of the SAFE liability totaling 53,000,000 to
8,728,221 shares of Class B common stock at conversion prices of $0.31-5(L.46 per share.

Other Tssseances

In 2020, the Company issued 1,025,292 shares of Class B common stock at $0.17 per share for
total proceeds of $174,300. Also in 2020, the Company issued 103,699 shares of Class B common
stock in conversion of interest pavable amounting to $20,784 at a conversion price of 50,2004, as
discussed in Note 5.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, 8,855,781 and 8,855,781 shares of Class A common stock were
1ssued and outstanding, and 17,238,948 and 7,608,441 shares of Class B common stock were issued
and outstanding, all respectively,

Stock Options

The Company has adopted the 2013 Stock Plan (the “Plan™), which provides for the grant of shares
of stock options to employvees and non-emplovee directors. The Company has reserved 15,006,943
shares of Class B common stock for issuance under the Plan. The options generally have a term of
ten vears and vesting generally occurs immediately,  As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, 1,476,840
and 2,815,075 shares of Class B common stock were available for grant, respectively.

A summary of options activities for the vears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020) is as follows:

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Weighted Average Weighted Average

Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price
Outstanding - beginning of year 12,183,165 § (4 2,578,165 3§ 0,07
Granted 1,338,235  § 017 0605000 8§ 0,03

Forteited - 5 - - 5 -
Outstanding - end of year 13,521 400 5 (.05 12,183,165  § 0
Exercisable at end of year 13,371,400 § (.05 12,183,165 5 X=

Intrinsic value of options outstanding
at year-end 5 1,595 390 8 O, D00

Weighted average duration (years) to

ifl{l'rifﬂtj{}ﬂ af nutsrﬂndjng :thmns at
year-ed 7.81 H.69

Weighted average duration (years) to
cxpiration of exercisable options at
year-end 7.80 860

The Company measures emplovee stock-based awards at grant-date fair value and recognizes
employvee compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the vesting period of the award.
Determining the appropriate fair value of stock-based awards requires the input of subjective
assumptions, including the fair value of the Company’s common stock, and for stock options, the
expected life of the option, and expected stock price volatility. The Company used the Black-5choles
option pricing model to value its stock option awards. The assumptons used in calculating the fair
value ot stock-based awards represent management’s best estimates and involve inherent uncertainties
and the application of management’s judgment. As a result, if factors change and management uses
different assumptions, stock-based compensation expense could be materially different for future
awards.

The expected life of stock options was estimated using the “simplified method,” which is the midpoint
between the vesting start date and the end of the contractual term, as the Company has limited
historical information to develop reasonable expectations about future exercise patterns and
employment duration for its stock options grants, The simplified method is based on the average of
the vesting tranches and the contractual life of each grant. For stock price volatility, the Company
uses comparable public companies as a basis for its expected volatility to calculate the fair value of
options grants. The risk-free interest rate 1s based on U.S. Treasury notes with a term approximating
the expected life of the option. The estimation of the number of stock awards that will ultimately vest
requires judgment, and to the extent actual results or updated estimates differ from the Company’s
current estimates, such amounts are recognized as an adjustment in the period in which estimates are

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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revised. In accordance with ASC 718, as a private company, the Company has elected to use a (%
forfeiture rate in calculating its stock compensation expense.

The stock option issuances were valued using the using the following inputs for the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Risk Free Interest Rate 0. 36%-0. 79 0,37%
Expected Dividend Yield (L00F% AT
Expected Volanlity GU.00% GO0,
Expected Lite (years) 5-6 5
Fair Value per Stock Option s0.10 $0.02

The total grant date fair value of options issued during the year ended December 31, 2021 was
$129,621. The Company calculated 1ts estimate of the value of the stock-based compensation granted
for the vears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 under FASB ASC 718, and recorded compensation
costs related to the stock option grants of $116,767 and $163,285, respectively. As of December 31,
2021, there was 312,853 of unrecognized stock-based compensation, which will be recognized over a
weighted average period of 40 months,

Warrants

Trrsiancer

In 2020), the Company issued warrants to one of its lenders. The warrant expires atter a 10-vear term
in 2030, The warrants provide the lender with the right to purchase up to 150,000 shares of Class B
common stock at an exercise price of 30.01 per share. The warrants were valued under the Black-
Scholes model at $3,450, which was recorded as a discount on the loan and amortized over its term.,

The Black-5choles fair value was determined using the following inputs:

Risk Free Interest Rate (L67%
FExpected Dividend Yield (L0
Expected Volatility GELOOS G
Expected Life (vears) 5

Fair Value per Stock Opruon $0.023

Olutstanding

Outstanding warrants for the purchase of Class B common stock as of both December 31, 2021 and
2020 were 5,595,350, As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, no warrants have been converted into the
Company’s stock. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the weighted average exercise price of the
outstanding warrants was 30,19 and 30.19 per share, with a weighted average duration to expiration
of 4.9 and 5.9 vears, and intrinsic value of $264,231 and $34,500, all respectively.

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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NOTE 7: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has notes receivable from its CEO amounting to $37,469 and $26,971 as of December
31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, as discussed in Note 4.

The Company has notes payable to 1ts CEO and his family amounting to 566,737 as of both December
31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, as discussed in Note 5.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company recognized $15,486 in revenue from the sale of
solar technology to its stockholder,

The Company paid $2,367 and $2,678 of consulting fees to one of its founders for the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

NOTE 8: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

(General

The Company may be subject to pending legal proceedings and regulatory actions in the ordinary
course of business. The results of such proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty, but the
Company does not anticipate that the final outcome, it any, arising out of any such matter will have a
material adverse effect on its business, financial condition or results of operations.

SAFE and Convertuble Note Conversions

As discussed in Note 5, the holders of convertible notes with outstanding principal of $131,900 and the
holders of SAFE agreements with outstanding amount of $58,000 agreed to the conversion of the
outstanding liability to Company’s stock but was not vet formalized through the issuance of these
financial statements.

Options

In 2021, the Company made informal commitments to two employees to 1ssue stock options in 2022
in lieu of compensation totaling $49.500. Through the 1ssuance date of these financial statements, no
options have been 1ssued.

NOTE 9: LEASE COMMITMENT

In October 2020, the Company entered into a lease agreement for office space, storage for solar
applications, and assembly of components into electrical cabinets, which commenced on January 1,
2021 and for a period of three vears ending December 31, 2023, The agreement called for a security
deposit of 34,776 and one-month advance rental. The monthly rental fee is 82,250 for the first year,

with subsequent annual rent increases of 3% over the next two years.

In June 2021, the term of the lease agreement was extended for eight months, from January 1, 2024
to August 31, 2024, Eftective July 19, 2021, the lease premises was adjusted to include an additional
1,250 square teet, with additional base rent for the expanded premises of $1,022 in July 2021, $2,438

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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in August 1, 2021 to July 31, 2022, $2,511 in August 1, 2022 to July 31, 2023, $2,580 in the next five

months, and $2,460 on the last eight months of the lease term.

Future minimum payments under this lease are as follows:

2022 $52,493
2023 58,031
20024 19,583

Total future minimum lease payments  §130,107

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company incurred $43,861 of rent expense to this lease.

MNOTE 10: RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leaser (Topic 842). This ASU requires a lessee
to recognize a right-of-use asset and a lease liability under most operating leases in its balance
sheet. The ASU is etfectuve for annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2021,
including interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted. The Company
is in the process of evaluating the impact of this standard.

In October 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-16, Income Taxes (Tapic 740): Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets
Ovher than Inventory, which eliminates the excepton that prohibits the recognition of current and
deferred income tax effects for intra-entity transfers of assets other than inventory until the asset
has been sold to an outside party. The updated guidance is effective for annual periods beginning
after December 15, 2019, including interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption of
the update is permitted. Management believes that the adoption of ASU 2016-16 had no impact
on the Company’s financial statements and disclosures.

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-04, Intangibles - Goodwill and Other (Topic 350),
smpifying Acconnting for Goodwill Impatrment (“ASU 2017-047),  ASU 2017-04 removes the
requirement to perform a hypothetical purchase price allocation to measure goodwill impairment,
A goodwill impairment will now be the amount by which a reporting unit’s carrying value exceeds
its fair value, not to exceed the carrying amount of goodwill. The amendments in this update are
eftective for public entities for fiscal yvears, and interim periods within those fiscal yvears, beginning
after December 15, 2020, For all other entities, the amendment is effective for fiscal vears
beginning after December 15, 2022, including interim periods within those fiscal years. The
Company is currently evaluating the impact the adoption of ASU 2017-04 will have on the
Company’s financial statements.

In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 20018-07, Compensation - Stock Compensation (Topic 718):
Lwsprovements to Nonemployee Share-Based Paymeent Accomnting (“ASU 2018-077). ASU 2018-07
eliminates the separate accounting model for nonemployee share-based payment awards and
generally  requires companies to account for share-based payment transactions with
nonemployees in the same way as share-based payment transactions with employees. The
accounting remains different for attribution, which represents how the equity-based payment cost
is recognized over the vesting period, and a contractual term election for valuing nonemployee
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equity share options. ASU 2018-07 is effective for non-public companies in fiscal vears, and
interim periods within those vears, beginning after December 15, 2019, and interim periods within
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020 with early adoption permitted. The Company
early adopted this standard effective in these financial statements, which did not have a material
impact on Company’s financial condition or results of operations,

In August 2018, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU} 2018-13, Faer alue
Measurement (Topic 820): Disclosure Framework - Changer fo the Disclosure Reguiresments for Fair 1Value
Meassrement, which changes the fair value measurement disclosure requirements of ASC 820), This
update is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019, and for interim periods
within those fiscal years. The adoption of ASU 2018-13 did not have a material impact on the
Company’s financial statements.

In August 2018, the FASD issued ASU 2018-15, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other — Internal-Use
Software (Subtopic 350-40): Customer's Acconnting for Impilementation Costs Incurved in a Clond Compuiting
Arrangenent that is a Nervice Contract (“ASU 2018-157). ASU 2018-15 requires a customer in a cloud
computing arrangement that is a service contract to follow the internal-use software guidance in
ASC 350-40 to determine which implementation costs to defer and recognize as an asset. The
amendments in this update are effective for public entities for fiscal years, and interim periods
within those fiscal vears, beginning after December 15, 2019. For all other entities, the
amendment is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020, and interim periods
within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021. The adoption of ASU 2018-15 did not
have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

In August 2020, FASB issued ASU 2020-006, Acconnting for Convertible Instruments and Contracts in an
Entityy Own Equety (“ASU 2020-06"), as part of its overall simplification initiative to reduce costs
and complexity of applying accounting standards while maintaining or improving the usefulness
of the information provided to users of financial statements, Among other changes, the new
guidance removes from GAAP separation models for convertible debt that require the
convertible debt to be separated into a debt and equity component, unless the conversion teature
15 required to be bifurcated and accounted for as a derivative or the debt is issued at a substantial
premium. As a result, after adopting the guidance, entities will no longer separately present such
embedded conversion features in equity, and will instead account for the convertible debt wholly
as debt. The new guidance also requires use of the “if-converted” method when calculating the
dilutive impact of convertible debt on earnings per share, which 1s consistent with the Company’s
current accounting treatment under the current guidance. The guidance is effective for financial
statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021, and interim periods within
those fiscal years, with early adoption permitted, but only at the beginning of the fiscal year. The
Company 1s currently evaluating the impact the adoption of ASU 2020-06 will have on the
Company’s financial statements.

Management does not believe that any other recently issued, but not vet effective, accounting
standards could have a material effect on the accompanying combined financial statements. As
new accounting pronouncements are issued, the Company will adopt those that are applicable
under the circumstances,

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
25 -



YOUSOLAR, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020 and for the years then ended

NOTE 11: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Reg CFF 50.74

Subsequent to December 31, 2021, the Company issued 352,993 shares of Class B common stock
at $0.74 per share under its then ongoing Reg CF offering discussed in Note 6 for gross proceeds
of $244,190 and incurred total offering costs of $40,555. Also, the Company issued 7,060 shares
of Class B common stock to StartEngine Secure, LILC as commission of the Reg CF campaign.

Stock Options

In 2022, the Company issued options for the issuance of 92,647 shares of Class B common stock with
exercise prices of $0.17 per share.

Management’s Evaluation

Management has evaluated subsequent events through April 21, 2022, the date the financial statements
were avallable to be issued. Based on this evaluation, no addinonal matenal events were identified
which require adjustment or disclosure in these financial statements,

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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EXHIBIT D TO FORM C

VIDEO TRANSCRIPT

YouSolar - Invest on StartEngine

Record heat on the East Coast. Wildfires and a mega drought across the American West.
(News reporter speaks).

We need to act.

Electric utilities, a major contributor to climate change, must rapidly transition to renewable
energy. At the same time, utilities are becoming overwhelmed by the changing climate and can
no longer provide reliable power.

Utilities are failing because the centralized power grid cannot withstand weather extremes and
cannot support the amount of solar required for a clean energy future. Customers want reliable
and clean power, to get rid of generators, or replace utility power.

Our solution is the YouSolar PowerBloc, a solar nano-grid for the home and business. Our
customers enjoy uninterrupted power because the PowerBloc is their primary power supply with
little or no reliance on utility power. It requires no utility approval.

Delivering primary power independent of utilities requires a high-power system. A rapid energy
transition demands solutions that are faster and easier to deploy.

Highly differentiated and patented, the PowerBloc meets these demands. It combines advanced
solar panel electronics, sophisticated energy storage technology, and multiple power sources
into a single power system. Fully automated and intelligent, the PowerBloc is the future of
power.

Thanks to our investors, we have created a better product than we ever envisioned. And today, I
want to show you the innovation you have funded including the new, revolutionary, stackable
PowerBloc. I'm also here to tell you about our success in the market, and what comes next for
YouSolar.

This is the PowerBloc. The PowerBloc is a high-output, ultra-efficient nano-grid—an
independent power system that provides reliable around-the-clock electricity for the entire
house. Since our last campaign, we have completed engineering and are now installing the
product with our first customers.

Our timing couldn't be better. Demand for solar-battery systems is skyrocketing. As utility grids
are crumbling and climate change is reshaping our world, customers and governments are
forced to rethink how to ensure reliable electricity. Homeowners around the world are thinking
more independently and are more self-reliant.

The PowerBloc is customizable and scalable for every customer - large or small. The
PowerBloc’s patented design comprises independent modules that create a power system that
fits any customer’s need. And this is, how we can build a system for a house in California or for a



clinic in Florida.

Did I mention how intelligent the system is? YouSolar scientists access NASA satellites and run
atmospheric models to create a real-time solar forecast specific for each customer location. We
then send this forecast to the PowerBloc which helps the nano-grid to perform at its best.

Information and system control are always at yvour fingertips on YouSolar's custom tablet
interface. When not in use, the tablet serves as an elegant timepiece and weather station.

Current solar-battery systems require trained installers, dollies, and lift jacks and are difficult to
deploy. Installers don't want to deal with heavy solar-battery systems. Therefore, our vision has
always been to create a stackable version of the PowerBloc that can easily be shipped and
assembled by anyone.

And with your help we have built it. We are incredibly proud to show you the stackable
PowerBloc. Here it is. It is simple and robust. It is plug-and-play and expandable. The modules
interlock and make the system entirely safe.

YouSolar delivers clean and reliable electricity that is the foundation for addressing the world's
greatest challenges, from climate to clean water to education. We have sold over one million
dollars worth of PowerBloc systems to early customers. We are now ready to ramp up
production and begin selling on a larger scale.

The world has challenges, but we have imagination and technology. We have it in our hands to
create the world we want to live in. So, come to our campaign at StartEngine and invest in the
future of power.

Today, the PowerBloc delivers reliable power to homes in Northern California. We are now
selling the next-generation PowerBloc which will be capable of powering even the largest homes
and businesses.

Our first crowdfunding campaign was oversubscribed and raised $1 million. It caught the
attention of an energy investor who subsequently invested over $3 million in YouSolar. [These
investors made our success possible and your investment is important to what comes next.]

To take the PowerBloc global and unleash its enormous potential, we are developing a stackable
PowerBloc that is plug-and-play. It will be easy to ship and even easier to assemble. Customers
can build a small PowerBloc or scale it into a large system.

Sales for residential solar-battery systems are increasing 23% per vear and forecast to reach
$17.5 billion in 2024. Opportunities are everywhere and our pipeline is growing.

Yes, we can build a better world. So, join us and invest in the future of power. Invest in YouSolar
today.



STARTENGINE SUBSCRIPTION PROCESS (Exhibit E)

Platform Compensation

As compensation for the services provided by StartEngine Capital, the 1ssuer 1s required to pay to
StartEngine Capital a fee consisting of a 5.5-13% (five and one-half to thirteen) commission based on
the dollar amount of securities sold in the Offering and paid upon disbursement of funds from escrow
at the time of a closing. The commission is paid in cash and in securities of the Issuer identical to
those offered to the public in the Offering at the sole discretion of StartEngine Capital. Additionally,
the issuer must reimburse certain expenses related to the Offering. The securities issued to StartEngine
Capital, if any, will be of the same class and have the same terms, conditions and rights as the
securities being offered and sold by the 1ssuer on StartEngine Capital’s website,

As compensation for the services provided by StartEngine Capital, investors are also required to pay
StartEngine Capital a fee consisting of a 0-3.5% (zero to three and a half percent) service fee based on
the dollar amount of securities purchased in each investment.

Information Regarding Length of Time of Offering

Investment Cancellations: Investors will have up to 48 hours prior to the end of the offering period to
change their minds and cancel their investment commitments for any reason. Once within 48 hours of
ending, investors will not be able to cancel for any reason, even if they make a commitment during
this period.

Material Changes: Material changes to an offering include but are not hmited to: A change in
minimum offering amount, change in security price, change in management, material change to
financial information, etc. If an 1ssuer makes a material change to the offering terms or other
information disclosed, including a change to the offering deadline, investors will be given five
business days to reconfirm their investment commitment. If investors do not reconfirm, their
mvestment will be canceled and the funds will be returned.

Hitting The Tareet Goal Earlv & Oversubscriptions

StartEngine Capital will notify investors by email when the target offering amount has hit 25%, 50%
and 100% of the funding goal. If the issuer hits its goal early, the issuer can create a new target
deadline at least 5 business days out. Investors will be notified of the new target deadline via email
and will then have the opportunity to cancel up to 48 hours before the new deadline.

Oversubscriptions: We require all 1ssuers to accept oversubscriptions. This may not be possible if: 1) 1t
vaults an issuer into a different category for financial statement requirements {and they do not have the
requisite financial statements); or 2) they reach

$5M in investments. In the event of an oversubscription, shares will be allocated at the discretion of the
1S5UET,

If the sum of the investment commitments does not equal or exceed the target offering amount at the
offering deadline, no securities will be sold in the offering, investment commitments will be canceled
and committed funds will be returned.

If a StartEngine issuer reaches its target offering amount prior to the deadline, it may conduct an
initial closing of the offering early if they provide notice of the new offering deadline at least five
business days prior to the new offering deadline (absent a material change that would require an
extension of the offering and reconfirmation of the investment commitment). StartEngine will notify



mvestors when the issuer meets its target offering amount. Thereafter, the 1ssuer may conduct
additional closings until the offering deadline.

Minimum and Maximum Investment Amounts

e In order to invest, to commit to an investment or to communicate on our platform, users must open an
account on StartEngine Capital and provide certain personal and non- personal information including
information related to income, net worth, and other investments.

« Investor Limitations: There are no investment limits for investing in crowdfunding offerings for
accredited investors. Non-accredited investors are mited in how much they can invest on all
crowdfunding offerings during any 12-month period. The limitation on how much they can invest
depends on their net worth (excluding the value of their primary residence) and annual income. If
either their annual income or net worth is less than 5107,000, then during any 12-month period, they
can invest either $2,200 or 5% of their annual income or net worth, whichever is greater. If both their
annual income and net worth are equal to or more than $107,000, then during any 12-month period,
they can invest up to 10% of annual income or net worth, whichever 1s greater, but their investments
cannot exceed $107,000.



EXHIBIT F TO FORM C

ADDITIONAL CORPORATE DOCUMENTS

[See attached]



Delaware

The First State

I, JEFFREY W. BULLOCK, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF
DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THE ATTACHED IS A TRUE AND CORRECT
COPY OF THE RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF “YOUSOLAR, INC.”, FILED IN
THIS OFFICE ON THE ELEVENTH DAY OF DECEMBER, A.D. 2018, AT 5:34
O CLOCK P.M.

A FILED COPY OF THIS CERTIFICATE HAS BEEN FORWARDED TC THE

KENT COUNTY RECORDER OF DEEDS.

Jaffrey W, Bullock, Secretary of Sate )

Authentication: 204079404
Date: 12-12-18

4821956 8100
SR# 20188092404

You may verify this certificate online at corp.delaware. gov/authver_shtml




State of Delaware
Secretary of State
Division of Corporations
Deelivered 0534 PM 12112018
FILED 05:34 PM 12112018
SR 20188092404 - File Number 4821956

AMENDED AND RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
YOUSOLAR, INC.

(Pursuant to Sections 242 and 245 of the
General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware)

YOUSOLAR, INC., a corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the
provisions of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the “General Corporation
Law™),

DOES HEREBY CERTIFY:

FIRST: That the name of this corporation is YOUSOLAR, INC. and that this
corporation was originally incorporated pursuant to the General Corporation Law on May 11,
2010, under the name of Fireball Solar Technology Inc.

SECOND: That the Board of Directors of this corporation duly adopted resolutions
proposing to amend and restate the Certificate of Incorporation of this corporation, declaring said
amendment and restatement to be advisable and in the best mterests of this corporation and its
stockholders, and authorizing the appropriate officers of this corporation to solicit the consent of
the stockholders therefor, which resolution seiting forth the proposed amendment and
restatement 18 as follows:

RESOLVED, that the Certificate of Incorporation of this corporation be amended and
restated in its entirety as follows:

ARTICLE 1
The name of this corporation 1s YouSolar, Inc.
ARTICLE I

The address of this corporation’s registered office in the State of Delaware is 3500 South
Dupont Highway in the City of Dover, County of Kent, 19901, The name of this corporation’s
registered agent at such address is Incorporating Services, Lid.

ARTICLE I

The nature of the business or purposes to be conducted or promoted is to engage in any

lawful act or activity for which corporations may be organized under the General Corporation
Law.

ARTICLE IV

A, Authonzation of Stock. This corporation is authorized to issue two classes of
stock to be designated, respectively, common stock and preferred stock. The total number of
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shares that this corporation is authorized to issue is 124,445,728, The total number of shares of
common stock authorized to be issued is 88,004,418, par value 350.000001 per share (the
“Common Stock™), of which 67,000,000 shares are designated as “Class A Common Stock™ and
21,004,418 shares are designated as “Class B Common Stock.” The total number of shares of
preferred stock authorized to be issued is 36,441,310, par value $0.000001 per share (the
“Preferred Stock™), of which 6,552,714 shares are designated as “Series Seed-1 Preferred Stock,”
2,611,616 shares are designated as “Series Seed-2 Preferred Stock,” 2,018,566 shares are
designated as “Senies Sead-3 Preferred Stock,” 2,309,579 shares are designated as “Series Seed-4
Preferred Stock,” 1,814,742 shares are designated as “Series Seed-5 Preferred Stock,” 4,559,507
shares are designated as “Series Seed-6 Preferred Stock™ (the Series Seed-1 Preferred Stock,
Series Seed-2 Preferred Stock, Series Seed-3 Preferred Stock, Series Seed-4 Preferred Stock,
Series Seed-5 Preferred Stock and Series Seed-6 Preferred Stock, collectively, are referred to
herein as the “Senes Seed Preferred Stock™), and 16,574,586 shares are designated as "Series A
Preferred Stock.”

B. Rights, Preferences and Restrictions of Preferred Stock. The rights, preferences,
privileges and restrictions granted to and imposed on the Preferred Stock are as set forth below in
this Article IV(B).

1. Dividend Provisions,

(a) The holders of shares of Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive
dividends, out of any assets legally available therefor, prior and in preference to any declaration
or payment of any dividend (payable other than in Class A Common Stock, Class B Common
Stock or other securities and rights convertible into or entitling the holder thereof to receive,
directly or indirectly, additional shares of Class A Common Stock or Class B Common Stock of
this corporation) on the Class A Common Stock or Class B Common Stock of this corporation,
at the applicable Dividend Rate (as defined below), payable when, as and if declared by the
Board of Directors. Such dividends shall not be cumulative. The holders of the outstanding
Preferred Stock can waive any dividend preference that such holders shall be entitled to receive
under this Section 1 upon the affirmative vote or written consent of the holders of a majority of
the shares of Preferred Stock then outstanding (voting together as a single class and not as
separate series, and on an as-converted basis). For purposes of this subsection 1(a), “Dividend
Rate™ shall mean, with respect to any share of Preferred Stock, an amount per annum equal to six
percent (6%) of the Origimnal Issue Price applicable to such share of Preferred Stock {each as
adjusted for any stock splits, stock dividends, combinations, subdivisions, recapitalizations or the
like).

(b)  After payment of such dividends, any additional dividends or
distributions shall be distributed among all holders of Class A Common Stock, Class B Common
Stock and Preferred Stock in proportion to the number of shares of Class A Common Stock and
Class B Common Stock that would be held by each such holder if all shares of Preferred Stock
were converted to Class B Common Stock at the then effective conversion rate,
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2. Liguidation Preference.

(a) In the event of any Liquidation Event (as defined below), either
voluntary or involuntary, the holders of each senes of Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive
out of the proceeds or assets of this corporation available for distribution to its stockholders (the
“Proceeds™), prior and in preference to any distribution of the Proceeds of such Liquidation
Event to the holders of Class A Common Stock or Class B Common Stock by reason of their
ownership thereof, an amount per share equal to the sum of (i) with respect to the Series Seed
Preferred Stock, the product of one and one-half (1.5) and the applicable Original Issue Price (as
defined below) and (11) with respect to the Series A Preferred Stock, the applicable Oniginal Issue
Price (as defined below), plus declared but unpaid dividends on such share. If, upon the
occurrence of such event, the Proceeds thus distributed among the holders of the Preferred Stock
shall be insufficient to permit the payment to such holders of the full aforesaid preferential
amounts, then the entire Proceeds legally available for distribution shall be distributed ratably
among the holders of the Preferred Stock in proportion to the full preferential amount that each
such holder is otherwise entitled to receive under this subsection (a). For purposes of this
Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (the “Restated Certificate of Incorporation™),
“Original Issue Price” shall mean $0.3325 per share for each share of the Series Seed-1 Preferred
Stock, $0.2000 per share for each share of the Series Seed-2 Preferred Stock, $0.1750 per share
for each share of the Series Seed-3 Preferred Stock, $0.1500 per share for each share of the
Series Seed-4 Preferred Stock, $0.0613 per share for each share of the Series Seed-5 Preferred
Stock, $0.0500 per share for each share of the Series Seed-6 Preferred Stock and $0.0905 per
share for each share of the Series A Preferred Stock (each as adjusted for any stock splits, stock
dividends, combinations, subdivisions, recapitalizations or the like with respect to such series of
Preferred Stock).

{b}  Upon completion of the distribution required by subsection (a) of
this Section 2, all of the remaining Proceeds available for distribution to stockholders shall be
distributed among the holders of Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock pro rata
based on the number of shares of Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock held by
each.

{c) Notwithstanding the above, for purposes of determining the
amount each holder of shares of Preferred Stock i1s entitled to recerve with respect to a
Liqudation Event, each such holder of shares of a senes of Preferred Stock shall be deemed to
have converted (regardless of whether such holder actually converted) such holder's shares of
such series into shares of Class B Common Stock immediately prior to the Liquidation Event if,
as a result of an actual conversion, such holder would receive, in the aggregate, an amount
greater than the amount that would be distributed to such holder if such holder did not convert
such senes of Preferred Stock into shares of Class B Commeon Stock. If any such holder shall be
deemed to have converted shares of Preferred Stock into Class B Common Stock pursuant to this
paragraph, then such holder shall not be entitled to recerve any distribution that would otherwise
be made to holders of Preferred Stock that have not converted {or have not been deemed to have
converted) into shares of Class B Common Stock,

(d) (i) For purposes of this Section 2, a “Liguidation Event” shall
include {A)} the closing of the sale, lease, transfer, exclusive license or other disposition of all or
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substantially all of this corporation’s assets, (B)the consummation of the merger or
consolidation of this corporation with or into another entity (except a merger or consolidation in
which the holders of capital stock of this corporation immediately prior to such merger or
consolidation continue to hold at least fifty percent (50%) of the voting power of the capital
stock of this corporation or the surviving or acquiring entity immediately following such merger
or consolidation in substantially the same proportions, and with substantially the same terms, as
held immediately prior to such merger or consohidation), (C) the closing of the transfer (whether
by merger, consolidation or otherwise), in one transaction or a series of related transactions, to a
person or group of affiliated persons (other than an underwriter of this corporation’s securities),
of this corporation’s securities if, after such closing, such person or group of affiliated persons
would hold fifty percent (50%) or more of the then outstanding voting stock of this corporation
{or the surviving or acquiring entity} or (D) a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of this
corporation; provided, however, that a transaction shall not constitute a Liguidation Event if its
sole purpose is to change the state of this corporation’s incorporation or to create a holding
company that will be owned in substantially the same proportions by the persons who held this
corporation’s securities immediately prior to such transaction. The treatment of any particular
transaction or series of related transactions as a Liquidation Event may be waived by the vote or
written consent of the holders of a majority of the outstanding Preferred Stock (voting together
as a single class and not as separate series, and on an as-converted basis).

{11} In any Liquidation Ewvent, if Proceeds received by this
corporation or its stockholders is other than cash, its value will be deemed its fair market value.
Any securities shall be valued as follows:

{A)  Securities not subject to investment letter or other
similar restrictions on free marketability covered by (B) below:

(1) If traded on a securities exchange, the value
shall be deemed to be the average of the closing prices of the securities on such exchange over
the twenty (20) trading-day period ending three (3) trading days prior to the closing of the
Ligquidation Event;

(2} If actively traded over-the-counter, the value
shall be deemed to be the average of the closing bid or sale prices (whichever is applicable) over
the twenty (20) trading-day period ending three (3) trading days prior to the closing of the
Liguidation Event; and

(3)  If there is no active public market, the value
shall be the fair market value thereof, as mutually determined by the Board of Directors and the
holders of a majority of the voting power of all then outstanding shares of Preferred Stock
{voting together as a single class and not as separate series, and on an as-converted basis);
provided that if a holder of Preferred Stock or an affiliate thereof is an acquiring entity in such
Liquidation Event, the shares of Preferred Stock held by such holder shall not be included for
purposes of such approval calculation,

(B  The method of valuation of securities subject to
investment letter or other restrictions on free marketability (other than restrictions arising solely
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by wirtue of a stockholder’s status as an affiliate or former affiliate) shall be to make an
appropriate discount from the market value determined as above in (A) (1), (2) or (3) to reflect
the approximate fair market value thereof, as mutually determined by the Board of Directors and
the holders of a majority of the voting power of all then outstanding shares of such Preferred
Stock (voting together as a single class and not as separate series, and on an as-converted basis);
provided that if a holder of Preferred Stock or an affiliate thereof is an acquiring entity in such
Liquidation Event, the shares of Preferred Stock held by such holder shall not be included for
purposes of such approval calculation.

{Cy The foregoing methods for wvaluing non-cash
consideration to be distnbuted in connection with a Liquidation Event shall, with the appropriate
approval of the definifive agreements governing such Liquidation Event by the stockholders
under the General Corporation Law and Section 6 of this Article IV(B), be superseded by the
determination of such value set forth in the definitive agreements governing such Ligquidation
Event,

{(iii) In the event the requirements of this Section2 are not
complied with, this corporation shall forthwith either:

(A) cause the closing of such Liquidation Event fo be
postponed until such time as the requirements of this Section 2 have been complied with; or

{(B)  cancel such tfransaction, in which event the rights,
preferences and privileges of the holders of the Preferred Stock shall revert to and be the same as
such rights, preferences and privileges existing immediately prior to the date of the first notice
referred to in subsection 2(d)(iv) hereof.

{iv}  This corporation shall give each holder of record of
Preferred Stock written notice of such impending Ligquidation Event not later than twenty {20}
days prior to the stockholders’ meeting called to approve such transaction, or twenty {20) days
prior to the closing of such transaction, whichever is earlier, and shall also notify such holders in
writing of the final approval of such transaction. The first of such notices shall describe the
material terms and conditions of the impending transaction and the provisions of this Section 2,
and this corporation shall thereafter give such holders prompt notice of any material changes.
The transaction shall in no event take place sooner than twenty (20) days after this corporation
has given the first notice provided for herein or sconer than ten (10) days after this corporation
has given notice of any material changes provided for herein; provided, however, that subject to
compliance with the General Corporation Law such periods may be shortened or waived upon
the written consent of the holders of Preferred Stock that represent a majority of the voting
power of all then outstanding shares of such Preferred Stock (voting together as a single class
and not as separate series, and on an as-converted basis).

(e) Allocation of Contingent Consideration. In the event of a deemed
Liguidation Event pursuant to subsection 2(d)(1), if any portion of the consideration payable to
the stockholders of this corporation is placed into escrow and/or is payable to the stockholders of
this corporation subject to contingencies, the definitive agreement with respect to such deemed
Liquidation Event shall provide that the portion of such consideration that is placed in escrow
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and/or subject to any contingencies (the “Contingent Consideration™) shall be allocated among
the holders of capital stock of this corporation in accordance with subsections 2(a) and 2(b) as if
all of the consideration ultimately payable in the transaction, including the Contingent
Consideration, is paid without restrictions at the time of closing the deemed Liguidation Event
(so that the Contingent Consideration shall be allocated among the holders of capital stock of this
corporation pro rata based on the amount of such consideration otherwise payable to each
stockholder pursuant to this Section 2).

3. Redemption. The Preferred Stock is not redeemable at the option of the
holder thereof,

4, Conversion. The holders of the Preferred Stock shall have conversion
rights as follows (the “Conversion Rights™):

{a) Right to Convert. Fach share of Preferred Stock shall be
convertible, at the option of the holder thereof, at any time after the date of issuance of such
share, and without the payment of additional consideration by the holder thereof, at the office of
this corporation or any transfer agent for such stock, into such nuwmber of fully paid and
nonassessable shares of Class B Common Stock as is determined by dividing the applicable
Original Issue Price for such series by the applicable Conversion Price (as defined below) for
such series (the conversion rate for a series of Preferred Stock into Class B Common Stock is
referred to herein as the “Conversion Rate” for such series), determined as hereafter provided, in
effect on the date the certificate is surrendered for conversion. The initial “Conversion Price™
per share for each series of Preferred Stock shall be the Original Issue Price applicable to such
series; provided, however, that the Conversion Price for the Preferred Stock shall be subject to
adjustment as set forth in subsection 4(d).

(by  Automatic Conversion. FEach share of Preferred Stock shall
automatically be converted into shares of Class B Common Stock at the Conversion Rate at the
time in effect for such series of Preferred Stock immediately upon the earlier of (i) the closing of
this corporation’s sale of its Class B Common Stock in a firm commitment underwritten public
offering pursuant to a registration statement on Form 5-1 under the Secunities Act of 1933, as
amended, the public offering price of which is at least that results in at least $30,000,000 of gross
proceeds to this corporation (a “Qualified Public Offering™) or (i1) the date, or the occurrence of
an event, specified by vote or written consent or agreement of the holders of a majority of the
then outstanding shares of Preferred Stock (voting together as a single class and not as separate
series, and on an as-converted basis).

{c) Mechanics of Conversion. Before any holder of Preferred Stock
shall be entitled to voluntanily convert the same mto shares of Class B Common Stock, such
holder shall surrender the certificate or certificates therefor, duly endorsed, at the office of this
corporation or of any transfer agent for the Preferred Stock, and shall give written notice to this
corporation at its principal corporate office, of the election to convert the same and shall state
therein the name or names in which the certificate or certificates for shares of Class B Common
Stock are to be issued. This corporation shall, as soon as practicable thereafter, 1ssue and deliver
at such office to such holder of Preferred Stock, or to the nominee or nominees of such holder, a
certificate or certificates for the number of shares of Class B Common Stock to which such
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holder shall be entitled as aforesaid. Such conversion shall be deemed to have been made
immediately prior to the close of business on the date set forth for conversion in the written
notice of the election to convert irrespective of the surrender of the shares of Preferred Stock to
be converted, and the person or persons entitled to recetve the shares of Class B Common Stock
1ssuable upon such conversion shall be treated for all purposes as the record holder or holders of
such shares of Class B Common Stock as of such date. If the conversion is in connection with an
underwritten offering of securities registered pursuant to the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
the conversion may, at the option of any holder tendering Preferred Stock for conversion, be
conditioned upon the closing with the underwriters of the sale of securities pursuant to such
offering, in which event the persons entitled fo receive the Class B Common Stock upon
conversion of the Preferred Stock shall not be deemed to have converted such Preferred Stock
until immediately prior to the closing of such sale of securties. If the conversion is in
connection with Automatic Conversion provisions of subsection 4(b){i1) above, such conversion
shall be deemed to have been made on the conversion date described in the stockholder consent
approving such conversion, and the persons entitled to receive shares of Class B Common Stock
issuable upon such conversion shall be treated for all purposes as the record holders of such
shares of Class B Common Stock as of such date.

(d} Conversion Price Adjustments of Preferred Stock for Certain
Dilutive Issuances, Splits and Combinations. The Conversion Price of each series of Preferred
Stock shall be subject to adjustment from time to time as follows:

(1) {A) 1f this corporation shall issue, on or after the date upon
which this Restated Certificate of Incorporation is accepted for filing by the Secretary of State of
the State of Delaware (the “Filing Date™), any Additional Stock (as defined below) without
consideration or for a consideration per share that is less than the Conversion Price applicable to
a series of Preferred Stock in effect immediately prior to the issuance of such Additional Stock,
the Conversion Price for such series in effect immediately prior to each such issuance shall
forthwith {except as otherwise provided in this clause (1)) be adjusted to a price (calculated to the
nearest one-thousandth of a cent) determined by multiplying such Conversion Price by a fraction,
the numerator of which shall be the number of shares of Common Stock Outstanding (as defined
below) immediately prior to such issuance plus the number of shares of Class B Common Stock
that the aggregate consideration received by this corporation for such issuance would purchase at
such Conversion Price; and the denominator of which shall be the number of shares of Common
Stock Outstanding immediately prior to such issuance plus the number of shares of such
Additional Stock. For purposes of this Section 4(d)(i)(A), the term “Common Stock
Cntstanding™ shall mean and include the following: (1) outstanding Common Stock, (2)
Common Stock issuable upon conversion of outstanding Preferred Stock, (3) Common Stock
issuable upon exercise of outstanding stock options and (4) Common Stock issuable upon
exercise (and, in the case of warrants to purchase Preferred Stock, conversion) of outstanding
warrants. Shares described in (1) through (4) above shall be included whether vested or
unvested, whether contingent or non-contingent and whether exercisable or not yet exercisable,
In the event that this corporation issues or sells, or 1s deemed to have issued or sold, shares of
Additional Stock that results 1n an adjustment to a Conversion Price pursuant to the provisions of
this Section 4{d) (the “First Dilutive Issuance™), and this corporation then issues or sells, or is
deemed to have issued or sold, shares of Additional Stock in one or more subsequent issuances
other than the First Dilutive Issuance that would result in further adjustment to a Conversion
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Price (each, a “Subsequent Dilutive Issuance™) pursuant to the same instruments as the First
Dilutive Issuance, then and in each such case upon a Subsequent Dilutive Issuance the applicable
Conversion Price for each series of Preferred Stock shall be reduced to the applicable Conversion
Price that would have been in effect had the First Dilutive Issuance and each Subsequent
Dilutive Issuance all occurred on the closing date of the First Dilutive Issuance.

{BY No adjustment of the Conversion Price for the
Preferred Stock shall be made in an amount less than one-tenth (1/10%) of one cent per share
(50.001). Except to the limited extent provided for in subsections (E)3) and (E)}4), no
adjustment of such Conversion Price pursuant to this subsection 4(d)(1) shall have the effect of
mcreasing the Conversion Price above the Conversion Price in effect immediately prior to such
adjustment.

{(C)  In the case of the issuance of Additional Stock for
cash, the consideration shall be deemed to be the amount of cash paid therefor before deducting
any reasonable discounts, commissions or other expenses allowed, paid or incurred by this
corporation for any underwriting or otherwise in connection with the issuance and sale thereof.

{D}  In the case of the issuance of the Additional Stock
for a consideration in whole or in part other than cash, the consideration other than cash shall be
deemed to be the fair market value thereof as determined by the Board of Directors irrespective
of any accounting treatment,

{(E)  In the case of the 1ssuance of options to purchase or
rights to subscribe for Class A Common Stock or Class B Common Stock, securities by their
terms convertible into or exchangeable for Class A Common Stock or Class B Common Stock or
options to purchase or rights to subscribe for such convertible or exchangeable securities, the
following provisions shall apply for purposes of determining the number of shares of Additional
Stock 1ssued and the consideration paid therefor;

(1)  The aggregate maximum number of shares
of Class A Common Stock or Class B Common Stock deliverable upon exercise (assuming the
satisfaction of any conditions to exercisability, including without limtation, the passage of time,
but without taking into account potential antidilution adjustments) of such options to purchase or
rights to subscnbe for Class A Common Stock or Class B Common Stock shall be deemed to
have been issued at the time such options or rights were issued and for a consideration equal to
the consideration (determined in the manner provided in subsections 4(d}1){C) and (d)(i¥D}), if
any, received by this corporation upon the issuance of such options or rights plus the minimum
exercise price provided for in such options or nights (without taking into account potential
antidilution adjustiments) for the Class A Common Stock or Class B Common Stock covered
thereby.

(2) The aggregate maximum number of shares
of Class A Common Stock or Class B Common Stock deliverable upon conversion of, or in
exchange (assuming the satisfaction of any conditions to convertibility or exchangeability,
including, without limitation, the passage of time, but without taking into account potential
antidilution adjustments) for, any such convertible or exchangeable securities or upon the
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exercise of options to purchase or rights to subscribe for such convertible or exchangeable
securities and subsequent conversion or exchange thereof shall be deemed to have been issued at
the time such securities were issued or such options or rights were issued and for a consideration
equal to the consideration, if any, received by this corporation for any such securities and related
options or rights {(excluding any cash received on account of accrued interest or accrued
dividends), plus the minimum additional consideration, if any, to be received by this corporation
{without taking into account potential antidilution adjustments) upon the conversion or exchange
of such securities or the exercise of any related options or rights (the consideration in each case
to be determined in the manner provided in subsections 4(d}(i}C) and (d)(i}D})).

(3) In the event of any change in the number of
shares of Class A Common Stock or Class B Common Stock deliverable or in the consideration
payable to this corporation upon exercise of such options or rights or upon conversion of or in
exchange for such convertible or exchangeable securities, the Conversion Price of each
applicable series of Preferred Stock, to the extent in any way affected by or computed using such
options, rights or securities, shall be recomputed to reflect such change, but no further
adjustment shall be made for the actual 1ssuance of Class A Common Stock or Class B Common
Stock or any payment of such consideration upon the exercise of any such options or rights or
the conversion or exchange of such securities.

{4y  Upon the expiration of any such options or
rights, the termination of any such rights to convert or exchange or the expiration of any options
or rights related to such convertible or exchangeable securities, the Conversion Price of each
applicable series of Preferred Stock, to the extent in any way affected by or computed using such
options, rights or securities or options or rights related to such securities, shall be recomputed to
reflect the issuance of only the number of shares of Class A Common Stock or Class B Common
Stock (and convertible or exchangeable securities that remain in effect) actually issued upon the
exercise of such options or rights, upon the conversion or exchange of such securities or upon the
exercise of the options or rights related to such securities.

(3) The number of shares of Additional Stock
deemed issued and the consideration deemed paid therefor pursuant to subsections 4{d)(1}(E)1)

and (2) shall be appropriately adjusted to reflect any change, termination or expiration of the type
described in erther subsection 4(d))E)3) or (4).

(i)  “Additional Stock™ shall mean any shares of Class A
Common Stock or Class B Common Stock 1ssued (or deemed to have been issued pursuant to
subsection 4(d} 1} E)) by this corporation on or after the Filing Date other than:

{A} Class A Common Stock or Class B Common Stock
issued pursuant to a transaction described in subsection 4(d)(111) hereof;

(B) Class A Common Stock or Class B Common Stock
issued to employees, directors, consultants and other service providers for the primary purpose of
soliciting or retaining their services pursuant to plans or agreements approved by the Board of
Directors;
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(C)  Class A Common Stock or Class B Common Stock
issued pursuant to a Qualified Public Offering;

(D} Class A Common Stock or Class B Common Stock
1ssued pursuant to the conversion or exercise of convertible or exercisable securities outstanding
on the Filing Date;

{E}  Class A Common Stock or Class B Common Stock
issued in connection with a bona fide business acquisition by this corporation, whether by
merger, consolidation, sale of assets, sale or exchange of stock or otherwise;

{Fy  Class A Common Stock or Class B Common Stock
issued or deemed issued pursuant to subsection 4(d}i)(E) as a result of a decrease in the
Conversion Price of any series of Preferred Stock resulting from the operation of Section 4(d);

(G) Class B Common Stock issued upon conversion of
the Preferred Stock:

{Hy Class A Common Stock or Class B Common Stock
1ssued pursuant to any equipment leasing arrangement or debt financing arrangement, which
arrangement is approved by the Board of Directors and is primanly for non-equity financing

purposes;

(I) Class A Common Stock or Class B Common Stock
issued to persons or entities with which this corporation has business relationships, provided
such issuances are approved by the Board of Directors and are primarily for non-equity financing
purposes; or

{4 Class A Common Stock or Class B Common Stock
that is issued with the unanimous approval of the Board of Directors and the Board of Directors
specifically states in such approval that it shall not be Additional Stock (such issuances described
in subsections {A) through (J) hereof, the “Exempt [ssuances™).

{iii)  In the event this corporation should at any time or from
timne to time after the Filing Date fix a record date for the effectuation of a split or subdivision of
the outstanding shares of Class A Common Stock or Class B Common 5Stock or the
determination of holders of Class A Common Stock or Class B Common Stock entitled to
receive a dividend or other distribution payable in additional shares of Class A Common Stock
or Class B Common Stock or other securities or rights convertible into, or entitling the holder
thereof to receive directly or indirectly, additional shares of Class A Common Stock or Class B
Common Stock (hereinafter referred to as “Common Stock Equivalents™) without payment of
any consideration by such holder for the additional shares of Class A Common Stock, Class B
Common Stock or the Common Stock Equivalents (including the additional shares of Class A
Common Stock or Class B Common Stock issuable upon conversion or exercise thereof), then,
as of such record date (or the date of such dividend distribution, split or subdivision if no record
date is fixed), the Conversion Price of the Preferred Stock shall be appropriately decreased so
that the number of shares of Class B Common Stock issuable on conversion of each share of
such series shall be increased in proportion to such increase of the aggregate of shares of Class A
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Common Stock or Class B Common Stock outstanding and those issuable with respect to such
Common Stock Equivalents with the number of shares issuable with respect to Common Stock
Equivalents determined from time to time in the manner provided for deemed issuances in
subsection 4(d}iXE).

{iv}  If the number of shares of Class A Common Stock or Class
B Common Stock outstanding at any time after the Filing Date 1s decreased by a combination of
the outstanding shares of Class A Common Stock or Class B Common Stock, then, following the
record date of such combination, the Conversion Price for the Preferred Stock shall be
appropriately increased so that the number of shares of Class B Common Stock issuable on
conversion of each share of such series shall be decreased in proportion to such decrease in
outstanding shares.

(e) Other Distributions. In the event this corporation shall declare a
distribution payable in securities of other persons, evidences of indebtedness issued by this
corporation or other persons, assets (excluding cash dividends) or options or rights not referred
to in subsection 4{d)(iii), then, in each such case for the purpose of this subsection 4(e), the
holders of the Preferred Stock shall be entitled to a proportionate share of any such distmbution
as though they were the holders of the number of shares of Class B Common Stock of this
corporation mnto which their shares of Preferred Stock are convertible as of the record date fixed
for the determination of the holders of Class B Common Stock of this corporation entitled to
receive such distribution.

(£) Recapitalizations. If at any time or from time to time there shall be
a recapitalization of the Class B Common Stock (other than a subdivision, combination or
merger or sale of assets transaction provided for elsewhere in this Section 4 or in Section 2)
provision shall be made so that the holders of the Preferred Stock shall thereafter be entitled to
receive upon conversion of the Preferred Stock, the number of shares of stock or other securities
or property of this corporation or otherwise, to which a holder of Class B Common Stock
deliverable upon conversion would have been entitled on such recapitalization. In any such case,
appropriate adjustment shall be made in the application of the provisions of this Section 4 with
respect to the rights of the holders of the Preferred Stock after the recapitalization to the end that
the provisions of this Section 4 (including adjustment of the Conversion Price then in effect and
the number of shares purchasable upon conversion of the Preferred Stock) shall be applicable
after that event as nearly equivalently as may be practicable.

{g) Mo Impairment. This corporation will not, without the appropriate
vote of the stockholders under the General Corporation Law or Section 6 of this Article IV(B),
by amendment of its Certificate of Incorporation or through any reorganization, recapitalization,
transfer of assets, consolidation, merger, dissolution, issue or sale of securities or any other
voluntary action, avoid or seek to avoid the observance or performance of any of the terms to be
observed or performed heresunder by this corporation, but will at all times in good faith assist in
the carrying out of all the provisions of this Section 4 and n the taking of all such action as may
be necessary or appropriate 1n order to protect the Conversion Rights of the holders of the
Preferred Stock against impairment.
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(h) No Fractional Shares and Certificate as to Adjustments.

(1) No fractional shares shall be issued upon the conversion of
any share or shares of the Preferred Stock and the aggregate number of shares of Class B
Common Stock to be 1ssued to particular stockholders, shall be rounded down to the nearest
whole share and this corporation shall pay in cash the fair market value of any fractional shares
as of the time when entitlement to receive such fractional shares is determined. Whether or not
fractional shares would be issuable upon such conversion shall be determined on the basis of the
total number of shares of Preferred Stock the holder is at the time converting into Class B
Common Stock and the number of shares of Class B Common Stock issuable upon such
conversion,

{11} Upon the occurrence of each adjustment or readjustment of
the Conversion Price of Preferred Stock pursuant to this Section 4, this corporation, at its
expense, shall promptly compute such adjustment or readjustment in accordance with the terms
hereof and prepare and furnish to each holder of Preferred Stock a certificate setting forth such
adjustment or readjustment and showing in detail the facts upon which such adjustment or
readjustment 15 based. This corporation shall, upon the written request at any time of any holder
of Preferred Stock, furnish or cause to be furnished to such holder a like certificate setting forth
(A) such adjustment and readjustment, (B) the Conversion Price for such series of Preferred
Stock at the time in effect, and (C) the number of shares of Class B Common Stock and the
amount, if any, of other property that at the time would be received upon the conversion of a
share of Preferred Stock.

{1) Notices of Record Date. In the event of any taking by this
corporation of a record of the holders of any class of securities for the purpose of determining the
holders thereof who are entitled to receive any dividend (other than a cash dividend) or other
distribution, this corporation shall mail to each holder of Preferred Stock, at least ten (10) days
prior to the date specified therein, a notice specifying the date on which any such record is to be
taken for the purpose of such dividend or distribution, and the amount and character of such
dividend or distribution; provided, however, that subject to compliance with the General
Corporation Law such notice period may be shortened or waived upon the written consent of the
holders of Preferred Stock that represent a majority of the then outstanding shares of such
Preferred Stock (voting together as a single class and not as separate series, and on an as-
converted basis).

) Reservation of Stock Issuable Upon Conversion. This corporation
shall at all times reserve and keep available out of its authorized but unissued shares of Class B
Common Stock, solely for the purpose of effecting the conversion of the shares of the Preferred
Stock, such number of its shares of Class B Common Stock as shall from time to time be
sufficient to effect the conversion of all outstanding shares of the Preferred Stock; and if at any
time the number of authorized but unissued shares of Class B Common Stock shall not be
sufficient to effect the conversion of all then outstanding shares of the Preferred Stock, in
addition to such other remedies as shall be available to the holder of such Preferred Stock, this
corporation will take such corporate action as may, in the opinion of its counsel, be necessary to
increase its authorized but unissued shares of Class B Common Stock to such number of shares
as shall be sufficient for such purposes, including, without limitation, engaging in best efforts to
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obtain the requisite stockholder approval of any necessary amendment to this Restated
Certificate of Incorporation.

(k) Wailver of Adjustment to Conversion Price.  Notwithstanding
anything herein to the contrary, any downward adjustment of the Conversion Price of any senes
of Preferred Stock may be waived, either prospectively or retroactively and either generally or in
a particular instance, by the consent or vote of the holders of a majority of then outstanding
shares of Preferred Stock (voting together as a single class and not as separate series, and on an
as-converted basis). Any such waiver shall bind all future holders of shares of such series of
Preferred Stock.

3. Voting Rights.

(a) General Voting Righis. The holder of each share of Preferred
Stock shall have the right to one vote for each share of Class B Common Stock into which such
Preferred Stock could then be converted, and with respect to such vote, such holder shall have
full voting rights and powers equal to the voting rights and powers of the holders of Class B
Common Stock, and shall be entitled, notwithstanding any provision hereof, to notice of any
stockholders’ meeting in accordance with the Bylaws of this corporation, and except as provided
by law or in subsection 5(b) below with respect to the election of directors by the separate class
vote of the holders of Common Stock, shall be entitled to vote, together with holders of Common
Stock, with respect to any question upon which holders of Common Stock have the right to vote.
Fractional votes shall not, however, be permitted and any fractional voting rights available on an
as-converted basis (after aggregating all shares into which shares of Preferred Stock held by each
holder could be converted) shall be rounded to the nearest whole number (with one-half (1/2)
being rounded upward).

(b) Voting for the Election of Directors. As long as at least 9,110,328
shares of Preferred Stock {as adjusted for any stock splits, stock dividends, combinations,
subdivisions, recapitalizations or the like) remain outstanding, the holders of such shares of
Preferred Stock shall be entitled to elect one (1) director of this corporation at any election of
directors (the “Preferred Director™). The holders of outstanding Common Stock, voting together
as a single class, shall be entitled to elect two (2) directors of this corporation at any election of
directors. The holders of Preferred Stock and Common Stock (voting together as a single class
and not as separate series, and on an as-converted basis) shall be entitled to elect any remaining
directors of this corporation.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 223({a)(l} and 223{(a}{2) of the General
Corporation Law, any vacancy, including newly created directorships resulting from any
increase in the authorized number of directors or amendment of this Restated Certificate of
Incorporation, and vacancies created by removal or resignation of a director, may be filled by a
majority of the directors then in office, though less than a quorum, or by a sole remaining
director, and the directors so chosen shall hold office until the next annual election and until their
successors are duly elected and shall qualify, unless sooner displaced; provided, however, that
where such vacancy occurs among the directors elected by the holders of a class or series of
stock, the holders of shares of such class or series may override the Board’s action to fill such
vacancy by (i) voting for their own designee to fill such vacancy at a meeting of this
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corporation’s stockholders or (ii) written consent, if the consenting stockholders hold a sufficient
number of shares to elect their designee at a meeting of the stockholders. Any director may be
removed during his or her term of office, either with or without cause, by, and only by, the
affirmative vote of the holders of the shares of the class or series of stock entitled to elect such
director or directors, given either at a special meeting of such stockholders duly called for that
purpose or pursuant to a written consent of stockholders, and any vacancy thereby created may
be filled by the holders of that class or series of stock represented at the meeting or pursuant to
written consent,

6. Protective Provisions. So long as 9,110,328 shares of Preferred Stock (as
adjusted for any stock splits, stock dividends, combinations, subdivisions, recapitalizations or the
like) remain outstanding, this corporation shall not (by amendment, merger, consolidation or
otherwise) without (in addition to any other vote required by law or this Restated Certificate of
Incorporation) first obtaining the approval by vote or written consent, as provided by law, of the
holders of a majority of the then outstanding shares of Preferred Stock (voting together as a
single class and not as separate series, and on an as-converted basis):

(a) consummate a Liguidation Event;

(b)  amend, alter or repeal any provision of this Restated Certificate of
Incorporation or this corporation’s Bylaws so as to adversely alter or change the rights,
preferences, privileges and restrictions of the shares of Preferred Stock;

() increase or decrease (other than by redemption or conversion) the
total number of authorized shares of Common Stock or Preferred Stock or designated shares of
any series of Preferred Stock;

(d) authorize, create or issue any equity security (including, without
limitation, (i) any other security convertible into or exercisable for any such equity security or
(i1) any unit of debt and equity securities) having a preference over, or being on a parity with, any
series of Preferred Stock with respect to dividends, liquidation or redemption, other than the
issnance of any authorized but unissued shares of Series A Preferred Stock designated in this
Restated Certificate of Incorporation (including, without limitation, any security convertible into
or exercisable for such shares of Preferred Stock);

(e) (1) reclassify, alter or amend any existing security of this
corporation that is pari passu with the Preferred Stock with respect to dividends, liguidation or
redemption, if such reclassification, alteration or amendment would render such other security
senior to the Preferred Stock in respect of any such right, preference or privilege or (ii)
reclassify, alter or amend any existing security of this corporation that is junior to the Preferred
Stock with respect to dividends, liquidation or redemption, if such reclassification, alteration or
amendment would render such other security senior to or par passu with the Preferred Stock in
respect of any such right, preference or privilege;

(£) redeem, purchase or otherwise acquire (or pay into or set aside for
a sinking fund for such purpose) any share or shares of Preferred Stock or Common Stock;
provided, however, that this restriction shall not apply to the repurchase of shares of Common
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Stock from employees, officers, directors, consultants or other persons performing services for
this corporation or any subsidiary pursuant to agreements approved by the Board of Directors
under which this corporation has the option to repurchase such shares at the lower of the original
per share purchase price (as adjusted for any stock splits, stock dividends, combinations,
subdivisions, recapitalizations or the like) or then fair market value thereof upon the occurrence
of certain events, such as the termination of employment or service, or pursuant to a right of first
refusal;

(g} change the authorized number of, or method of electing the,
directors of this corporation; or

(h) pay or declare any dividend on any shares of capital stock of this
corporation other than dividends payable on the Common Stock solely in the form of additional
shares of Common Stock.

7. Status of Converted Stock. In the event any shares of Preferred Stock
shall be converted pursuant to Section 4 hereof, the shares so converted shall be cancelled and
shall not be issuable by this corporation. The Restated Certificate of Incorporation of this
corporation shall be appropriately amended to effect the corresponding reduction in this
corporation’s authorized capital stock.

8. Notices. Any notice required by the provisions of this Article IV(B) fo be
given to the holders of shares of Preferred Stock shall be deemed given (a) five (5} days
following its deposit in the United States mail, postage prepaid, and addressed to each holder of
record at his, her or its address appearing on the books of this corporation, (b) upon such notice
being provided by electronic transmission in a manner permitted by the General Corporation
Law or (c¢) five (5) days following such notice being provided in another manner then permitted
by the General Corporation Law.

C. Common Stock. The rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions granted to and
mmposed on the Common Stock are as set forth below in this Article IV(C).

1. Dividend Rights. Subject to the prior rights of holders of all classes of
stock at the time outstanding having prior rights as to dividends, the holders of the Common
Stock shall be entitled to receive, when, as and if declared by the Board of Directors, out of any
assets of this corporation legally available therefor, any dividends as may be declared from time
to time by the Board of Directors.

2. Liquidation Rights. Upon the hiquidation, dissolution or winding up of
this corporation, the assets of this corporation shall be distributed as provided in Section 2 of
Article IV(B) hereof,

3. Redemption. The Common Stock is not redeemable at the option of the

holder.

4, Voting Rights. Each holder of Class A Common Stock shall have the
right to ten (10) votes for each share of Class A Common Stock, and shall be entitled to notice of
any stockholders’ meeting in accordance with the Bylaws of this corporation, and shall be
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entitled to vote upon such matters and in such manner as may be provided by law. Each holder
of Class B Common Stock shall have the right to one (1) vote for each share of Class B Common
Stock, and shall be entitled to notice of any stockholders” meeting in accordance with the Bylaws
of this corporation, and shall be entitled to vote upon such matters and in such manner as may be
provided by law. The number of authorized shares of Common Stock may be increased or
decreased (but not below the number of shares thereof then outstanding) by the affirmative vote
of the holders of a majority of the stock of this corporation entitled to vote, nrrespective of the
provisions of Section 242(b Y 2) of the General Corporation Law.

3. Conversion. The shares of Class A Common Stock (the “Convertible
Common Stock™) are convertible as follows:

{a) Right to Convert Class A Common Stock. Each share of
Class A Common Stock shall be convertible, at the option of the holder thereof, at any time after
the date of issuance of such share at the office of this corporation or any transfer agent for such
stock, into one (1) fully paid and nonassessable share of Class B Common Stock.

{b) Automatic Conversion of Class A Common Stock. At any
tine following the closing of a Qualified Public Offering, upon any transfer, other than a
Permitted Transfer {(as defined below), of a share of Class A Common Stock, such share of Class
A Common Stock shall automatically be converted mmto one (1) fully paid and nonassessable
share of Class B Common Stock. “Permitted Transfer” means a transfer of Class A Common
stock by a holder (i) for estate planning purposes, either during such holder’s lifetime or on
death by will or infestacy to such holder’s spouse or other member of a holder’s immediate
family, or to a custodian, trustee (including a trustee of a voting trust), executor or other
fiduciary for the account of the holder’s spouse or members of the holder’s immediate family, or
to a trust for the holder’s own self, or a chantable remainder trust or (11) to one or more of such
holder’s Affiliates. “Affiliates™ means, with respect to any person, any other person who or
which, directly or indirectly, controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with such
specified person, including, without limitation, any general partner, officer, director or manager
of such person and any venture capital fund now or hereafier existing that is controlled by one or
more general partners or managing members of, or is under common investment management
with, such person.

(c) Mechanics of Conversion. Before any holder of Class A
Common Stock shall be entitled to voluntarily convert the same into shares of Class B Common
Stock pursuant to subsection (CW5)(a), he, she or it shall surrender the certificate or certificates
therefor, duly endorsed, at the office of this corporation or of any transfer agent for the Common
Stock, and shall give writien notice to this corporation at its principal corporate office, of the
election to convert the same and shall state therein the name or names in which the certificate or
certificates for shares of Class B Common Stock are to be issued. Thereupon, there shall be
issued and delivered to such holder promptly at such office and in its name as provided in such
written notice, a certificate or certificates for the number of shares of Class B Common Stock
into which the shares of Class A Common Stock so surrendered were convertible on the date of
such written notice. Upon the occurrence of an automatic conversion of Convertible Common
Stock pursuant to subsection (CH3)b) or subsection (C}H5)(c), the holders of such Convertible
Common Stock shall surrender the certificates representing such shares at the office of this
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corporation or any transfer agent for the Common Stock. Thereupon, there shall be issued and
delivered to such holder promptly at such office and in its name as shown on such surrendered
certificate or certificates, a certificate or certificates for the number of shares of Class B
Common Stock into which the shares of Convertible Common Stock surrendered were
converiible on the date on which such automatic conversion occiured. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, such conversion shall occur automatically without the need for any further action by
the holders of such shares and whether or not the certificates representing such shares are
surrendered to this corporation or its transfer agent: provided, however, that this corporation
shall not be obligated to issue certificates evidencing the shares of Class B Common Stock
issuable upon such conversion unless the certificates evidencing such shares of Convertible
Common Stock are either delivered to this corporation or its transfer agent as provided above, or
the holder notifies this corporation or its transfer agent that such certificates have been lost,
stolen or destroyed and executes an agreement satisfactory to this corporation to indemnify this
corporation from any loss incurred by it in connection with such certificates.

{d) Adjustments for Stock Splits or Combinations. If at any
time or from time to time after the date of filing of this Restated Certificate with the Secretary of
State of the State of Delaware (the “Effective Time"), this corporation effects a subdivision of
the outstanding shares of the Class B Common Stock into a greater number of shares of Class B
Common Stock without an equivalent subdivision of the outstanding shares of Convertible
Common Stock, or of the Class A Common Stock, then, in the event of a conversion of shares of
the applhicable Convertible Common Stock into shares of Class B Common Stock, such shares of
Convertible Comimon Stock shall convert into a number of shares of Class B Common Stock that
has been proportionately increased. If at any time or from time to time after the Effective Time,
this corporation effects a combination of the outstanding shares of the Class B Common Stock
inte a smaller number of shares of Class B Common Stock without an equivalent combination of
the outstanding shares of Convertible Common Stock, or of the Class A Comimon Stock, then, in
the event of a conversion of shares of the applicable Convertible Common Stock into shares of
Class B Common Stock, such shares of Convertible Common Stock shall convert into a number
of shares of Class B Common Stock that has been proportionately decreased. If at any time or
from time to time afier the Effective Time, this corporation effects a subdivision of the
outstanding shares of the Preferred Stock into a greater number of shares of Preferred Stock
without an equivalent subdivision of the outstanding shares of Class B Common Stock, then, in
the event of a conversion of shares of Preferred Stock into shares of Class B Common Stock, the
applicable Conversion Price for each such series of Preferred Stock shall proportionately
increase. 1f at any time or from time to time after the Effective Time, this corporation effects a
combination of the outstanding shares of the Preferred Stock into a smaller number of shares of
Preferred Stock without an equivalent combination of the outstanding shares of Class B
Common Stock, then, in the event of a conversion of shares of Preferred Stock into shares of
Class B Common Stock, the applicable Conversion Price for each such series of Preferred Stock
shall proportionately decrease.

{e) Record Holders. The persons entitled to shares of Class B
Common Stock upon conversion of Convertible Common Stock shall be treated for all purposes
as the record holders of such shares of Class B Common Stock as of the date of conversion.
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(f) Reservation of Stock Issuable Upon Conversion. This
corporation shall at all times reserve and keep available out of its authorized but unissued shares
of Class B Common Stock, solely for the purpose of effecting the conversion of the shares of the
Convertible Common Stock, such number of its shares of Class B Common Stock as shall from
time to time be sufficient to effect the conversion of all outstanding shares of Convertible
Common Stock; and if at any time the number of authorized but unissued shares of Class B
Common Stock shall not be sufficient to effect the conversion of all then outstanding shares of
Convertible Common Stock, in addition to such other remedies as shall be available to the
holders of Convertible Common Stock, this corporation will take such corporate action as may,
in the opinion of its counsel, be necessary fo increase its authorized but unissued shares of Class
B Common Stock to such number of shares as shall be sufficient for such purposes, including,
without limitation, engaging in commercially reasonable efforts to obtain the reguisite
stockholder approval of any necessary amendment to this Restated Certificate.

(g) Status of Converted Stock. In the event any shares of
Convertible Common Stock shall be converted pursuant to this subsection (C)(5), the shares so
converted shall be cancelled and shall not be issuable by this corporation. The Restated
Certificate shall be appropriately amended to effect the corresponding reduction in this
corporation’s authorized capital stock.

ARTICLE YV

Except as otherwise provided in this Restated Certificate of Incorporation, in furtherance
and not in limitation of the powers conferred by statute, the Board of Directors is expressly
authorized to make, repeal, alter, amend and rescind any or all of the Bylaws of this corporation.

ARTICLE VI

Subject to the requirements of Section 6 of Article IV(B) hereof, the number of directors
of this corporation shall be determined in the manner set forth in the Bylaws of this corporation.

ARTICLE VII

Elections of directors need not be by written ballot unless the Bylaws of this corporation
shall so provide.

ARTICLE VIl

Meetings of stockholders may be held within or without the State of Delaware, as the
Bylaws of this corporation may provide. The books of this corporation may be kept (subject to
any provision contained in the statutes) outside the State of Delaware at such place or places as
may be designated from time to time by the Board of Direciors or in the Bylaws of this
corporation.

ARTICLE IX

To the fullest extent permitted by law, a director of this corporation shall not be
personally liable to this corporation or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of
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fiduciary duty as a director. If the General Corporation Law is amended after approval by the
stockholders of this Article IX to authorize corporate action further eliminating or limiting the
personal liability of directors, then the liability of a director of this corporation shall be
eliminated or limited to the fullest extent permitied by the General Corporation Law as so
amended.

Any amendment, repeal or modification of the foregoing provisions of this Article IX by
the stockholders of this corporation shall not adversely affect any right or protection of a director
of this corporation existing at the time of, or increase the lability of any director of this
corporation with respect to any acts or omissions of such director occurring prior to, such
amendment, repeal or modification.

ARTICLE X

This corporation reserves the right to amend, alter, change or repeal any provision
contained in this Restated Certificate of Incorporation, in the manner now or hereafter prescribed
by statute, and all rights conferred upon stockholders herein are granted subject to this
reservation,

ARTICLE XI

To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, this corporation is authorized to provide
mdemnification of (and advancement of expenses to) directors, officers, employees and agents of
this corporation (and any other persons to which General Corporation Law permits this
corporation to provide indemmification) through Bylaw provisions, agreements with such
persons, vote of stockholders or disinterested directors or otherwise, in excess of the
mdemmnification and advancement otherwise permitted by Section 145 of the General
Corporation Law, subject only to limits created by applicable General Corporation Law
{statutory or non-statutory), with respect to actions for breach of duty to this corporation, its
stockholders, and others,

Any amendment, repeal or modification of the foregoing provisions of this Article X1
shall not adversely affect any right or protection of a director, officer, employee, agent or other
person existing at the time of, or increase the liability of any such person with respect to any acts
or omissions of such person occurring prior to, such amendment, repeal or modification.

ARTICLE XII

This corporation renounces any interest or expectancy of this corporation in, or in being
offered an opportunity to participate in, any Excluded Opportunity. An “Excluded Opportunity™
is any matter, transaction or interest that is presented to, or acquired, created or developed by, or
which otherwise comes into the possession of, (1) any director of this corporation who is not an
emplovee of this corporation or any of its subsidiaries, or {i1) any holder of Preferred Stock or
any partner, member, director, stockholder, employee or agent of any such holder, other than
someone who i1s an employee of this corporation or any of its subsidiaries (collectively,
“Covered Persons™), unless such matter, transaction or interest is presented fo, or acquired,
created or developed by, or otherwise comes into the possession of, a Covered Person expressly
and solely in such Covered Person’s capacity as a director of this corporation.
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ARTICLE XIII

In connection with repurchases by this corporation of its Common Stock from
employees, officers, directors, advisors, consultants or other persons performing services for this
corporation or any subsidiary pursuant to agreements under which this corporation has the option
to repurchase such shares at cost upon the occurrence of certain events, such as the termination
of employment, Section 500 of the California Corporations Code shall not apply in all or in part
with respect to such repurchases. In the case of any such repurchases, distributions by the
corporation may be made without regard to the “preferential dividends arrears amount™ or any
“preferential rights amount,” as such terms are defined in Section 500(b) of the California
Corporations Code.

ARTICLE XIV

A, Forum Selection. Unless this corporation consents in writing to the selection of
an alternative forum, the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware (or, if the Court of
Chancery does not have jurisdiction, the federal district court for the District of Delaware) shall,
to the fullest extent permitted by law, be the sole and exclusive forum for (i) any derivative
action or proceeding brought on behalf of this corporation, (ii) any action asserting a claim of
breach of a fiduciary duty owed by any director, officer or other employee of this corporation o
this corporation or this corporation’s stockholders, (i) any action arising pursuant to any
provision of the General Corporation Law or this Restated Certificate of Incorporation or the
Bylaws (as either may be amended from time to time), or (iv) any action asserting a claim
governed by the internal affairs doctrine, except for, as to each of (i) through (iv) above, any
claim as to which the Court of Chancery determines that there is an indispensable party not
subject to the jurisdiction of the Court of Chancery (and the indispensable party does not consent
to the personal jurisdiction of the Court of Chancery within ten (10} days following such
determination), which 1s vested in the exclusive jurisdiction of a court or forum other than the
Court of Chancery, or for which the Court of Chancery does not have subject matter jurisdiction.
Any person or entity purchasing or otherwise acquiring or holding any interest in shares of
capital stock of this corporation shall be deemed to have notice of and consented to the
provisions of this Article XIV.

B. Personal Jurisdiction. If any action the subject matter of which is within the
scope of Article XIV(A) is filed in a court other than a court located within the State of Delaware
(a “Foreign Action™) in the name of any stockholder, such stockholder shall be deemed to have
consented to (1) the personal jurisdiction of the state and federal courts located within the State of
Delaware in connection with any action brought i any such court to enforce Article XIV(A) (an
“FSC Enforcement Action™) and (ii) having service of process made upon such stockholder in
any such FSC Enforcement Action by service upon such stockholder’s counsel in the Foreign
Action as agent for such stockholder.

C. Savings. If any provision or provisions of this Article XTIV shall be held to be
invalid, illegal or unenforceable as applied to any person or entity or circumstance for any reason
whatsoever, then, to the fullest extent permitted by law, the validity, legality and enforceability
of such provisions in any other circumstance and of the remaining provisions of this Article XIV
(including, without limitation, each portion of any sentence of this Article XIV containing any
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such provision held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable that is not itself held to be invalid,
illegal or unenforceable) and the application of such provision to other persons or entities and
circumstances shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby.

® % %

THIRD: The foregoing amendment and restatement was approved by the holders of the
requisite number of shares of said corporation in accordance with Section 228 of the General
Corporation Law.

FOURTH: That said Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, which restates
and integrates and further amends the provisions of this corporation’s Certificate of
Incorporation, has been duly adopted in accordance with Sections 242 and 245 of the General
Corporation Law.

GDEVF&EHIN00333.2 21



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation has
been executed by a duly authorized officer of this corporation on this 11" day of December,
2018,

/s/ Arnold Leitner

Name: Arnold Leitner

Title: President

SIGNATURE PAGE TO AMENDED AND RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF
INCORPORATION FOR YOUSOLAR, INC.



State of Delaware
Secrefary of State

Division of Corperations CERTIFICATE OF CORRECTION TD
Delivered [5:50 PN 041172020 AMENDMENT TO
FILED 05:50 PM 041772020 AMENDED AND RESTATED
RIARTE - Wik CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
| FOR
YOUSOLAR, INC,,
a Delaware corporation

YouSolar, Inc., a corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the General Corporation Law
of the State of Delaware.

DOES HEREBY CERTIFY:
1. The name of the corporation is YourSolar, Inc.

2, A Certificate of Amendment to Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation for YouSolar,
Inc., a Delaware corporation, was filed by the Secretary of State of Delaware on April /Y4, 2020, and said

Certificate requires correction as permitted by Section 103 of the General Durpumnun Law of the State of
Delaware.

3. The inaccuracy of said Certificate includes errors in (a) total number of authorized shares of
capital stock, (b) the total number of authonized shares of preferred stock, and (c) the number of authorized shares
of each of the Series Seed- | Preferred Stock, Series Seed-2 Preferred Stock, Series Seed-3 Preferred Stock, Series
Seed-4 Preferred Stock, Series Seed-5 Preferred Stock, Series Seed-6 Preferred Stock and Series A Preferred
Stock.

4, Article IV A, of the Certificate is hereby comrected to read as foilows:

“Authorization of Stock. This corporation is authorized to issue two classes of
stock to be designated, respectively, common stock and preferred stock. The
total number of shares that this corporation is authonzed to issue is 168,441,310.
The total number of shares of common stock authorized to be issued is
132,000,000, par value $0.000001 per share (the “Commeon Stock'™, of which
67,000,000 shares are designated as “Class A Common Stock” and 65,000,000
shares are designated as “Class B Common Stock.” The total number of shares
of preferred stock authorized to be issued is 36,441,310, par value 30.000001
per share (the “Preferred Stock™), of which 6,552,”4 sharf:s are designated as
“Series Seed-1 Preferred Stock,” 2,611,616 shares are designated as “Senes
Seed-2 Preferred Stock,” 2,018,566 shares are designated as “Series Seed-3
Preferred Stock,” 2,309,579 shares are designated as “Series Seed-4 Preferred
Stock,” 1,814,742 shares are designated as “Serjes Seed-3 Preferred Stock,™
4,559 507 shares are desipnated as “Serjes Seed-6 Preferred Stock™ (the Series
Seed-1 Preferred Stock, Series Seed-2 Preferred Stock, Series Seed-3 Preferred
Stock, Series Seed-4 Preferred Stock, Series Seed-5 Preferred Stock and Series
Seed-6 Preferred Stock, collectively, are meferred to herein as the YSeries Sced
Preferred Stock™), and 16,574,586 shares are designated as “Series A Preferred
Stock.™ ' :

—_—




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, YouSolar, Inc, has caused this -r:.emﬂﬁalﬁ to be signed by Amold
Leitner, its Chief Executive Officer, this 16th day anpnl 2020.
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INVEST IN YOUSOLAR TODAY!

Power Your Life. Independently.™

YouSolar created the PowerBloc®, a solar nano-grid that delivers reliable and clean power
with little or no reliance on utility power. Our first customers are high-end homes in Northe...

Show more

This Reg CF offering is made available through StartEngine
Capital, LLC. This investment is speculative, illiquid, and involves
ahigh degree of risk, including the possible loss of your entire
investment.

Power Your Lg =
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OVERVIEW ABOUT TERMS PRESS & UPDATES REWARDS DISCUSSION >

Reasons to Invest

Invest in a Trillion-Dollar Industry. According to Bloomberg, power grids will require an
estimated $28.7 trillion globally in investments to meet demand from electrified homes
and electric vehicles by 2050. YouSolar delivers the power for an all-electric life, without
complex and costly grid upgrades. YouSolar is a leader in an epochal infrastructure
transition.

Create Energy Independence. YouSolar helps customers avoid lengthy, uncertain, and
costly utility upgrades and rising energy costs as they electrify their homes or go entirely
off-grid. In Northern California alone, wildfires and power outages are creating more
demand for YouSolar's energy resilience solution than we can currently keep up with.
Make an Impact on the World. YouSolar's power architecture allows a plug-and-play
PowerBloc® with stackable modules which are easy to ship and even easier to assemble.
We believe it will be a game-changer for the world. Easy deployment is critical to
accelerate sales and for making a global impact on people's lives and the Earth's climate.

One of the World's Most Advanced Solar

Nano-Grids Is Here.

Watch and Learn how the PowerBloc Works. This video features computer generated animations of PowerBloc modules.

Important
Differentiators

Typical
Solar-Battery

YouSolar
PowerBloc®

Can power all loads?

Usually limited
to critical loads.

High-power.
Can run all loads.

Avoids Expensive Utility

Yes. Can Boost Existing

Upgrades for the All-Electric Life No Service up to 800 A.
e No Yes
Rt No
Modular and scalable? Very limited. No limits.
Integrationjwith on-site No Yes

Q Add to Watchlist

$993,744.66 Raised

Invest Now
$0.74 Per Share

PREVIOUSLY CROWDFUNDED @

$1,080,647.57

RAISED ®
$993,744.66

MIN INVEST ®
$349.28

INVESTORS
661

VALUATION
$50.33M

LogIn
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Stackable PowerBloc®

- . B
Any electrician can install? No is plug-and-play.

No. Requires dollies

Hand installation? and lift jacks. Yes
No
ﬁwlgﬁg;;ﬁggtsg rssglpport? No Yes
Highly scalable solar array with No Yes

any number of panels?

OVERVIEW

The World Needs a New Paradigm of
Power
Electric utilities, significant contributors to climate change, cannot support the amount of

renewable energy required for a clean energy future. Various studies put the necessary
investment for getting the world's electrical grids ready for the all-renewable future in the

trillions of dollars (Source).

New Electric Underground between 400 amp and 1000 amp (ARG
20% 75%

-__
$0 $15,000 $50,000 $87,000

Low end range

+ No Right of Way or Easement Required « Right of Way or Easement Required
* No Upgrades to Infrastructure Required « Upgrades (o Infrastructure Required
« Trenching Outsourced + Trenching Completed by PG&E

« Difficult Conditions or Long Trench Required

Utility Upgrades for an All-Electric Home Are Expensive for Consumers.
Many modern all-electric homes will require over 400 A of utility service. Most existing homes have 100-200 A service.

Service upgrades by utilities are ive, as the above cost tion by the California utility PG&E shows. Even if the

utility upgrade is on time and budget, the customer s still exposed to an unreliable grid, has little or no choice over the
source of the electricity, and is captive to utility rates. In contrast, a PowerBloc can deliver reliable and green power

equivalent to up to 800 A of service with fixed energy cost for decades to come.

Also, today's centralized power grids cannot withstand increasingly frequent weather
extremes caused by global warming, and they are prone to preventive shutdowns in wildfire
areas and flood zones.

The Power Grids Are Vulnerable to Wildfires Caused by Extreme Droughts.

In Northern California, such as here near Fairfield, wildfires have destroyed power lines, leading to power outages.

Outages also occur when the local utility turns off power during high winds to prevent power lines from sparking wildfires.

We need a new paradigm to deliver reliable and carbon-free electricity to everyone. We
believe that solution must be a primary power supply with little or no reliance on utility power
and outside the control of utilities. The YouSolar PowerBloc® is such a system. It is a fully-
integrated and intelligent solar nano-grid that powers an entire home or business and requires

no utility approval.



YouSolar®

Meet the Modular PowerBloc® . The PowerBloc comprises modules for different functions. The above animation provides
an overview of all modules. Modularity delivers ultimate flexibility in configuration and size and is ket to PowerBloc's

success in the market.

The PowerBloc is modular and highly scalable. All of its components — batteries, chargers,
controllers and power electronics — are efficiently arranged in a rack. The configuration can be
easily customized and expanded to meet customers' growing needs.

A PowerBloc® Powering a Modern Home in Calistoga, California.
The picture above shows Arnold Leitner, CEO, explaining the PowerBloc® to its owner. The system shown here is a two-
cabinet PowerBloc with 10kW of solar, 50kWh of energy storage, and 38 kW of inverter power.
(During the demonstration, the front doors of the PowerBloc were removed. There are no dangerous high electric potentials

in the front of the system.)

To accelerate sales and take the PowerBloc global, we have designed and patented stackable
modules that are uniquely plug-and-play. These modules will make the system easy to ship
and even easier to assemble. This innovation also allows rapid deployment of the PowerBloc
by disaster relief organizations or the military. We believe the stackable PowerBloc will be a

game-changer.

Meet the i y and . We believe the stackable PowerBloc is a

game-changer. The image is an engineering rendering of module prototypes in testing.



THE PROBLEM

Complicated Solar Systems That Depend
on the Grid

Today’s residential solar and battery systems are a mix of legacy and new technology that were
not designed together and depend on stable grid power to function. All leading solar-battery
systems are grid-tied and require utility approval, making incumbent utilities the gatekeepers of
the entire solar industry. This is not the blueprint for a paradigm shift, especially in critical
international markets where unstable grids cause technical problems for grid-tied systems and

where utilities view distributed solar as a threat to their business.

The Electrical Systems in Many Emerging Markets Are Already Overloaded.
The electrical systems in many emerging markets are already overloaded and fairly frequently. Imagine installing a 10kW
Level-2 electric vehicle charger in a home connected to the power system in Old Delhi, shown above. It will break the grid.

Residential independent primary power systems, such as the PowerBloc, are the answer.

These solar-battery systems have little flexibility and very limited scalability. They are primarily
designed for energy arbitrage and use simple algorithms to manage power outages. Installation
requires trained personnel with tools and dollies and lift jacks to handle large and heavy
batteries.

THE SOLUTION

A Fully-integrated System that Works
Independently of Utilities

The PowerBloc® is a fully-integrated nano-grid using a proprietary and patented power
architecture. The PowerBloc is modular and highly scalable. By design, the PowerBloc is the
primary electricity supply to a home or business, while the utility just serves as the backup. To
be a primary power supply, the PowerBloc’s inverter creates AC power that energizes an
independent grid for the house.

-

PowerBloc Modules Are Easy to Transport. PowerBloc® modules, or “blocs,” in a crate on their way to a customer

installation. On-site, the modules are installed into the cabinets by hand. The modular nature of the PowerBloc makes

dollies and lift jacks unnecessary.

The PowerBloc can also incorporate and store energy from the grid, a generator, or any other
electric power source. All power sources blend seamlessly on the efficient high potential direct
current bus that is the core of our patented power architecture. YouSolar sends a real-time
hourly solar production forecast to each PowerBloc so that its energy management system can

mala i ite 11ea Af enlar anarmi
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The PowerBloc® Nano-Grid is Highly Scalable.
The picture above shows a four-cabinet PowerBloc with 110kWh of energy storage, 30kW of solar, utility and generator

integration. This image is an engineering rendering of modules and cabinets used in customer installations.

For customers with a utility connection, the grid contributes only energy to the PowerBloc but
does not connect, directly to the load. Therefore, there are no glitches when the grid goes
down, and the PowerBloc operates as an off-grid system wherever there is no grid. It’s as
simple as that.
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Our C Find the User face Intuitive. The Power Flow screen shows how power blends

seamlessly on the nano-grid. The image shows a screenshot of the tablet user interface.

YouSolar delivers sustainable and affordable power for the modern world. Customizable and
scalable, the PowerBloc is a private power system that meets many needs and can be
connected to the grid or off-grid. The PowerBloc can integrate any generator to “extend the
range” of the batteries on cloudy winter days.

Due to the modular design of the PowerBloc, customers can start small and expand their

system as their needs grow without any design changes. This is particularly important in

emerging markets, where power needs change with rising incomes.

OUR TRACTION




Our First Market Is High-End Homes in
California

YouSolar has sold and installed six residential PowerBloc®s with customers in California's
wine country. We also have two off-grid systems operating in Big Sur and the Sierra Nevada,
CA.

Our First Customers Are Owners of High-end Homes in Northern California. These homes are subject to frequent
power outages because the local utility can no longer deliver reliable power and because the threat or presence of wildfires

requires shutting down the electric service.

Our customers are affluent, self-reliant, and uncompromising homeowners. They are unwilling
to tolerate power outages and want a reliable and clean power supply with little or no reliance
on utility power. They are building all-electric homes with electric vehicle charging and want to
avoid paying tens or even hundreds of thousands of dollars for a utility upgrade or new
connection.

These Are Modern Homes with Large Electric Loads. Our customers have central air conditioning systems, electric
stoves and ranges, pools, electric vehicle charging, and often well pumps which are large electric loads requiring high

power.

LEARN MORE ABOUT OUR PRODUCT
The PowerBloc Is a Fully-integrated Solar
Nano-grid

YousSolar sells a fully-integrated solar nano-grid that includes everything the customer needs,
including advanced solar panel electronics, called a micro-converter.

YouSolar’s Proprietary Solar Panel ics. The YouSolar STEP™ micro-converter steps each solar panel's
potential from about 35 to 400 Volts DC. This video explains the STEP micro-converter and shows its application at a

vacation home in the Sierra Nevada, CA, backcountry.

The PowerBloc®'s energy management system uses solar and load forecasts to decide when and
how fast to charge the batteries, which helps the nano-grid perform at its best. The forecast
increases solar utilization for grid-connected systems, while for off-grid systems, it reduces the

chance of power loss.



Understanding and using the PowerBloc energy management system is easy. Information and
system control are always at the customer’s fingertips on YouSolar's custom tablet interface, which

our customers love.

Our Customers Love DIYA™, the Intuitive PowerBloc User Interface. The DIYA interface provides all the information the

customer needs and allows the customer to control the system. This video features a demonstration of the application.

Here is a summary of the key features that make the PowerBloc® work:

© ©

New Standard Parallel Modular
Battery broken into

400VDC New components can : .

Used by server farms, be added easily mgﬁg&zshll%r:tmagf_wt
EVs, LED lighting and independently installation
Multi-Source Safe Automatic

; . Solar and system’s high Intelligent controller
mEIatisylemtg%vrgggguor(f:es potential shuts down for fully automatic
plep rapidly in emergency operation of the system

THE MARKET

Delivering Power to Customers Whose
Needs Are Not Met by Utilities

Based on our research, the United States has tens of thousands of upscale residences with
property values in excess of USD $1M built in unincorporated areas. Most of these homes rely
on their own private water well. These customers lose power due to wildfires, heavy winds,
and snow. Analysis commissioned by YouSolar showed that there are over 1,500 such
properties in California’s wine country alone. The PowerBloc can deliver constant and high
power for an uninterrupted lifestyle and the ability to run a well pump, allowing homeowners

to water down the property and put out flying embers during a wildfire.

Ride through any
power outage.

*Engineering drawing of the functional prototype of the new stackable PowerBloc®

After devastating wildfires caused power outages in our home state of California interest in
the PowerBloc surged. This development presented an immediate and large market for
YouSolar's technology. But wildfires are not the only natural disasters that result in a failure of
utility power systems. Widespread and persistent outages occurred during an ice storm in
Texas. Tropical storms and hurricanes are the main reason for power failures in Florida.

Generator YouSolar



Environmentally

disastrous Clean and sustainable

Power glitches when
switching to generator
during outage

Zero glitches when
the grid goes down

Unreliable and high
maintenance

Reliable and requires little
to no maintenance

Noisy, generates . o . .
irritating vibrations @ Quiet, no irritating vibration
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Another set of customers are homeowners or businesses who replace gas furnaces with heat
pumps or add electric vehicle charging. Power needs can quickly exceed the 100 or 200
Ampere (a) utility service that typically comes with a home. Instead of requesting and paying
for a service upgrade, these customers can choose a PowerBloc to boost power to the house
to 300, 400 and even 800 A. Lastly, there are customers who are building new homes or
businesses and are facing high bills to run utility service to the new location.

We have a constant stream of prospective customers. At present, 50 new customers have
received or are awaiting proposals. Our early success in the market has validated our analysis,

and we are clearly meeting a need.
The PowerBloc is capable of powering even the largest homes and businesses. We just sold

the largest system to date at a price of $180,000. Opportunities are everywhere, and our
pipeline is growing.

THE BUSINESS MODEL

How We Sell and Deliver the PowerBloc®
and Make Money

We have a growing pipeline even with no marketing. Builders and architects of luxury homes
and their electricians are currently our prime partners for lead generation. We also have strong
interest from operators of critical facilities. Our database of over 1,500 potential customers
from in northern California overlaps very well with the location of our first six residential

installations.

We Design and Make the The ’s TWIN™ Bi-directic Converter steps up the battery pack’s 50 Volt

potential to the 400 Volts of the direct current bus. The photo shows a TWIN during assembly.

At this time, we make the sale ourselves, but we will soon begin working with partners and
give them the tools to design, size, and sell our systems. Customers will also be able to
purchase the PowerBloc directly through our website.

We partner with solar installers and electricians who install the solar array and connect the
PowerBloc to the house. YouSolar technicians install the PowerBloc cabinets. Customers can
choose the solar panels, or YouSolar can include the solar array in the proposal.

Commissioning, start-up, and operation of the PowerBloc are automatic. We remotely monitor
and troubleshoot all systems.




Monitoring of Customer Systems in the CIRRUS™ Cloud.
YouSolar monitors all PowerBlocs with internet connections remotely.

We are able to update software "over the air', trouble shoot, and control the system remotely.

By developing most power electronics and all controls, firmware, software, and hardware in-
house, we have a low-cost structure that allows us to offer a competitive solution with a 40%
target margin. The average price of a PowerBloc solar nano-grid, including solar panels, for a
modern U.S. single-family home is between $35k to $50k. For high-end homes, system cost is
between $125k and $150k.

40% Target
Profit Margin

Our revenue stream derives from initial system sales and battery replacements every ten to
fifteen years. We also offer monitoring and service contracts to generate recurring annual

income.

WHAT IS UP NEXT

Changing the Game

In the PowerBloc®, the power flow and communication of each module, or "bloc," are parallel
and independent, allowing YouSolar to deliver the PowerBloc as a stackable, plug-and-play
system. After years of research, we have developed a revolutionary stackable module, and a
stackable PowerBloc is now a reality.

The Stackable PowerBloc Is Plug-and-Play. We believe It Is a Game-Changer. The photo shows Baxter Smith, Product

and Support. ialist with the F

The stackable PowerBloc assembles in a breeze and is easy to use. It has unprecedented
flexibility in system configuration and sizing. Even the order of the modules inside the stack
does not matter. But when assembled, interlocking modules create a nearly impenetrable



monolith. After a one-button boot-up, the power is on.

The STACK™, in Minutes. Amold Leitner, Founder and CEO, demonstrates how easy

it is to assemble the stackable PowerBloc®.

THE VISION

Bringing the PowerBloc® to People
Everywhere

YouSolar has a big market at our doorstep in California and the rest of the United States.
However, people living in emerging markets account for most of the world’s population, and in

the next decades 90% of electricity demand will be coming from these countries.

Grid-tied Solar Systems with Net-Metering do not Work in Emerging Markets. One of the solar arrays at the

Greenschool in Bali, donated by YouSolar, its investors, and its East Asian partners.

How are we going to generate electricity without killing the climate? Today's industry does not
have a solar solution. These countries are untapped markets for solar and the crux to meeting

the climate challenge.

Emerging markets have unstable grids or no utility power at all. Of course, few people in these
markets need or can afford a $50k or $150k PowerBloc solar nano-grid. But our success here
in the U.S. allows us to perfect and lower the cost of the technology that goes into the
stackable PowerBloc.

There are few, if any, trained installers, and logistics can be challenging. That is why it is so
important to have the stackable and plug-and-play PowerBloc. The stackable PowerBloc is an
efficient and practical power solution for these markets. It can be shipped and installed
almost everywhere. It can be installed by hand — without dollies or lift jacks — and assembly is
plug-and-play. We want the PowerBloc to become the world's trusted and affordable source
of clean power everywhere, in a school in Bali, on a farm in Peru, or in a suburb in India.

The Gives Hope. The is a perfect power solution for disaster relief. The image shows a rendering of



prototypes of stackable PowerBloc® modules.

OUR TEAM

A Team of World Class Experts

The team at YouSolar comprises world-class experts in energy markets, solar technology and

power electronics who share a passion for building the world's most advanced solar nano-grid

and changing the world for the better.

It Started with a Vision. Arnold Leitner, Founder and CEO, with his friend and business partner, Gene Krzywinski, CEO of

eIQ Energy, with the very first prototype of the PowerBloc®.

INVEST WITH IMPACT

A Clean Energy Solution That Impacts
People's Lives and the Climate
We don’t have much time left to fight a changing climate with its devastating effects on Earth.

We need to throw everything at a transformation of our world. Our mission is to bring solar
everywhere and change the power infrastructure in its course.

The Battle for the Climate Is Fought and Won in Emerging Markets. Rice fields in Bali, Indonesia.

We believe The PowerBloc® can help people everywhere to have reliable power in a world

where electricity delivery is no longer certain or never has been.

The PowerBloc provides a scalable and practical clean energy solution for the emerging
markets that will account for most of the growth in electricity demand in the coming decades.
The PowerBloc has the potential to play an important role in solving the climate problem.

Take the driver’s seat

4




With demonstrated successes already deployed and more projects in development at the

dawn of an epochal energy infrastructure transformation, now is the perfect time to be a part

of the clean energy revolution and invest in YouSolar.

YouSolar 17b Disclosure

ABOUT

HEADQUARTERS

292 Brokaw Road
Santa Clara, CA 95050

VALUATION

$50.33M

$1M
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YouSolar created the PowerBloc®, a solar nano-grid that delivers reliable and clean power with
little or no reliance on utility power. Our first customers are high-end homes in Northern California.
The PowerBloc uses a patented modular and highly scalable power architecture. To accelerate
sales and take the PowerBloc global, we are developing a stackable PowerBloc that is plug-and-
play. The PowerBloc allows people to power their lives independently and accelerates the

transition to a clean-energy world.

TEAM

Arnold Leitner

CEO, President and Chairman of the Board

Arnold is a solar and clean-tech pioneer. He designed
and built one of Germany’s first super-efficient passive
houses. As a consultant for S&P Global, he authored the
seminal and influential study Fuel from the Sky for the
U.S. Department of Energy (DOE). In 2005, Arnold
founded SkyFuel and re-invented concentrating solar
power technology. SkyFuel’s high-precision parabolic
trough uses mirror film technology licensed from the
National Renewable Energy Laboratory (NREL) instead of
glass mirrors and won an R&D 100 Award. SkyFuel
exited in a sale in 2015. Arnold founded YouSolar to
build a solar nano-grid with a highly innovative power
architecture that is modular and scalable. Arnold holds a
Ph.D. in Physics from C.U. Boulder and an MBA from

Columbia.

(i

Bob Rutter
System Engineering, Board
Member

Bob has nearly 40 years of
experience in automotive, aviation,
industrial, and consumer product
development. He worked over
twenty of those years for
Motorola/Freescale in various roles,
starting as a device design engineer
in the Semiconductor Research and
Development Laboratories in
Phoenix, Arizona to finishing as
European Director of Analog and
Mixed Signal Division Product
Development in Toulouse, France.
Bob holds 8 patents covering a
broad range of engineering
disciplines from power device
design to silicon process
development and has a single-
engine pilot’s license. Bob takes to
the sky every week.

Galen J. Torneby
Vice President,
Operations/COO

Galen has over nearly four decades
of years of experience in the energy
sector. Before joining YouSolar,
Galen served as the COO and then

Michael W. Allman
Director/Investor

Mike has held numerous executive
roles in the power and gas industry.
Most recently he was the CEO of
Sempra Generation and the CEO of
the Southern California Gas
Company. While at Sempra Mike
built the ground-breaking 10 MW
“Eldorado” solar plant in Nevada
which was the first solar project to
use thin-film solar panels. Within a
decade Sempra and other
developers built thousands of
megawatts of utility solar power
projects in America’s Desert
Southwest. Mike holds an MBA from
the University of Chicago BS in
Chemical Engineering from
Michigan State.
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Baxter Smith
Product and Support, Sales

Baxter Smith recently worked at the
Green School in Bali, Indonesia. At
Green School, he helped create and
direct the Community Innovation
Hub, or “ihub.” ihub is a fabrication

Rupert Mayer
CFO, Head of Strategy

Rupert is a seasoned entrepreneur
and executive who has built
companies in Austria, Germany and
California. His most successful
venture so far was IPfolio, one of
the 1,000 fastest-growing private
companies in the U.S. on the Inc.
list of 2019. After selling IPfolio to
Clarivate and while serving on
Clarivate's product leadership team,
Rupert became an active angel
investor and soon turned his focus
entirely to climate solutions. He first
invested in YouSolar in 2018 and
stepped into an advisory role in
2022 before deciding to join the
company full-time. Rupert holds a
master's degree in Industrial
Engineering from the Technical
University of Vienna.

Gene Krzywinski
Technical Advisor

Gene is the founding CEO of eIQ
Energy and inventor of the patented
DC-DC micro-converter that is key
to YouSolar’s innovative power
architecture. In addition to being a



CEO of SolarCraft, Novato CA. At
SolarCraft, he led a team executing
residential and commercial solar
PV, battery storage, and solar
thermal projects in the North Bay
Area. Galen worked several years
for SunPower as the Sr. Director
EPC Projects for the SunPower’s C7
LCPV technology program in China
and led SunPower’s EPC efforts in
Egypt and Mexico. Before
SunPower, he was the Director of
Project Development Engineering at
First Solar in San Francisco and
Head of Project Delivery at Masdar
in Abu Dhabi, UAE. He was
responsible for the development
and construction of wind and solar
projects. Throughout his career,
Galen has worked in Pakistan,
Romania, the Philippines,
Seychelles, Canada, Brazil, South
Africa, Egypt, China, Morocco, and
Mexico. Galen received his BS from
the University of Washington and
MBA from the University of
Washington. Galen is a PMI certified
project management professional
and a licensed California Class B -
General Building Contractor.

(in]

David Fillmore

Solar Forecasting and
Optimization

David Fillmore has worked
professionally for 20 years in the
fields of computational physics and
software architecture. From 1998 to
2005 he was an associate scientist
at the National Center for
Atmospheric Research. From 2005
t0 2016 David held positions as a
software developer and senior
research scientist at Tech-X
Corporation. While at Tech-X he
worked on the simulation of solar
irradiance and the estimation
surface solar irradiance based on
satellite observations under grants
from the National ics and

space dedicated to teaching and
mastering digital design tools and
craftsmanship. While at Green
School, Baxter also played a key
role in helping the school achieve
100% energy from renewable
sources. He led the installations of
two solar arrays donated by
YouSolar, its investors, and
Southeast Asian partners. Baxter
was also heavily involved in the
procurement, installation, and
upkeep of a vortex hydro turbine in
the river that crosses the school’s
campus. Baxter holds a Masters of
Architecture from UC Berkeley,
California, and a Bachelor of
Science in Business Administration
from the University of Denver.

[in]

Jon Farley
Firmware

Jon developed embedded control
software for lighting and power
systems for nearly 40 years. With a
background in entertainment
lighting, his earliest work was on
lighting control desks in theatre and
entertainment. Jon’s systems have
controlled the lighting for
productions like “Starlight Express”
on Broadway, the Grammy Awards,
or shows of Siegfried and Roy at the
Mirage Hotel in Las Vegas. More
recently Jon has applied his
software design skills to gas
analysis systems, veterinary
therapeutic products, camera
software, mobile

Space Administration’s Science
Mission Directorate. David received
aB.S. in Physics from the University
of California, Santa Cruz, and a
Ph.D. in Astrophysics and
Atmospheric Science from the
University of Colorado, Boulder.
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TERMS

YouSolar

Overview

PRICE PER SHARE
$0.74

DEADLINE @
Mar 16, 2023

Breakdown
MIN INVESTMENT @
$349.28

MAX INVESTMENT ©
$4,999,997.22

MIN NUMBER OF SHARES OFFERED

13,513

generator load management, LED
lighting, and solar power systems.
When between software
assignments, Jon designs lighting
for small theatre companies in
Portland, OR, and has appeared in
an episode of the IFC show
Portlandia. He holds a Master of
Fine Arts degree in Technical Design
and Production from Yale University
School of Drama.

o

VALUATION
$50.33M

serial entrepreneur, he has also
been successful in the corporate
world. Gene was VP of Sales and
Marketing for Impala Linear Corp
where he turned the company
around and led its sale to Fairchild
Semiconductor. Gene has a BSEE in
semiconductors from Rutgers
College of Engineering.

[in]

Moritz Nagelschmied
Remote Monitoring

Moritz manages the remote
monitoring of our CIRRUS™ cloud
service and runs analytics on
installed PowerBloc systems to
improve the EDISON™ optimization
engine. He is also working on the
data streaming to YouSolar’s
upcoming DIYA™ app for mobile
devices. Moritz is deeply interested
in the sciences and has a passion
for nature and wildlife. Moritz has
an undergraduate degree in
Electronics and Computer
Engineering from the University in
Graz, Austria.

(in]

AMOUNT RAISED ®

$993,744.66

OFFERING TYPE

Equity

ASSET TYPE
COMMON

SHARES OFFERED

Class B Common Stock

MAX NUMBER OF SHARES OFFERED

6,756,753

Maximum Number of Shares Offered subject to adjustment for bonus shares

SEC Recent Filing

Offering Memorandum



Risks v

Company : YouSolar, Inc.
Corporate Address : 292 Brokaw Road, Santa Clara, CA 95050
Offering Minimum : $9,999.62
Offering Maximum : $4,999,997.22

Minimum Investment Amount  $349.28

(per investor)

Terms

Offering Type : Equity
Security Name : Class B Common Stock
Minimum Number of Shares Offered : 13,513
Maximum Number of Shares Offered : 6,756,753
Price per Share : $0.74

Pre-Money Valuation : $50,332,338.02

Voting Rights of Securities Sold in this Offering

Voting Proxy. Each Subscriber shall appoint the Chief Executive Officer of the Company (the “CEQ”), or
his or her successor, as the Subscriber’s true and lawful proxy and attorney, with the power to act alone
and with full power of substitution, to, consistent with this instrument and on behalf of the Subscriber, (i)
vote all Securities, (ii) give and receive notices and communications, (jii) execute any instrument or
document that the CEO determines is necessary or appropriate in the exercise of its authority under this
instrument, and (iv) take all actions necessary or appropriate in the judgment of the CEO for the
accomplishment of the foregoing. The proxy and power granted by the Subscriber pursuant to this
Section are coupled with an interest. Such proxy and power will be irrevocable. The proxy and power, so
long as the Subscriber is an individual, will survive the death, incompetency and disability of the
Subscriber and, so long as the Subscriber is an entity, will survive the merger or reorganization of the
Subscriber or any other entity holding the Securities. However, the Proxy will terminate upon the closing
of a firm-commitment underwritten public offering pursuant to an effective registration statement under
the Securities Act of 1933 covering the offer and sale of Common Stock or the effectiveness of a
registration statement under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 covering the Common Stock.

*Maximum Number of Shares Offered subject to adjustment for bonus shares. See Bonus info below.

&

All Investor Owners Club

20% or 10% discount on a PowerBloc® system (excluding solar panels and installation charges), if
purchased in by 1 December 2022 or 1 December 2023, respectively, for U.S. delivery or Free-on-Board,
Santa Clara, California, for all international destinations. Discount applies only to the first U.S.
$100,000.00 of order(s) by the investor.

Early Bird
Any investment made before 1:08 pm PST Sunday January 23rd will receive 20% bonus shares.

Next 7 days new investments between 1:08 pm PST Sunday January 23rd and Sunday January 30th
1:08 pm PST receive 5% bonus shares.

Perks by Investment Amount

$700+ YouSolar-branded Organic T-shirt. Some colors are not available in organic cotton.
$1,500+ YouSolar T-Shirt and Visor or Trucker Hat

$3,500+ YouSolar T-shirt or Hoodie and Visor or Trucker Hat and Coffee Mug

$7,500+ YouSolar-branded titanium sports bottle + 5% bonus shares.

$27,500+ Wonderfully crafted, stackable model of the PowerBloc® for your desk. (Works as a "stress
toy" or paperweight.) + 10% bonus shares.

*All perks occur after the offering is completed.
The 10% Bonus for StartEngine Shareholders

YousSolar, Inc. will offer 10% bonus shares for all investments that are committed by investors that are
eligible for the StartEngine Crowdfunding Inc. OWNer's bonus.

This means eligible StartEngine shareholders will receive a 10% bonus for any shares they purchase in
this offering. For example, if you buy 100 shares of Class B Common Stock at $0.74 / share, you will
receive 110 Class B Common Stock, meaning you'll own 110 shares for $74. Fractional shares will not be
distributed and share bonuses will be determined by rounding down to the nearest whole share.

This 10% Bonus is only valid during the investors eligibility period. Investors eligible for this bonus will
also have priority if they are on a waitlist to invest and the company surpasses its maximum funding goal.
They will have the first opportunity to invest should room in the offering become available if prior
investments are cancelled or fail.

Investors will only receive a single bonus, which will be the highest bonus rate they are eligible for.

Note on Bonus Shares and Perks

Investors will only receive a single bonus, which will be the highest bonus rate they are eligible for.

Insider Investment Notice

Officers, directors, executives, and existing owners with a controlling stake in the company (or their



immediate family members) may make investments in this offering. Any such investments will be included
in the raised amount reflected on the campaign page.

Irregular Use of Proceeds

The Company might incur Irregular Use of Proceeds that may include but are not limited to the following
over $10,000: Salary payments made to one’s self, a friend or relative. Vendor payments.

NEW UPDATES

02.15.23

Coming Too Soon! | 15 March YouSolar
Campaign Closing

Y lar’s cr di ign ends on 15 March 2023.

This is a Wednesday. The middle of the week, folks! Do not miss your chances of
investing in YouSolar just because it is a busy week. So, purchase your shares in
YouSolar now!

We are just a few thousand dollars shy of having raised one million dollars!

We did it again. We have run another successful crowdfunding campaign. The recipe
for our success has been the PowerBloc®, our customers, and, you, our investors.

YouSolar
MA Campaign
Closing

15

Our campaign closes on 15 March 2023. Invest now to be part of our company.

Over the past year, the funding we have raised on StartEngine has allowed us to deploy
PowerBloc systems with our first customers, perfect our technology and get ready for
a big year.

Sure enough, 2023 is off to an amazing start. Customers love our product, we are
closing larger sales than ever. Our di: i with arct builders, and
electricians for partnerships are gaining traction.

If you have not invested in YouSolar yet — or you want to build out your position — you
have only a few weeks left to purchase shares on StartEngine.

Our campaign will close for good at 11:59:59 PM PST on 15
March 2023.

The closing is official. There will be no further campaign extension. This is your
last chance to invest in YouSolar.

So, click the “Invest Now” button below and to avoid missing out on investing in the
Future of Power.

Our Campaign Closes 15 March 2023.
Invest in the Future of Power.
Invest in YouSolar.



PRESS

SUNCAST Media

suncast  Are High-Power Home Solar + Battery Systems A Game-Changer?

View Article

InvestorPlace

s mvestorpiace  INVest in YouSolar to Get in on Nano Grid Renewable Power

View Article

The Rising
. .®  YouSolar - The Startup Rethinking Independent Solar Power
the rising

View Article

The Weekly Calistogan

The Weekly Galistoqun £ UP with PSPS events, Calistoga couple opts for home microgrid

View Article

ALL UPDATES

02.13.23

2023's Biggest IPO so far is a Solar
Technology Company

Amidst a recovering stock market, solar tracking company Nextracker went public at a

$3.5 billion valuation last week.

This marks the largest IPO of the year and shines a sunny light on public market
ite for cli hnology.

PP

Q) o

J&" . ’

The Nextracker team ringing the NASDAQ bell and celebrating their IPO last week

The $838 million that the company raised was nearly 20% higher than what they
were targeting.

Nextracker’s technology allows solar panels to follow the movement of the sun,
optimizing their efficiency and the amount of energy they can produce per day. They
are typically used in commercial, utility-scale solar installations.

This exit d ates the p ial of investments related to solar energy, proves



public market interest in climate companies, and shows that a company can
generate significant enterprise value with a “hard tech” climate solution.

Congratulations to the Nextracker team, and to many more climate tech IPO’s!

Invest in Climate “Hard Tech”.
Invest in YouSolar Today

INVEST NOW

02.10.23

DON’T MISS: YouSolar Webinar | The
Electrification of Everything and the
Transition to Decentralized Power

() YousSolar

YouSolar Webinar

The Electrification of Everything and the
Transition to Decentralized Power

February 23, 2023 at %g_ll_-\M PT/1PMET/ 1%

Register Now

The “Electrification of Everything” is upon us. Heat pumps, induction stoves, and
electric cars are ing. idential electricity d dis fi to double over
the next decades.

The all-electric home will double residential electricity demand.

People will be able to live cleaner, healthier and more comfortable lives. The climate
also urgently needs this transformation.

Decentralized Power will be critical to enabling this epochal shift. The future of
power delivery will be a mix between local and central energy production and
between on-site and network power.

The electric supply system will change from a centralized system to a mesh structure
with nodes of power and energy production at the “grid edge.” Lower cost and higher
resilience are driving this transformation.

This change is inevitable and already on its way. The world’s electricity system will
require trillions of investment to meet demand from electrified homes and electric
vehicles. A massive shift from fuels to electricity, as well as growing populations and
rising living standards, will supercharge this market.

The paradigm has shifted. Demand is going through the roof, and complex and
costly grid upgrades are yesterday's response. A decentralized infrastructure with
local renewable power generation and storage is the future.

Join Arnold Leitner, Founder & CEO of YouSolar, to learn more about this epochal
infrastructure transition in the making.



Register Now

YouSolar’s Founder and CEO, Arnold Leitner, is a cleantech leader. He is the author of
the seminal 2002 Department of Energy study on utility-scale solar in the Desert
Southwest and founder and former CEO of SkyFuel. Arnold has a Ph.D. in experimental
superconductor physics and an MBA from Columbia University.

02.08.23

YouSolar #5 in Most Momentum Category |
The Race Is On

Our fundraising campaign is going into its final lap and approaching the magical
million-dollar milestone.

Over the past few days, YouSolar has been one of StartEngine’s “15 Most Momentum”
campaigns. Yesterday we reached the #5 spot in that ranking.

With your help, we can move into the pole position for our final sprint toward the
15 March 2023 campaign finish line.

A Formula E car by Panasonic Jaguar Racing. Formula E, created in 2011, races electric
cars.

But we do not only have momentum raising capital. Our sales and partnerships are
speeding along nicely as well. Stay tuned for more updates on those fronts!

The Race to A Better World Is On.
Invest in Clean Tech.



Invest in YouSolar.

02.06.23

Fusion Could Be Transformational But Will
Not Make Distributed Solar-Battery
Systems Obsolete

The world has about 8 billion people. We have built a fantastic world. We can see a
black hole in the center of our Milky Way, and the Apple Watch will call 911 when we
wipe out on the ski slope. We have built this stupendous world by burning coal, oil, and
gas.

It is a very reasonable question to ask how we can power our future now that we must
immediately and drastically cut carbon emissions to protect the delicate thermal
balance of the atmosphere. Solar surely will not be able to entirely power the modern
world, right?

Solar power combined with energy storage is a practical solution. In the fight to
protect our cli while maintaining and ad ing our societies, it is the first
choice.

Commonwealth Fusion Systems is collaborating with MIT’s Plasma Science and Fusion
Center to build SPARC.

Fission reactors, that is, conventional nuclear power plants, will also have to play a
role in stopping climate change, but nuclear energy has plenty of challenges.

And then there is nuclear fusion, the forever promise of limitless clean energy.

Enormous progress has been made in fusion in the past decade. By now, everyone
understands that the challenge for fusion is to create plasmas at hundreds of millions
of degrees of temperature. Computing power, artificial intelligence, and high-
temperature superconducting magnets have changed our ability to get closer to
lighting a tiny Sun in the lab.

We are techno-optimists and are excited about the transformational potential of
fusion power. But fusion will not make solar-battery systems obsolete.

Fusion will allow humankind to take another leap and give some utopian dreams a
chance. But fusion reactors are decades out and will be highly complex and expensive
installations. It will take time. Fusion also does not solve the challenges of power
transmission in a world with increasingly extreme and severe weather, nor does it
change the economics of central power versus distributed power.

Fusion will be fantastic, but it will be just one source in the energy mix. We will
still need massive deployment of distributed solar, complemented by local battery
systems,to meet the energy needs of the modern world.

We Can Solve the World’s Power Needs.
Invest in YouSolar Today.

02.03.23

We Have Reached Peak Demand for Fossil



Fuels | 1he Rise of Renewables 1s
Inevitable

Sustainability think tank RMI publishes an ongoing series that explores how demand
for fossil fuels is peaking, or has already peaked in many countries and sectors, and
will soon enter a phase of accelerating decline.

One article in the series provides a fascinating and entertaining history of past energy.
transitions. Its central argument is this:

Once an energy source reaches its peak, its decline into irrel is inevitabl
and only a matter of time.

The graphic below illustrates the pattern: as a Challenger (in our case, renewable
energy) gains traction, demand for the Incumbent (in our case, fossil fuels) peaks. The
peak is followed by a plateau for a few years as the Incumbent fights back.

Disruption comes early The end point

Demand

Peak Decline

~ NS T it

Plateau
= Incumbent demand (fossil fuels)

Challenger demand (renewables)

Time

The Peak-Plateau-Decline shape for fossil fuel demand. Source: RMI

The peak typically occurs before there is price parity between the Challenger and
the Incumbent, but the fight is already decided at this point.

As soon as the Challenger reaches price parity, the Incumbent starts its decline into
irrelevance. The article cites several historic examples, such as the transition from
horses to cars and from gas to electric lighting.
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Source: Nakiceno

Horses to cars transition in the U.S.. Number of horses and cars, ‘000. Source: RMI

Demand peaks matter because this is when i s sell and the bal of
power starts to shift.

Invest in the Accelerating Energy Transition.
Invest in YouSolar.



